
Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Llun, 15 Medi 2014  

 

Amser: 

14.30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:  

Gareth Williams 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

029 2089 8008/8019 

PwyllgorMCD@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

MeetingTitle 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau   

2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad 

arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 na 21.3  (Tudalennau 1 - 6)  

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 1 – Offerynnau statudol sydd ag adroddiadau clir 

Offerynnau’r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol 

 

 

 

CLA427– Rheoliadau Gweithdrefn Gwynion y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 

2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 7 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 9 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Awst 2014. 
 

 

CLA428– Rheoliadau Gweithdrefn Sylwadau (Cymru) 2014   

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 7 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 9 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Awst 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA429 – Rheoliadau Cynllun Taliad Sylfaenol y Polisi Amaethyddol Cyffredin 

(Dosbarthiad Rhanbarthau Talu Dros Dro) (Cymru) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 11 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 14 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 4 Awst 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA430 – Rheoliadau Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 14 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 16 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 8 Awst 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA432 - Rheoliadau Addysg (Sefydliadau Ewropeaidd) a Chymorth i Fyfyrwyr 

(Cymru) (Dirymu) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 16 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 18 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 31 Awst 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA434 - Gorchymyn Addysg (Y Cwricwlwm Cenedlaethol) (Y Cyfnod Sylfaen) 

(Cymru) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'i gwnaed ar: 23 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'i gosodwyd ar: 28 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Medi 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA435 - Rheoliadau Adroddiad y Pennaeth i Rieni a Disgyblion sy’n Oedolion 

(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 23 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 28 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Medi 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA436 - Gorchymyn y Cwricwlwm Cenedlaethol (Trefniadau Asesu ar gyfer y Cyfnod 



Sylfaen a’r Ail Gyfnod Allweddol a’r Trydydd Cyfnod Allweddol) (Cymru) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'i gwnaed ar: 23 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'i gosodwyd ar: 28 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Medi 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA437 - Rheoliadau’r Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (Ffioedd a Thaliadau Optegol) 

(Diwygio) (Cymru) (Rhif 2) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 28 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 29 

Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 19 Medi 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA438 - Rheoliadau Ffioedd Myfyrwyr (Symiau) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 23 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 4 

Awst 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 31 Awst 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA439 -  Rheoliadau Diddymu Corfforaethau Addysg Bellach (Cyhoeddi Cynigion a 

Chyrff Rhagnodedig) (Cymru) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 6 Awst 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 8 Awst 

2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Medi 2014. 

 
 

 

CLA441 - Gorchymyn Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol (Cymru) 2014   

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'i gwnaed ar: 7 Awst 2014; Fe'i gosodwyd ar: 14 Awst 

2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 4 Medi 2014. 

 
 

3 Offerynnau sy'n cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt i'r 

Cynulliad o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3   

Offerynnau’r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol 

 

CLA440 - Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 

(Cymru) 2014  (Tudalennau 7 - 17) 

Y weithdrefn negyddol; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 6 Awst 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd ar: 8 Awst 



2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 5 Medi 2014. 

 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 2 – Adroddiad 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 3 – Rheoliadau 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 4 – Memorandwm Esboniadol 

 

 
 

Offerynnau Cyfansawdd y Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol 

 

CLA433 - Rheoliadau Cynnwys Sylffwr Tanwyddau Hylifol (Cymru a Lloegr) (Diwygio) 

2014  (Tudalennau 18 - 29) 

Y weithdrefn negyddol cyfansawdd; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 21 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u 

gosodwyd ar: 25 Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar:G 29 Awst 2014. 

 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 5 – Adroddiad 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 6 – Rheoliadau 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 7 – Memorandwm Esboniadol 

 

 
 

Offerynnau’r Penderfyniad Negyddol ar y cyd 

 

CLA431 - Rheoliadau Clefydau Moch 2014  (Tudalennau 30 - 76) 

Y weithdrefn negyddol ar y cyd; Fe'u gwnaed ar: 16 Gorffennaf 2014; Fe'u gosodwyd 

ar: 18 Gorffennaf 2014; Yn dod i rym ar: 14 Awst 2014. 

 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 8 – Adroddiad 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 9 – Rheoliadau 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 10 – Memorandwm Esboniadol 

 

 
 

4 Papurau i’w nodi   

 

Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru ynghylch canllawiau dwyochrog  (Tudalennau 77 - 

90) 



CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 11 – Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru 
 

 

Gohebiaeth ynghylch cynnig gan y Comisiwn Ewropeaidd ar atal rhwydi drifft 

COM(2014)265  (Tudalennau 91 - 97) 

CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 12 - Llythyr gan y Comisiynydd Damanaki, 23 Gorffennaf 

2014 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 13 – Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru, 8 Awst 2014 

CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 14 - Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion 

Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol, 16 Gorffennaf 2014 

CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 15 - Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion 

Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol, 17 Gorffennaf 2014 

 
 

 

Gohebiaeth gan y Llywydd  (Tudalen 98) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 16 – Llythyr gan y Llywydd at y Pwyllgorau ynghylch y gyllideb 

ddrafft 
 

 

Datganiad ysgrifenedig ynghylch Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant 

(Cymru) 2014  (Tudalennau 99 - 102) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 17 – Datganiad ysgrifenedig 
 

 

Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru ynghylch yr ymchwiliad i anghymhwyso person rhag 

bod yn Aelod o Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  (Tudalennau 103 - 104) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 18 – Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru 
 

 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Dadreoleiddio: Diwygiadau mewn 

perthynas â Phedolwyr a Chytundebau Cartref-Ysgol  (Tudalennau 105 - 110) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 19 – Llythyr gan y Gweinidog 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 20 – Adroddiad y Pwyllgor, Gorffennaf 2014 

 

 
 

 

Datganiad gan Brif Weinidog Cymru: Y Rhaglen Ddeddfwriaethol, Gorffennaf 2014  

(Tudalennau 111 - 114) 



CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 21 – Datganiad llafar 
 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd 

o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol:    

(ix) lle mae unrhyw fater sy’n ymwneud â busnes mewnol y pwyllgor, neu fusnes 

mewnol y Cynulliad, i gael ei drafod. 

 

Adroddiad drafft ar y Bil Addysg Uwch (Cymru)  (Tudalennau 115 - 225) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 22 – Adroddiad Drafft 

 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 23 – Datganiad ar fwriad polisi 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 24 – Tabl Tarddiadau 

CLA (4)-21-14 –Papur 25 – Nodyn Cyngor Cyfreithiol 1 

CLA (4)-21-14 –Papur 26 – Nodyn Cyngor Cyfreithiol 2 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 27 – Llythyr gan y Gweinidog, 23 Gorffennaf 2014 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 28 – Llythyr gan y Gweinidog, 2 Gorffennaf 2014 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 29 - Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan Addysg Uwch Cymru 

 

 
 

 

Ymchwiliad i ddeddfu - y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf  (Tudalennau 226 - 227) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 30 – Papur diweddaru 
 

 

Blaenraglen waith  (Tudalennau 228 - 229) 

CLA(4)-21-14 – Papur 31 – Blaenraglen waith 
 

1. FIELD_TITLEFIELD_FOOTNOTE F_PR 

2. FIELD_FOOTNOTE 

FIELD_FOOTNOTE 

FIELD_FOOTNOTE 



Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Offerynnau statudol gydag adroddiadau clir 

15 Medi 2014 

 

 

CLA427– Rheoliadau Gweithdrefn Gwynion y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

(Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn sefydlu gweithdrefnau newydd ar gyfer ymdrin â 

chwynion i awdurdodau lleol ynghylch arfer eu swyddogaethau 

gwasanaethau cymdeithasol. Nid yw sylwadau a wneir o dan Ddeddf Plant 

1989 a Deddf Mabwysiadu a Phlant 2002 yn dod o dan y Rheoliadau hyn, 

ond ymdrinnir â hwy o dan Reoliadau Gweithdrefn Sylwadau (Cymru) 2014.  

Bydd adroddiad ar wahân yn cael ei roi gerbron y Pwyllgor.   

 

 

CLA428– Rheoliadau Gweithdrefn Sylwadau (Cymru) 2014 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn sefydlu gweithdrefnau newydd ar gyfer ymdrin â 

chwynion i awdurdodau lleol o dan Ddeddf Plant 1989 a Deddf Mabwysiadu a 

Phlant 2002.  Ymdrinnir â chwynion sy'n ymwneud â swyddogaethau 

gwasanaethau cymdeithasol eraill awdurdodau lleol o dan Reoliadau 

Gweithdrefn Gwynion y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2014. Bydd 

adroddiad ar wahân yn cael ei roi gerbron y Pwyllgor.  

 

 

CLA429 – Rheoliadau Cynllun Taliad Sylfaenol y Polisi Amaethyddol Cyffredin 

(Dosbarthiad Rhanbarthau Talu Dros Dro) (Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn gwneud darpariaeth, o ran Cymru, ar gyfer 

gweinyddu Rheoliad y Cyngor (EC) Rhif 1307/2013, mewn perthynas â 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



thaliadau uniongyrchol i ffermwyr o dan gynlluniau cymorth y Polisi 

Amaethyddol Cyffredin. 

 

Maent yn gwneud trefniadau i Weinidogion Cymru hysbysu ffermwyr am 

ddosbarthiad rhanbarthau talu dros dro eu parseli caeau at ddibenion hawlio 

cymorth o dan y cynllun taliad sylfaenol.    

 

Mae rheoliad 3 yn darparu bod tri rhanbarth yng Nghymru at ddibenion y 

cynllun taliad sylfaenol ac mae’n darparu mecanwaith i ffermwyr apelio yn 

erbyn dyfarniad gan Weinidogion Cymru o ran dosbarthiad rhanbarthau talu 

dros dro. 

 

Noder bod y teitl yn cynnwys y geiriau ‘dros dro’.   Os bydd newidiadau i’r 

rhanbarthau yn dilyn apeliadau llwyddiannus, bydd angen ail-wneud y 

Rheoliadau i gyfeirio at y map terfynol. 

 

 

CLA430 – Rheoliadau Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio Rheoliadau Hylendid Bwyd (Cymru) 2006 

drwy weithredu Rheoliad y Comisiwn (EU) 2075/2014 mewn perthynas â 

Chymru drwy osod rheolaethau penodol ar gyfer Trichinella mewn cig.  

Maent hefyd yn gweithredu Rheoliadau'r Comisiwn 2018/2014 sy'n diwygio 

Atodiadau i Reoliadau (EC) Rhif 853/2204 ac (EC) Rhif 854/2004 Senedd 

Ewrop a'r Cyngor sy'n dileu'r gofyniad am farc iechyd arbennig a'r cyfyngiad 

i’r farchnad genedlaethol ar gyfer cig anifeiliaid sydd wedi eu lladd mewn 

argyfwng.   

 

 

CLA432 - Rheoliadau Addysg (Sefydliadau Ewropeaidd) a Chymorth i 

Fyfyrwyr (Cymru) (Dirymu) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn dirymu Rheoliadau Addysg (Sefydliadau Ewropeaidd) 

a Chymorth i Fyfyrwyr (Cymru) 2013. Golyga hyn bod cyllid a arferai fod ar 

gael ar gyfer un myfyriwr a oedd yn dymuno astudio naill ai yng Ngholeg 

Ewrop neu yn Johns Hopkins SAIS Europe yn Bologna, yr Eidal, wedi cael ei 

dynnu'n ôl. 

 

CLA434 - Gorchymyn Addysg (Y Cwricwlwm Cenedlaethol) (Y Cyfnod Sylfaen) 

(Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae'r Gorchymyn hwn yn disodli Gorchymyn Addysg (Y Cwricwlwm 

Cenedlaethol) (Y Cyfnod Sylfaen) (Cymru) 2008. Yn wreiddiol galwyd 

'foundation phase' yn 'foundation stage' yn Rhan 7 o Ddeddf Addysg 2002. 

Yn ymarferol, yn Saesneg, roedd ymarferwyr yn cyfeirio at y 'foundation 

stage' fel y 'foundation phase'.  O ganlyniad, roedd Mesur Addysg (Cymru) 

2009 ("Mesur 2009") yn diwygio Rhan 7 o Ddeddf Addysg 2002 er mwyn 

cyfeirio at y 'foundation phase' yn hytrach na'r 'foundation stage'. Yn sgil y 

newid a wnaed gan Fesur 2009, bernir yn briodol i ddirymu ac ail-wneud 

Gorchymyn 2008 i adlewyrchu yn y gyfraith y newid enw a ddefnyddir yn 

ymarferol er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb ac eglurder. 

 

 

CLA435 -  Rheoliadau Adroddiad Pennaeth i Rieni a Disgyblion sy’n Oedolion 

(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol   

Mae Rheoliadau Adroddiad Pennaeth i Rieni a Disgyblion sy’n Oedolion 

(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014 yn diwygio Rheoliadau Adroddiad Pennaeth i Rieni a 

Disgyblion sy’n Oedolion (Cymru) 2011 Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio 

Rheoliadau 2011 i'w gwneud yn ofynnol i benaethiaid roi adroddiad am 

ganlyniadau'r asesiadau a gyflwynwyd gan Orchymyn y Cwricwlwm 

Cenedlaethol (Trefniadau Asesu ar gyfer y Cyfnod Sylfaen a’r Ail Gyfnod 

Allweddol a’r Trydydd Cyfnod Allweddol) (Cymru) 2014 i rieni a disgyblion 

sy'n oedolion. 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



 

 

CLA436 - Gorchymyn y Cwricwlwm Cenedlaethol (Trefniadau Asesu ar gyfer 

y Cyfnod Sylfaen a’r Ail Gyfnod Allweddol a’r Trydydd Cyfnod Allweddol) 

(Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol   

 

Mae'r Gorchymyn hwn yn rhoi dyletswydd statudol ar ysgolion i asesu 

safonau cyffredinol dysgwyr, sy'n ymgymryd â'r Cyfnod Sylfaen a'r ail a'r 

trydydd cyfnod allweddol, mewn llythrennedd a rhifedd gan ddefnyddio'r 

Fframwaith Llythrennedd a Rhifedd Cenedlaethol. 

 

 

CLA437 - Rheoliadau’r Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (Ffioedd a Thaliadau 

Optegol) (Diwygio) (Cymru) (Rhif 2) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio Rheoliadau'r Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol 

(Ffioedd a Thaliadau Optegol) 1997 drwy ddarparu ar gyfer cynnydd o 1% yn 

ffioedd y GIG am brofion llygaid o 1 Ebrill 2014 ymlaen.  Mae effaith ôl-

weithredol y Rheoliadau yn cael ei ganiatáu o dan adran 76(9) o Ddeddf y 

Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (Cymru) 2006.  

 

CLA438 – Rheoliadau Ffioedd Myfyrwyr (Symiau) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014  

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio Rheoliadau Ffioedd Myfyrwyr (Symiau) 

(Cymru) 2011 i ddarparu ar gyfer y trefniadau newydd o ran ffioedd dysgu a 

chymorth ariannol ar gyfer myfyrwyr sy'n mynd ar leoliad gwaith am 

flwyddyn neu sy'n treulio blwyddyn gyfan dramor fel rhan o'u hastudiaethau 

(rhaglenni Erasmus a rhaglenni heblaw Erasmus) o flwyddyn academaidd 

2014-15 ymlaen. 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



Bydd gan sefydliadau sy'n darparu addysg uwch hawl i godi ffi o hyd at 15% 

o'r cap ar ffioedd y sefydliad ar fyfyrwyr Erasmus a myfyrwyr heblaw rhai 

Erasmus sy'n mynd ar leoliad dramor am flwyddyn gyfan.   

Mae'n bosibl y bydd rhaid i fyfyrwyr (Erasmus ac eraill) sy'n mynd ar leoliad 

gwaith fel rhan o gwrs rhyngosod dalu ffi dysgu o hyd at 20% o uchafswm 

cap ffioedd y sefydliad. 

 

 

CLA439 -  Rheoliadau Diddymu Corfforaethau Addysg Bellach (Cyhoeddi 

Cynigion a Chyrff Rhagnodedig) (Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn rhagnodi amser a dull cyhoeddi’r cynigion drafft ar 

gyfer diddymu corfforaethau addysg bellach ynghyd â chynnwys y cynigion 

drafft hynny. Mae’r Rheoliadau hefyd yn darparu manylion am y broses 

ymgynghori y mae’n rhaid ei dilyn, ynghyd â rhagnodi’r cyrff y gall 

corfforaeth addysg bellach drosglwyddo ei heiddo, ei hawliau a’i 

rhwymedigaethau iddynt pan gaiff ei diddymu. 

 

 

 

CLA441  - Gorchymyn Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol (Cymru) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn: Negyddol 

Effaith y Gorchymyn hwn yw arfer y pŵer sydd gan Weinidogion Cymru o dan 

adran 113A o Ddeddf Trafnidiaeth 2000 i ganiatáu cynlluniau trafnidiaeth 

lleol i gael eu gwneud mewn perthynas â rhan yn unig o ardal awdurdod.  

Mae hefyd yn galluogi dau neu ragor o awdurdodau trafnidiaeth lleol i lunio 

cynllun trafnidiaeth lleol ar y cyd, yn hytrach nag ar sail awdurdod unigol, o 

ran y cyfan neu ran o'u hardal cyfunol. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



 

 

Adroddiad drafft Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

 

CLA(4)-21-14 

 

CLA440 - Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Diwygiadau 

Canlyniadol) (Cymru) 2014 

 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn gwneud diwygiadau o ganlyniad i Reoliadau 

Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Cymru) 2014 (O.S. 2014/951) (Cy. 92). 

 

Maent yn gwneud diwygiadau canlyniadol i dair Deddf Seneddol ac un 

offeryn statudol i ddarparu bod y Deddfau hynny a’r offeryn hwnnw yn 

cyfeirio at dystysgrifau cymhwysedd a thrwyddedau a ddyroddir o dan 

Reoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Cymru) 2014. 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol 

 

1. Materion technegol: craffu 

 

Ni nodwyd pwyntiau i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 

21.2 mewn perthynas â’r offeryn hwn. 

 

2. Rhinweddau: craffu 

 

Nodwyd y pwyntiau canlynol i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol 

Sefydlog 21.3 mewn perthynas â’r offeryn hwn. 

 

Nodir yn y Memorandwm Esboniadol fel a ganlyn – 

“Gwneir y Rheoliadau diwygio hyn o dan weithdrefn penderfyniad 

negyddol Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru gan nad yw darpariaethau’r 

Rheoliadau diwygio hyn yn cael effaith sylweddol ar ddarpariaethau 

Deddfau Seneddol.” 

 

Gan fod rheoliadau yn cael eu defnyddio i ddiwygio deddfwriaeth 

gynradd, byddai’r Pwyllgor yn disgwyl i’r weithdrefn gadarnhaol gael ei 

defnyddio, er mai diwygiadau canlyniadol sydd yma. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 7

Eitem 3.1



 

 

[Rheol Sefydlog 21.3 (ii) - ei fod o bwysigrwydd gwleidyddol neu 

gyfreithiol neu ei fod yn codi materion polisi cyhoeddus sy’n debyg o 

fod o ddiddordeb i’r Cynulliad;] 

 

Cynghorwyr Cyfreithiol 

 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

 

Awst 2014  

 

Ymateb (drafft) Llywodraeth Cymru i’r Adroddiad ar sail Rhagoriaethau 

 

Mae Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Cymru) 2014 a ddaeth i 

rym ar 20 Mai 2014 (Rheoliadau 2014) yn gwneud darpariaeth yng 

Nghymru ar gyfer gweinyddu a gorfodi Rheoliad y Cyngor (EC) Rhif 

1099/2009 a rheolau cenedlaethol penodol sy'n cael eu cynnal neu eu 

mabwysiadu o dan Erthygl 26(1) a (2) o'r Rheoliad hwnnw. Yn ogystal, 

dirymodd Rheoliadau 2014 Reoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid (Cigydda neu 

Ladd) 1995 (Rheoliadau 1995 fel yr oeddent yn gymwys o ran Cymru.  

 

Mae Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Diwygiadau 

Canlyniadol) (Cymru) 2014 (Rheoliadau Canlyniadol WATOK 2014) yn 

gwneud diwygiadau i dair Deddf Seneddol ac un Offeryn Statudol o 

ganlyniad i Reoliadau 2014.   

 

Gan eu bod yn gymwys i’r tair Deddf, effaith Rheoliadau Canlyniadol 

WATOK 2014 yw diwygio'r tair Deddf hynny, fel y bo'n briodol, i 

gyfeirio at ofynion Rheoliadau 2014 yn ogystal â gofynion Rheoliadau 

1995 neu i gyfeirio at dystysgrifau cymhwysedd a thrwyddedau a 

ddyroddwyd o dan Reoliadau 2014 yn ogystal â thrwyddedau a 

ddyroddwyd o dan Reoliadau 1995. 

 

Effaith Rheoliadau Canlyniadol WATOK 2014, o ran yr Offeryn Statudol, 

yw cynnwys cyfeiriad at dystysgrifau cymhwysedd a thrwyddedau a 

ddyroddwyd o dan Reoliadau 2014. Felly bydd yr Offeryn Statudol yn 

cyfeirio at dystysgrifau cymhwysedd a thrwyddedau a ddyroddwyd o 

dan Reoliadau 2014 yn ogystal â thrwyddedau a ddyroddwyd o dan 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



 

 

Reoliadau 1995 a thystysgrifau cymhwysedd i ladd anifeiliaid o dan 

Reoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (yr Alban) 2012. 

 

Gwnaed Rheoliadau Canlyniadol WATOK 2014 gan Weinidogion Cymru 

wrth arfer pwerau sydd yn adran 2(2) o Ddeddf y Cymunedau 

Ewropeaidd 1972. Mae Gweinidogion Cymru wedi eu dynodi i arfer y 

pwerau hynny mewn perthynas â Pholisi Amaethyddol Cyffredin yr 

Undeb Ewropeaidd.  Nid yw adran 2(2) o Ddeddf y Cymunedau 

Ewropeaidd 1972 nac Atodlen 2  iddi yn rhagnodi'r weithdrefn 

ddeddfwriaethol y mae'n rhaid ei dilyn wrth wneud rheoliadau fel 

Rheoliadau Canlyniadol WATOK 2014. 

   

Gwnaed Rheoliadau Canlyniadol WATOK 2014 o dan weithdrefn 

penderfyniad negyddol Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru gan nad oedd 

darpariaethau'r Rheoliadau hyn fel y nodwyd uchod yn gwneud 

diwygiadau a oedd yn effeithio'n sylweddol ar ddarpariaethau 

perthnasol y Deddfau Seneddol oedd yn cael eu diwygio. 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



O F F E R Y N N A U  S T A T U D O L  
C Y M R U  

2014 Rhif 2124 (Cy. 208) 

ANIFEILIAID, CYMRU 

ATAL CREULONDEB 

Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg 

eu Lladd (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 

(Cymru) 2014 

NODYN ESBONIADOL 

(Nid yw’r nodyn hwn yn rhan o’r Rheoliadau) 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn gwneud diwygiadau o 

ganlyniad i Reoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd 

(Cymru) 2014 (O.S. 2014/951) (Cy. 92). 

Maent yn gwneud diwygiadau canlyniadol i dair 

Deddf Seneddol ac un offeryn statudol i ddarparu bod 

y Deddfau hynny a’r offeryn hwnnw yn cyfeirio at 

dystysgrifau cymhwysedd a thrwyddedau a ddyroddir 

o dan Reoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd 

(Cymru) 2014. 

Ni luniwyd asesiad effaith rheoleiddiol mewn 

cysylltiad â’r offeryn hwn, gan na ragwelir costau i’r 

sector busnes na’r sector gwirfoddol. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



 2 

O F F E R Y N N A U  S T A T U D O L  
C Y M R U  

2014 Rhif 2124 (Cy. 208) 

ANIFEILIAID, CYMRU 

ATAL CREULONDEB 

Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg 

eu Lladd (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 

(Cymru) 2014 

Gwnaed 6 Awst 2014 

Gosodwyd gerbron Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 
Cymru 8 Awst 2014 

 

Yn dod i rym                                  5 Medi 2014 

  

 

Mae Gweinidogion Cymru wedi eu dynodi at 

ddibenion adran 2(2) o Ddeddf y Cymunedau 

Ewropeaidd 1972(1) mewn perthynas â pholisi 

amaethyddol cyffredin yr Undeb Ewropeaidd(2) ac 

maent yn gwneud y Rheoliadau hyn drwy arfer y 

pwerau hynny. 

RHAN 1 

Cyffredinol 

Enwi, cymhwyso a chychwyn 

1. Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn— 

(a) yn dwyn yr enw Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid 

Adeg eu Lladd (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 

(Cymru) 2014; 

                                                                               
(1) 1972 p. 68; diwygiwyd adran 2(2) gan adran 27(1)(a) o 

Ddeddf Diwygio Deddfwriaethol a Rheoleiddiol 2006 (p. 51) 
ac adran 3(3) o Ddeddf yr Undeb Ewropeaidd (Diwygio) 
2008 (p. 7). 

(2) O.S. 2010/2690. 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



 3 

(b) yn gymwys o ran Cymru ac o ganlyniad i 

hynny mae’r diwygiadau a wneir gan reoliad 

2— 

(i) yn ymestyn i Gymru a Lloegr; a 

(ii) yn gymwys o ran Cymru yn unig; ac  

(c) yn dod i rym ar 5 Medi 2014. 

Diwygiadau canlyniadol 

2.—(1) Yn adran 10 o Ddeddf Drylliau 1968(1) 

(cigydda anifeiliaid)— 

(a) yn is-adran (1), yn lle “licensed under the 

Welfare of Animals (Slaughter or Killing) 

Regulations 1995 to slaughter horses, cattle, 

sheep, swine or goats” rhodder “holding a 

relevant licence”; a 

(b) ar ôl is-adran (1), mewnosoder— 

“(1A) For the purposes of subsection (1) a 

person holds a relevant licence if that person— 

(a) is licensed under the Welfare of Animals 

(Slaughter or Killing) Regulations 1995 to 

slaughter horses, cattle, sheep, swine or goats; or 

(b) holds a certificate of competence or is licensed 

under the Welfare of Animals at the Time of 

Killing (Wales) Regulations 2014.” 

(2) Yn adran 16(1)(c) o Ddeddf Lladd-dai 1974(2) 

(rheoli lladd-dai cyhoeddus), ar ôl “the Welfare of 

Animals (Slaughter or Killing) Regulations 1995” 

mewnosoder “or the Welfare of Animals at the Time 

of Killing (Wales) Regulations 2014”. 

(3) Yn Atodlen 1 i Ddeddf Anifeiliaid 

(Gweithdrefnau Gwyddonol) 1986(3) (dulliau priodol 

o ladd heb boen), yn Nhabl A, yn y golofn ar y chwith 

o’r pumed cofnod, ar ôl “a current licence granted 

under the Welfare of Animals (Slaughter or Killing) 

Regulations 1995” mewnosoder “or a certificate of 

competence or licence issued under the Welfare of 

Animals at the Time of Killing (Wales) Regulations 

2014”. 

(4) Ym mharagraff 12 o’r Atodlen i Reoliadau 

Trwyddedu Meistri Gangiau (Eithriadau) 2013(4)— 

(a) dileer y gair “or” ar ôl is-baragraff (a); a 

(b) ar ôl is-baragraff (b) mewnosoder “or;  

                                                                               
(1) 1968 p. 27; diwygiwyd adran 10 gan O.S. 1995/731, rheoliad 

28(2) ac Atodlen 14, paragraff (1).   
(2) 1974 p. 3; diwygiwyd adran 16(1)(c) gan O.S. 1995/731, 

rheoliad 28(2) ac Atodlen 14, paragraff 2(3). 
(3) 1986 p. 14; gwnaed diwygiadau perthnasol i Dabl A yn 

Atodlen 1 gan O.S. 2012/3039, rheoliadau 2 ac 16(1) a 
(4)(d). 

(4) O.S. 2013/2216. 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



 4 

(c) a certificate of competence or licence to 

kill animals under the Welfare of Animals at 

the Time of Killing (Wales) Regulations 

2014.” 

 

 

 

Rebecca Evans 

Y Dirprwy Weinidog Amaeth a Physgodfeydd, o dan 

awdurdod y Gweinidog Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a 

Thrafnidiaeth, un o Weinidogion Cymru 

 

6 Awst 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



Explanatory Memorandum to The Welfare of Animals at Time of Killing 
(Consequential Amendments) (Wales) Regulations 2014:  
 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Office of the Chief 
Veterinary Officer and is laid before the National Assembly for Wales in conjunction 
with the above subordinate legislation and in accordance with Standing Order 27.1  
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of the 
expected impact of The Welfare of Animals at Time of Killing (Consequential 
Amendments) (Wales) Regulations 2014 
 
 
 
 
Rebeca Evans 
 
Deputy Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries under authority of the Minister for 
Economy, Science and Transport, one of the Welsh Ministers  
 
6 August 2014 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



1. Description 

These Regulations make amendments consequential on the Welfare of Animals at 
the Time of Killing (Wales) Regulations 2014 (the 2014 Regulations) (S.I. 2014/951) 
(W. 92). They make consequential amendments to three Acts of Parliament and one 
Statutory Instrument to provide that those Acts and Instrument refer to certificates of 
competence and licences issued under the 2014 Regulations. 
 
The 2014 Regulations came into force on 20 May 2014.  They give effect, in Wales, 
to Council Regulation (EC) 1099/2009 on the protection of animals at the time of 
killing. They revoke and replace the Welfare of Animals (Slaughter and Killing) 
Regulations 1995 (“the 1995 Regulations”) in so far as they apply to Wales. 
 
Technical consequential amendments are required as a result of the 2014 
Regulations coming into force. It was agreed that the Secretary of State would take 
forward some consequential amendments to the following pieces of legislation: 

 

 the Firearms Act 1968; 

 the Slaughterhouses Act 1974; 

 the Animals (Scientific Procedures) Act 1986; and  

 the Gangmasters Licensing (Exclusions) Regulations 2013. 
 
The Secretary of State’s Regulations were laid on 16 May but they were revoked 
before they came into force by another set of Regulations laid on 16 May. Therefore, 
the consequential amendments still need to be applied in Wales. 

2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 
Committee 

 

These amending Regulations are made under the negative resolution procedure of 
the National Assembly for Wales as the provisions of these amending Regulations 
do not substantially affect the provisions of Acts of Parliament. 

3. Legislative background 

          These amending Regulations are made under section 2(2) of the European 
Communities Act 1972. The Welsh Ministers are designated for the purpose of 
section 2(2) in relation to the Common Agricultural Policy by a designation order (S.I. 
2010/2690).  

4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 

The 2014 Regulations require that a person carrying out listed slaughterhouse 
operations undergoes training and obtains a certificate of competence (whereas a 
slaughter man working under the 1995 Regulations would have instead required a 
licence). Therefore, the licence requirement under the 1995 Regulations has been 
replaced with a certificate of competence requirement under the 2014 Regulations. 
 
There are 4 references to licences issued under the 1995 Regulations elsewhere on 
the statute book and those references should now be modified as they apply to 
Wales. In view of the fact that the Secretary of State’s Regulations did not come into 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



force, amendments now need to be made to those 4 pieces of legislation in relation 
to Wales by the Welsh Ministers.   
 
 
The Consequential Amendments 
 
The Firearms Act 1968 currently provides that if a person holds a licence under the 
1995 Regulations in relation to a firearm as a slaughtering instrument, then he or she 
does not also require a Firearms Act licence. 
 
Section 16 of the Slaughterhouse Act 1974 confirms that Local Authorities may 
employ persons benefiting from a licence under the 1995 Regulations to work at 
public slaughterhouses. 
 
The Animals (Scientific Procedures) Act 1986 provides that animals slaughtered by a 
person authorised under the 1995 Regulations are exempt from the requirements of 
that 1986 Act, and no additional authorisation under the 1986 Act is required. 
 
The Gangmasters Licensing (Exclusions) 2013 currently provide that a person does 
not require a licence under the Gangmasters Licensing Act 2004 to recruit a 
slaughter man licensed under the 1995 Regulations. 
 
In those 4 items of legislation, the references to a licence under the 1995 Regulation 
needs to be amended to include a reference to a certificate of competence issued 
under the 2014 Regulations to ensure those qualified under the new system have 
parity in terms of the exemptions they benefit from in those other pieces of regulatory 
legislation. 
 
5. Consultation 
 
As these Regulations refer to technical changes to references within existing 
legislation no consultation has been under taken.   
 
A short consultation exercise on proposals to implement of the Council Regulation 
(EC) 1099/2009 was conducted by the Welsh Government between 24 September 
and 5 November 2012 that sought views on proposals to implement Council 
Regulation (EC) 1099/2009 on the Protection of Animals at the Time of Killing, in 
Wales.   
 
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/environmentandcountryside/120924protectionofani
mals/?status=closed&lang=en 

  
 
6. Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA)  
 
No Regulatory Impact Assessment has been prepared in respect of this instrument 
as there are no costs associated to business or voluntary sector as a result of these 
amending Regulations.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 16

http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/environmentandcountryside/120924protectionofanimals/?status=closed&lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/environmentandcountryside/120924protectionofanimals/?status=closed&lang=en


An RIA was presented to the National Assembly for Wales with the Welfare of 
Animals at Time of Killing (Wales) Regulations on 9 April 2014 These amending 
Regulations make minor technical changes and do not change the information 
presented in that RIA. 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



Adroddiad Drafft y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

 

CLA433 - Rheoliadau Cynnwys Sylffwr mewn Tanwydd Hylifol (Cymru a 

Lloegr) (Diwygio) 2014 

 

Gweithdrefn: Negyddol 

 

Mae’r rheoliadau hyn yn gweithredu gofynion newydd yr UE ar gyfyngu 

cynnwys sylffwr mewn tanwydd hylifol. Mae’r rheoliadau’n diwygio’r 

gyfraith bresennol trwy: (1) nodi eithriadau penodol ar y defnydd o rai 

mathau o danwydd sy’n cynnwys sylffwr; a (2) gwahardd y defnydd o 

rai mathau o danwydd sy’n cynnwys sylffwr. Hefyd, mae’n rhaid i’r 

Ysgrifennydd Gwladol wirio’r defnydd o’r fath danwydd trwy samplo 

cyson. 

 

Gwneir y rheoliadau hyn ar sail cyfansawdd, ac mae Llywodraeth y 

Deyrnas Gyfun a Llywodraeth Cymru yn cytuno bod hyn yn addas. 

 

1. Craffu Technegol 

 

Nodwyd un pwynt i gyflwyno adroddiad arno o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 

mewn perthynas â’r offeryn hwn: 

 

 Drafftir y rheoliadau yn Saesneg yn unig. Fodd bynnag, mae 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn datgan nad yw ei Chynllun Iaith Gymraeg 

yn mynnu bod y rheoliadau’n cael eu cyfieithu. Felly, o dan Reol 

Sefydlog 15.4, nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru yn ystyried bod 

cyfieithu’r rheoliadau’n addas nac yn rhesymol ymarferol. 

 

Rheol Sefydlog 21.2(ix) – nid yw’r offeryn wedi’i wneud yn 

Gymraeg ac yn Saesneg. 

 

2. Craffu ar Rinweddau 

 

Nodwyd un pwynt i gyflwyno adroddiad arno o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.3 

mewn perthynas â'r offeryn hwn: 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 18

Eitem 3.2



 Mae’r Nodiadau Esboniadol yn datgan bod copi o nodyn 

trawsddodiad (‘transposition notice’, sef nodyn i egluro sut 

mae’r gyfraith berthnasol yr UE yn cael ei thrawsddodi’n rhan o 

gyfraith ddomestig) ar gael o DEFRA, a bod copïau wedi’u rhoi 

yn y ddau Dŷ yn Senedd San Steffan. Fe fyddai’n ddefnyddiol pe 

bai Llywodraeth Cymru wedi darparu copi o’r nodyn 

trawsddodiad gyda’r offeryn, er mwyn hwyluso gwaith craffu’r 

Pwyllgor. 

 

 

 

 

Rheol Sefydlog 21.3(ii) – mae’r offeryn yn codi materion polisi 

cyhoeddus sy’n debyg o fod o ddiddordeb i’r Cynulliad. 

 

Cynghorwyr Cyfreithiol 

Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Awst 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2014 No. 1975 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ENGLAND AND 

WALES 

The Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2014 

Made - - - - 21st July 2014 

Laid before Parliament 25th July 2014 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales 25th July 2014 

Coming into force - - 29th August 2014 

These Regulations are made in exercise of the powers conferred by section 2(2) of the European 

Communities Act 1972(a). 

The Secretary of State is designated(b) for the purposes of section 2(2) of that Act in relation to 

the environment. The Welsh Ministers are vested with a designation(c) for the purposes of section 

2(2) of that Act in relation to measures relating to the assessment and management of ambient air 

quality and compliance with air quality limit values, target values and objectives. 

The Secretary of State, in relation to England, and the Welsh Ministers, in relation to Wales, make 

the following Regulations. 

Citation, commencement and extent 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and 

Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 and come into force on 29th August 2014. 

(2) These Regulations extend to England and Wales. 

Amendment of the Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 

2. The Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 2007(d) are 

amended in accordance with regulations 3 to 9. 

Regulation 2 

3. For regulation 2 (interpretation) substitute— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1972 c.68. 
(b) S.I. 2008/301. 
(c) S.I. 2000/2812. By virtue of section 162 of, and paragraph 28(1) of Schedule 11 to, the Government of Wales Act 2006, 

c.32, this designation of the National Assembly for Wales now vests in the Welsh Ministers. 
(d) S.I. 2007/79. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 2 

“2.—(1) In these Regulations— 

“combustion plant” means any technical apparatus in which fuels are oxidised in order 

to use the heat generated; 

“Council Directive 1999/32/EC” means Council Directive 1999/32/EC relating to a 

reduction in the sulphur content of certain liquid fuels and amending Directive 

93/12/EEC(a); 

“gas oil” means any petroleum-derived liquid fuel—  

(a) that falls within CN code 2710 19 25, 2710 19 29, 2710 19 47, 2710 19 48, 2710 

20 17 or 2710 20 19; or 

(b) where less than 65 per cent by volume (including losses) distils at 250°C and at 

least 85 per cent by volume (including losses) distils at 350°C by the ASTM D86 

method, 

but excluding marine fuels, diesel fuels (as defined by Article 2(2) of Directive 98/70/EC of 

the European Parliament and of the Council relating to the quality of petrol and diesel 

fuels(b)) and fuels used in non-road mobile machinery or agricultural tractors; 

“heavy fuel oil” means any petroleum-derived liquid fuel—  

(a) that falls within CN code 2710 19 51 to 2710 19 68, 2710 20 31, 2710 20 35 or 

2710 20 39; 

(b) which, by reason of its distillation limits, falls within the category of heavy oils 

intended for use as fuel and of which less than 65 per cent by volume (including 

losses) distils at 250°C by the ASTM D86 method; or 

(c) where the distillation cannot be determined by the ASTM D86 method, that is 

categorised as heavy fuel oil, 

but excluding marine fuel and gas oil; 

“marine fuel” means any petroleum-derived liquid fuel intended for use or in use on board a 

vessel, including those fuels defined in ISO 8217(c); 

“sulphur content of liquid fuels permit” has the meaning given in regulation 4(5)(b). 

(2) In paragraph (1)— 

(a) an ASTM method means a method laid down by the American Society for Testing 

and Materials in the 1976 edition of standard definitions and specifications for 

petroleum and lubricating products(d); and 

(b) the reference to a numbered CN code is a reference to the code set out in Annex I 

to Council Regulation 2658/87 on the tariff and statistical nomenclature and on the 

Common Customs Tariff(e). 

(3) Expressions used in these Regulations that also appear in Council Directive 

1999/32/EC have the same meaning as they do in that Directive.”. 

Regulation 4 

4. For regulation 4 (maximum sulphur content of heavy fuel oil) substitute— 

“4.—(1) No person shall use any heavy fuel oil that has a sulphur content exceeding 1 per 

cent by mass. 

(2) Until 1st January 2016, paragraph (1) shall not apply to the use of heavy fuel oil— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) OJ L 121, 11.5.1999, p.13, last amended by Directive 2012/33/EU (OJ L 327, 27.11.2012, p. 1). 
(b) OJ L 350, 28.12.1998, p.58, last amended by Commission Directive 2011/63/EU (OJ L 147, 2.6.2011, p. 15). 
(c) ISO 8217 (1996) is described in the British Standard entitled, “Specification for Petroleum Fuels for marine oil engines and 

boilers”, published under the numbers BS MA100:1996 and ISO 8217:1996, which came into effect on 15th August 1996. 
(d) The ASTM method is described in the 1999 Annual Book of the ASTM Standards: Section 5-Petroleum 

Products,Lubricants and Fossil Fuels, published by the American Society for Testing and Materials, November 1999. 
(e) OJ L 256, 7.9.1987, p. 1, last amended by Council Regulation (EU) 2013/1326 (OJ L 334, 13.12.2013, p. 4). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 3 

(a) in a new plant that— 

 (i) is subject to Article 4(1) of Directive 2001/80/EC and is operated in 

accordance with a permit containing a condition that emission limit values for 

sulphur dioxide are at least as stringent as those set out for new plants in Part 

A of Annex IV of that Directive; or 

 (ii) is subject to Article 4(2) of Directive 2001/80/EC and is operated in 

accordance with a permit containing a condition that emission limit values for 

sulphur dioxide are at least as stringent as those set out for new plants in Part 

B of Annex IV of that Directive; 

(b) in an existing plant— 

 (i) operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition that emission 

limit values for sulphur dioxide are at least as stringent as those set out for 

new plants in Part A of Annex IV of Directive 2001/80/EC; or 

 (ii) that is a participating plant operated in accordance with a permit containing a 

condition prohibiting the monthly average emissions of sulphur dioxide from 

the plant from exceeding 1,700 mg/Nm
3
 at an oxygen content in the flue gas 

of 3 per cent by volume on a dry basis; 

(c) in a combustion plant, other than a plant to which sub-paragraph (a) or (b) applies, 

that is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition prohibiting the 

monthly average of emissions of sulphur dioxide from the plant from exceeding 

1,700 mg/Nm
3
 at an oxygen content in the flue gas of 3 per cent by volume on a 

dry basis; or 

(d) in a combustion plant, other than a gas engine, a gas turbine or a plant to which 

sub-paragraph (a) or (b) applies, that— 

 (i) forms part of a refinery; and 

 (ii) is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition that the 

monthly average of emissions of sulphur dioxide averaged over all 

combustion plants in the refinery, irrespective of the type of fuel or fuel 

combination used, does not exceed 1,700 mg/Nm
3 

at an oxygen content in the 

flue gas of 3 per cent by volume on a dry basis. 

(3) As from 1st January 2016, paragraph (1) shall not apply to the use of heavy fuel oil— 

(a) in a combustion plant that— 

 (i) falls within the scope of Chapter III of Directive 2010/75/EU; and 

 (ii) is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition that emission 

limit values for sulphur dioxide are at least as stringent as those set out in 

Annex V to that Directive; 

(b) in a combustion plant that— 

 (i) falls within the scope of Chapter III of Directive 2010/75/EU; 

 (ii) is not subject to the emission limit values for sulphur dioxide set out in Annex 

V to that Directive; and 

 (iii) is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition prohibiting the 

monthly average emissions of sulphur dioxide from the plant from exceeding 

1,700 mg/Nm
3
 at an oxygen content in the flue gas of 3 per cent by volume on 

a dry basis; 

(c) in a combustion plant, other than a plant to which sub-paragraph (a) or (b) applies, 

that is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition prohibiting the 

monthly average emissions of sulphur dioxide from exceeding 1,700 mg/Nm
3
 at an 

oxygen content in the flue gas of 3 per cent by volume on a dry basis; or 

(d) in a combustion plant, other than a gas engine, a gas turbine or a plant to which 

sub-paragraph (a) or (b) applies, that— 

 (i) forms part of a refinery; and 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 4 

 (ii) is operated in accordance with a permit containing a condition that the 

monthly average of emissions of sulphur dioxide averaged over all 

combustion plants in the refinery, irrespective of the type or fuel or fuel 

combination used, does not exceed 1,700 mg/Nm
3
 at an oxygen content in the 

flue gas of 3 per cent by volume on a dry basis. 

(4) An authority that grants a permit referred to in paragraph (2) or (3) shall carry out 

appropriate monitoring of emissions of sulphur dioxide to ensure that the limitations on 

emissions contained in that permit are not exceeded. 

(5) In this regulation— 

“Directive 2001/80/EC” means Directive 2001/80/EC of the European Parliament and 

of the Council on the limitation of emissions of certain pollutants into the air from large 

combustion plants(a); 

“Directive 2010/75/EU” means Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and 

of the Council on industrial emissions (integrated pollution prevention and control) 

(Recast)(b); 

“existing plant” and “new plant” have the meaning given in Article 2(10) and 2(9) 

respectively of Directive 2001/80/EC; 

“gas engine” and “gas turbine” have the meaning given in Article 3(34) and (33) 

respectively of Directive 2010/75/EU; 

“participating plant” has the meaning given in regulation 3(1)(a) of the Large 

Combustion Plants (National Emission Reduction Plan) Regulations 2007(c); 

“permit” means— 

(a) if the operation of the combustion plant requires an authorisation or permit— 

 (i) an authorisation under Part I of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 

(integrated pollution control and air pollution control by local authorities)(d); 

or 

 (ii) a permit under regulations made under section 2 of the Pollution Prevention 

and Control Act 1999 (regulation of polluting activities)(e); or 

(b)  a sulphur content of liquid fuels permit which— 

 (i) was granted for the purposes of the Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England 

and Wales) Regulations 2000(f) and which is still subsisting; or 

 (ii) is granted under these Regulations. 

(6) The Schedule (sulphur content of liquid fuels permits) has effect.”. 

Regulation 5 

5. For regulation 5 (maximum sulphur content in gas oil) substitute— 

“5. No person shall use any gas oil that has a sulphur content exceeding 0.1 per cent by 

mass.”. 

Regulation 6 

6. For regulation 6 (sampling and analysis) substitute— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) OJ L 309, 27.11.2001, p. 1, last amended by Directive 2009/31/EC (OJ L 140, 5.6.2009, p. 114). 
(b) OJ L 334, 17.12.2010, p. 17. 
(c) S.I. 2007/2325; relevant amending instruments are S.I. 2007/3476, 2007/3538, 2010/675. 
(d) 1990 c.43. 
(e) 1999 c.24. Regulations made under that section relevant to this regulation are S.I. 2010/675, to which there are amendments 

not relevant to this regulation, and S.I. 2013/971. 
(f) S.I. 2000/1460. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 5 

“6.—(1) The Secretary of State shall take all necessary measures to ensure that periodic 

sampling is carried out of heavy fuel oil and gas oil and that the samples are analysed to 

check that the use of those fuels complies with regulations 4(1) and 5. 

(2) Sampling shall be carried out with sufficient frequency and in such a way that the 

Secretary of State is satisfied that the samples are representative of the fuels examined. 

(3) The samples shall be analysed without undue delay. 

(4) The reference method adopted for determining the sulphur content of fuels sampled 

pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be defined by EN ISO 8754:2003 or EN ISO 

14596:2007(a).”. 

New regulation 9 

7. After regulation 8 (revocation and saving) insert— 

“Review 

9. The Secretary of State must from time to time—  

(a) carry out, in relation to England, a review of these Regulations; 

(b) set out the conclusions of the review in a report; and 

(c) publish the report. 

(2) In carrying out the review the Secretary of State must, so far as reasonable, have 

regard to how Council Directive 1999/32/EC, which is being implemented by means of 

these Regulations, is implemented in other member States. 

(3) The report must in particular— 

(a) set out the objectives intended to be achieved by the regulatory system established 

by these Regulations; 

(b) assess the extent to which those objectives are achieved, and 

(c) assess whether those objectives remain appropriate and, if so, the extent to which 

they could be achieved with a system that imposes less regulation. 

(4) The first report under this regulation must be published before 29th August 2019. 

(5) Reports under this regulation are afterwards to be published at intervals not exceeding 

five years.”. 

Schedule 1 

8.—(1) Schedule 1 (sulphur content of liquid fuel permits) is amended as follows. 

(2) In the heading to that Schedule— 

(a) omit “1”; and 

(b) for “Regulation 4(5)” substitute “Regulation 4(6)”. 

(3) In paragraph (1) for the words “an existing plant, new plant or other combustion plant” 

substitute “a combustion plant”, and after “regulation 4(2)” add “or (3)”. 

(4) At the end of paragraph (2) add “or (3).”. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) EN ISO 8754:2003 is described in the British Standard entitled, “Petroleum Products-Determination of Sulphur content-

Energy-dispersive X-ray fluorescence methods”, published under the number BS EN ISO 8754:2003, which came into 
effect on 14 August 2003 as amended by Amendment No. 14812 Corrigendum No. 1, which came into effect on 27 October 
2003. EN ISO 14596:2007 is described in the British Standard entitled, “Petroleum Products. Determination of sulphur 
content.  Wavelength-dispersive X-ray florescence spectrometry”, published under the number BS EN ISO 14596:2007, 
which came into effect on 31 October 2007. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 6 

Schedule 2 

9.—(1) Schedule 2 (technical requirements for analysis samples) is omitted. 

 

 

 

 Dan Rogerson 

 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

15th July 2014 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

 

 

Signatory text 

 

 John Griffiths 

 Minister for Natural Resources, Culture and Sport 

21st July 2014 One of the Welsh Ministers 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 

2007 (S.I. 2007/79) (“the 2007 Regulations”) to implement matters concerning heavy fuel oil and 

gas oil (except marine fuel) in Council Directive 1999/32/EC relating to a reduction in the sulphur 

content of certain liquid fuels (OJ L 121, 11.5.1999, p. 13) as amended by Directive 2012/33/EU 

of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the sulphur content of marine fuels (OJ 

L 327, 27.11.2012, p. 1). 

Regulation 3 substitutes a new regulation 2 (interpretation) into the 2007 Regulations to amend the 

definitions of “gas oil” and “heavy fuel oil” and make other minor amendments. Regulation 4 

substitutes a new regulation 4 (maximum sulphur content of heavy fuel oil) into the 2007 

Regulations to amend the exceptions to the prohibition on the use of heavy fuel oil with a sulphur 

content exceeding 1 per cent by mass. Regulation 6 substitutes a new regulation 6 (sampling and 

analysis) into the 2007 Regulations to amend the reference method to be adopted for determining 

the sulphur content of fuels sampled pursuant to regulation 6(1) and make other minor 

amendments. 

Regulation 7 inserts a review clause into the 2007 Regulations that will apply to the Secretary of 

State in relation to England. Regulation 8 makes minor consequential amendments to Schedule 1 

of the 2007 Regulations. Regulation 9 omits Schedule 2 of the 2007 Regulations. 

A full impact assessment in relation to England has not been produced for this instrument as no 

impact on the private or voluntary sector is foreseen.  

The Welsh Ministers’ Code of Practice on the carrying out of Regulatory Impact Assessments was 

considered in relation to these Regulations. As a result, it was not considered necessary to carry 

out a regulatory impact assessment as to the likely costs and benefits of complying with these 

Regulations. 

A transposition note is available from Industrial Pollution, Department for Environment, Food and 

Rural Affairs, Nobel House, 17 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3JR and at www.defra.gov.uk. 

Copies have been placed in the library of each House of Parliament. 

Copies of the British Standards publications referred to in these Regulations may be obtained from 

any of the outlets operated by the British Standards Institution, or by post from the British 

Standards Institution at Standards House, 389 Chiswick High Road, London W4 4AL. The 1999 

Annual Book at ASTM Standards is available from the American Society for Testing and 

Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428, USA. 

 

 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 
Explanatory Memorandum to The Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels 
(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by The Department for 
Natural Resources, Culture and Sport and is laid before the National 
Assembly for Wales in conjunction with the above subordinate legislation and 
in accordance with Standing Order 27.1.   
 
 
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of The Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and 
Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.  
 
 
 
 
John Griffiths AM 
 
Minister for Natural Resources, Culture and Sport 
 
21 July 2014  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 
 
 
 
1. Description 
 
1.1 Council Directive 1999/32/EC („the Principal Directive‟) sets limitations on 
the sulphur content of certain petroleum derived liquid fuels that are used in 
combustion plant on land and at sea. The limitations relating to land based 
plant were transposed in England and Wales by the Sulphur Content of Liquid 
Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 2007. The Principal Directive was 
amended in 2012 by Directive 2012/33/EU. The Sulphur Content of Liquid 
Fuels (England and Wales) (Amendment)  Regulations 2014 transpose EC 
Directive 2012/33/EU in respect of petroleum derived liquid fuels that are used 
in combustion plant on land. 

  
2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional and Legislative 

Affairs Committee 
 
2.1 The legislation is being made on a composite basis.  The Sulphur Content 

of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 were made 
compositely and this established approach remains appropriate for The 
Sulphur Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014.  
 

2.2 The European Communities Act 1972 provides discretion as to what 
procedure to use in making subordinate legislation. As the Regulations 
merely give effect to an amending provision of EU law, application of the 
negative procedure is considered appropriate.  

 
3. Legislative background 
 
3.1 Council Directive 1999/32/EC (“the principal directive”) imposes limitations 

on the sulphur content of certain petroleum-derived liquid fuels used in 
plant on land and at sea.  The provisions concerning the use of those fuels 
in plant on land were transposed in England and Wales by the Sulphur 
Content of Liquid Fuels (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (SI 
2007/79) (“the 2007 Regulations”). The principal directive was amended in 
2012 by Directive 2012/33/EU (“the 2012 directive”) and it is now 
necessary to transpose these amendments. 

 
3.2 The National Assembly for Wales was designated under section 2(2) of 

the European Communities Act 1972 in respect of the assessment and 
management of ambient air quality and compliance with air quality limit 
values, targets and objectives. This designation now rests with the Welsh 
Ministers by virtue of section 162 of, and paragraph 30 to, the Government 
of Wales Act 2006 („GOWA 2006‟). These Regulations are subject to the 
negative procedure.    
   

Tudalen y pecyn 27



4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 
 
4.1 The proposed Regulations transpose the 2012 Directive, by making 

amendments to the 2007 Regulations. These amendments relate to:  
 

 the definitions of „heavy fuel oil‟ and „gas oil‟;  
 

 exceptions to the general prohibition on the use of heavy fuel oil with a 
sulphur content of more than 1% by mass;  

 

 the prohibition on the use of gas oils with a sulphur content of 0.1% by 
mass (removal of a higher maximum sulphur limit  -  0.2% by mass - 
that applied to gas oils used in the period up to 1 January 2008); and 
 

 the requirement for member states to take all necessary measures to 
check by sampling, that the sulphur content of fuels complies with the 
above limits with reference to various sampling and analysis 
requirements. The 2012 Directive includes a requirement for sampling 
to be carried out „periodically‟ and analysed without undue delay. It also 
provides the reference method to be adopted for determining the 
sulphur content of sampled fuels.    
 

4.2 The changes being made are limited in nature, and affect only the two 
main sectors involved in industrial regulation – ie: Local Authorities, who 
are the enforcers of the requirements, and those industrial installations 
which are regulated under the Environmental Permitting regime across 
England and Wales.   

 
5. Consultation  
 
5.1 In April 2014, Defra and the Welsh Government published a consultation 

document seeking views on the transposition of the amendments required 
by the 2012 directive. It was agreed that this should be a short, 3 week 
consultation, targeted at local authorities, who are the enforcers of the 
requirements, and relevant industry representatives. There were two 
responses to that consultation exercise, both of which expressed support 
for the transposition proposals, as outlined in para.4 above.      

 
 
Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA)  
 
The Welsh Ministers‟ Code of Practice on the carrying out of Regulatory 
Impact Assessments was considered in relation to these Regulations. As a 
result it was not considered necessary to carry out a regulatory impact 
assessment as to the likely costs and benefits of complying with these 
Regulations.  
 
This legislation has no impact on the statutory duties (sections 77 -79 GOWA 
2006) or statutory partners (sections 72-75 GOWA 2006).   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



The proposed Regulations are being made in order to transpose the 2012 
Directive. They make routine technical amendments to the 2007 Regulations. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



1 
 

Adroddiad drafft y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

CLA(4)-21-14 

 

CLA431 - Rheoliadau Clefydau Moch 2014 

 

Mae'r rheoliadau cyfansawdd hyn yn gweithredu cyfraith yr UE ar gyfer rheoli: 

 

a) clefyd pothellog y moch ('SVD') a geir yn y Gyfarwyddeb Cyngor 

92/119/EEC sy'n cyflwyno mesurau cymunedol cyffredinol ar gyfer 

rheoli rhai clefydau anifeiliaid a mesurau penodol ynghylch clefyd 

pothellog y moch; 

 

b) clwy clasurol y moch ('CSF') a geir yn y Gyfarwyddeb Cyngor 

2001/89/EC ar fesur cymunedol i reoli clwy clasurol y moch; 

 

c) clwy Affricanaidd y moch ('ASF') a geir yn y Gyfarwyddeb Cyngor 

2002/60/EC sy'n nodi'r trefniadau penodol ar gyfer rheoli clwy 

Affricanaidd y moch a diwygio Cyfarwyddeb 92/199/EEC o ran clefyd 

Teschen a chlwy Affricanaidd y moch. 

 

Dim ond pan fo amheuaeth o ASF, CSF neu SVD neu os cânt eu cadarnhau 

ym Mhrydain Fawr y mae'r Rheoliadau yn gymwys. 

 

At hynny, mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn disodli'r offerynnau statudol a ganlyn, 

yng Nghymru: 

 

 Gorchymyn Clwy Affricanaidd y Moch (Cymru) 2003 

 Gorchymyn Clwy Clasurol y Moch (Cymru) 2003 

 Rheoliadau Clefyd Pothellog y Moch (Cymru) 2009 

 Rheoliadau Clefyd Pothellog y Moch (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2009  

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30

Eitem 3.3



2 
 

 

Gweithdrefn:  Negyddol  

 

1. Materion technegol: craffu  

 

Nodwyd y pwyntiau a ganlyn i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol 

Sefydlog 21.2 mewn perthynas â'r offeryn hwn: 

 

1.  Oherwydd eu bod yn rheoliadau cyfansawdd sy'n destun 

gweithdrefn seneddol San Steffan, mae'r Rheoliadau hyn wedi'u gwneud yn 

Saesneg yn unig. 

 

[Rheol Sefydlog 21.2(ix) – nad yw'r offeryn wedi'i wneud yn Gymraeg ac yn 

Saesneg.] 

 

 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi darparu'r ymateb a ganlyn: 

 

"Bydd y Rheoliadau cyfansawdd hyn yn berthnasol i Brydain Fawr ac yn 

ddarostyngedig i’r weithdrefn penderfyniad negyddol yng Nghynulliad 

Cenedlaethol Cymru ac yn Senedd y DU.  Felly, nid ystyrir ei bod yn rhesymol 

ymarferol i’r offeryn hwn gael ei wneud, na'i osod, yn ddwyieithog." 

2. Rhinweddau: craffu  

 

Ni nodwyd unrhyw bwyntiau i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 

21.3 mewn perthynas â’r offeryn hwn. 

 

Cynghorwyr Cyfreithiol 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

 

Awst 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2014 No. 1894 

ANIMALS 

ANIMAL HEALTH 

The Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014 

Made - - - - 16th July 2014 

Laid before Parliament 18th July 2014 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales 18th July 2014 

Coming into force - - 14th August 2014 

CONTENTS 

PART 1 

Introduction 

 

1. Citation, extent and commencement 

2. Interpretation 

3. Occupier and changes of occupier 

4. Exemptions 

 

PART 2 

Notification and investigation of suspicion of disease 

 

5. Notification requirements 

6. Initial measures following notification 

7. Measures on suspicion of disease 

8. Measures at contact premises 

9. Temporary control zone 

 

PART 3 

Infected premises 

 

10. Designating premises as infected premises when the presence of disease is 

confirmed 

11. Killing pigs on infected premises 

12. Conservation and related measures 

13. Disposal of carcases and preliminary cleansing and disinfection 

14. Notice requiring secondary cleansing and disinfection 

15. Use of approved disinfectants 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 2 

16. Special measures to prevent the spread of African swine fever virus by vectors 

17. Revocation of a regulation 10 notice 

18. Restocking and testing with sentinel pigs on infected or contact premises 

 

PART 4 

Suspicion and confirmation of disease at a slaughterhouse 

 

19. Measures on suspicion and confirmation of disease at a slaughterhouse 

 

PART 5 

Suspicion and confirmation of disease in feral pigs 

 

20. Measures on suspicion of disease in feral pigs 

21. Measures on confirmation of disease in feral pigs 

22. Emergency vaccination of feral pigs against classical swine fever 

 

PART 6 

Area controls following confirmation of disease in domestic pigs 

 

23. Protection and surveillance zones 

24. Declarations of zones 

25. Removal of protection and surveillance zones 

26. Premises straddling a protection or a surveillance zone 

27. Publicity of declared zones 

 

PART 7 

Vaccination 

 

28. Prohibition on vaccination except in certain cases 

29. Declaration of an emergency vaccination zone following confirmation of classical 

swine fever 

30. Pigs vaccinated against classical swine fever 

31. Compulsory vaccination and controls for pigs vaccinated against swine vesicular 

disease 

 

PART 8 

Inspection, enforcement and miscellaneous provisions 

 

32. Notices 

33. Licences 

34. Powers of inspectors 

35. Notices following a contravention of movement controls 

36. Powers of inspectors in case of default 

37. Compensation for pigs killed and things seized 

38. Obstruction 

39. Offences and penalties 

40. Offences by bodies corporate, partnerships and unincorporated associations 

41. Enforcement 

42. Exceptional circumstances 

43. Miscellaneous revocations, disapplication and consequential amendments 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 3 

44. Review of the Regulations in England 

 

 SCHEDULE 1 — Measures on suspect, contact and infected premises 

 SCHEDULE 2 — Measures in a feral pig investigation or control zone 

 SCHEDULE 3 

 PART 1 — Measures in a protection zone 

 PART 2 — Measures in a surveillance zone 

 SCHEDULE 4 — Cleansing and disinfection of vehicles 

 SCHEDULE 5 — Revocations 

The Secretary of State and the Welsh Ministers are each designated(a) for the purposes of section 

2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972(b) in relation to the common agricultural policy of 

the European Union. 

These Regulations make provision for a purpose mentioned in that section and it appears to the 

Secretary of State and the Welsh Ministers that it is expedient for the references in these 

Regulations to the following European Union instruments to be construed as references to such 

instruments as amended from time to time— 

(a) Council Directive 92/119/EEC introducing general Community measures for the control 

of certain animal diseases and specific measures relating to swine vesicular disease(c); 

(b) Council Directive 2001/89/EC on Community measures for the control of classical swine 

fever(d); and 

(c) Council Directive 2002/60/EC laying down specific provisions for the control of African 

swine fever(e). 

The Secretary of State, in relation to England and Scotland, and the Welsh Ministers, in relation to 

Wales, make these Regulations under the powers conferred by section 2(2) of, as read with 

paragraph 1A of Schedule 2(f) to, the European Communities Act 1972. 

 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) For the Secretary of State, see S.I. 1972/1811, (for the Welsh Ministers S.I. 2010/2690) in relation to the common 

agricultural policy. The function of the former Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food of making regulations under 
section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972 was transferred to the Secretary of State by the Ministry of Agriculture, 
Fisheries and Food (Dissolution) Order 2002 (S.I. 2002/794). 

(b) 1972 c. 68. section 2(2) was amended by the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 (c.51), section 27(1)(a), and the 
European Union (Amendment) Act 2008 (c.7), Part 1 of the Schedule. Under section 57(1) of the Scotland Act 1998 (c. 46), 
despite the transfer to Scottish Ministers of functions in relation to implementing obligations under EU law in relation to 
devolved matters, the Secretary of State retains power to exercise such functions in or as regards Scotland. Under paragraph 
5 of Schedule 3 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32), despite the transfer to the Welsh Ministers of functions in 
relation to implementing obligations under EU law in relation to devolved matters, the Secretary of State retains power to 
exercise such functions as regards Wales. 

(c) OJ No L 62, 15.3.1993, p.69 as last amended by Council Decision 2009/470/EC (OJ No L 155, 18.6.2009, p. 30). 
(d) OJ No L 316, 1.12.2001, p.5 as last amended by Council Directive 2008/73/EC (OJ No L 219, 14.8.2008, p. 40). 
(e) OJ No L 192, 20.7.2002, p.27 as last amended by Council Directive 2008/73/EC. 
(f) Paragraph 1A was inserted by section 28 of the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 (c. 46) and amended by the 

European Union (Amendment) Act 2008, Part 1 of the Schedule, and S.I. 2007/1388. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 4 

PART 1 

Introduction 

Citation, extent and commencement 

1.—(1) These Regulations— 

(a) may be cited as the Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014; 

(b) extend to Great Britain; and 

(c) come into force on 14th August 2014. 

Interpretation 

2.—(1) In these Regulations— 

“carcase” means a carcase or part of a carcase of a pig, but does not include a sample taken 

from a carcase; 

“Chief Veterinary Officer” means the Chief Veterinary Officer for England, Scotland or 

Wales dependent upon where disease is present; 

“contact premises” means premises that are designated as contact premises under regulation 

8(1); 

“Council Directive 92/119/EEC” means Council Directive 92/119/EEC introducing general 

Community measures for the control of certain animal diseases and specific measures relating 

to swine vesicular disease as amended from time to time; 

“Council Directive 2001/89/EC” means Council Directive 2001/89/EC on Community 

measures for the control of classical swine fever as amended from time to time; 

“Council Directive 2002/60/EC” means Council Directive 2002/60/EC laying down specific 

provisions for the control of African swine fever as amended from time to time; 

“designated slaughterhouse” means a slaughterhouse designated by the appropriate authority 

under the Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (England) Regulations 2008(a), the 

Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Scotland) Order 2008(b) or the Products of 

Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Wales) Regulations 2008(c); 

“Diagnostic Manual” refers to the Diagnostic Manual contained in— 

(a) Commission Decision 2000/428/EC establishing diagnostic procedures, sampling 

methods and criteria for the evaluation of the results of laboratory tests for the 

confirmation and differential diagnosis of swine vesicular disease(d), 

(b) Commission Decision 2002/106/EC approving a Diagnostic Manual establishing 

diagnostic procedures, sampling methods and criteria for evaluation of the laboratory 

tests for the confirmation of classical swine fever(e), 

(c) Commission Decision 2003/422/EC approving an African swine fever Diagnostic 

Manual(f); 

“disease” in these Regulations, unless the context refers to only one or more of these diseases, 

means any of the following diseases of pig (and includes the virus of any such disease)— 

(a) African swine fever; 

(b) classical swine fever (otherwise known as hog cholera); and 

(c) swine vesicular disease; 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2008/465, amended by S.I. 2009/1297, 2012/2897. 
(b) S.S.I. 2008/158, amended by S.S.I. 2009/173, 2009/174. 
(c) S.I. 2008/1275 (W.132), amended by S.I. 2009/1373 (W.136), 2009/1910 (W.173). 
(d) OJ No L 167, 7.7.2000 p.22. 
(e) OJ No L 39, 9.2.2002, p.71, as amended by Commission Decision 2003/859/EC (OJ No L.324, 11.12.2003, p.55). 
(f) OJ No L 143, 11.6.2003, p.5. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 5 

“equipment”, except in regulation 34(9)(a), means any equipment that has been in contact with 

pigs or faeces, blood or other bodily fluids from a pig; 

“feral pig” means any non-captive pig which is living in the wild; 

“infected premises” means premises that have been designated as infected premises under 

regulation 10; 

“inspector” means a person appointed to be an inspector for the purposes of the Animal Health 

Act 1981(a) by an appropriate authority or by a local authority, and, when used in relation to 

an officer of the appropriate authority, includes a veterinary inspector; 

“keeper” means any person who owns or is responsible for a pig, whether on a permanent or 

temporary basis; 

“livestock” means any hoofed animals other than equidae; 

“local authority” means— 

(a) in England— 

(i) where there is an authority which is the sole principal council for its local 

government area (“a unitary authority”), that authority; 

(ii) where there is not a unitary authority— 

(aa) in a metropolitan district, the council of that district; 

(bb) in a non-metropolitan county, the county council; 

(cc) in each London borough, the council of that borough; or 

(dd) in the City of London, the Common Council; 

(b) in Wales, a county council or a county borough council; 

(c) in Scotland, a council constituted under section 2 of the Local Government etc. (Scotland) 

Act 1994(b); 

“marker vaccine” means a vaccine which results in a clear differentiation between a 

vaccinated pig and a diseased pig; 

“occupier” means any person having day-to-day responsibility for the premises or for any pigs 

on the premises; 

“pig” means any animal of the Suidae family; 

“premises” includes any land, building or other place; 

“sentinel pig” means a pig introduced to infected premises after cleansing and disinfection in 

accordance with regulation 18 for surveillance purposes; 

“seropositive pig” means a pig identified as having antibodies against swine vesicular disease, 

African swine fever or classical swine fever; 

“suspect premises” means premises that are designated as suspect premises under regulation 

7(2); 

“vectors” means ticks of the species Ornithodorus erraticus or any other tick or insect species 

specified by the appropriate authority; 

“veterinary inspector” means a veterinary inspector appointed by an appropriate authority for 

the purposes of the Animal Health Act 1981. 

(2) In these Regulations— 

(a) “appropriate authority” means— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Section 89 of the Animal Health Act 1981 c.22. Functions conferred under that Act on “the Ministers” (as defined in section 

86) are now exercisable in relation to England by the Secretary of State. Functions of “the Ministers” were transferred, so 
far as exercisable by the Secretaries of State for Scotland and Wales, to the Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food by 
the Transfer of Functions (Agriculture and Food) Order 1999 (S.I. 1999/3141). Functions of the Minister of Agriculture, 
Fisheries and Food were then transferred to the Secretary of State by the Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food 
(Dissolution) Order 2002 (S.I. 2002/794). 

(b) 1994 c. 39 amended by the Environment Act 1995 (c.25), section 120(1) and Schedule 22, paragraph 232(1).   

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 36



 6 

(i) the Secretary of State where the functions are exercised in England; 

(ii) the Scottish Ministers where the functions are exercised in Scotland; and 

(iii) the Welsh Ministers where the functions are exercised in Wales; 

(b) terms used in the European Union instruments have the same meaning as in those 

instruments. 

(3) In paragraph (2)(b) “the European Union instruments” means— 

(a) Council Directive 92/119/EEC; 

(b) Council Directive 2001/89/EC; 

(c) Council Directive 2002/60/EC; 

(d) Commission Decision 2000/428/EC establishing diagnostic procedures, sampling 

methods and criteria for the evaluation of the results of laboratory tests for the 

confirmation and differential diagnosis of swine vesicular disease; 

(e) Commission Decision 2002/106/EC approving a Diagnostic Manual establishing 

diagnostic procedures, sampling methods and criteria for evaluation of the laboratory 

tests for the confirmation of classical swine fever; and 

(f) Commission Decision 2003/422/EC approving an African swine fever Diagnostic 

Manual. 

Occupier and changes of occupier 

3.—(1) Any notice that is required or authorised under these Regulations to be served on the 

occupier may be served on a person appearing to the person serving the notice to be the occupier. 

(2) Where a notice has been served on a person referred to in paragraph (1), and it later becomes 

clear to the person who served the notice that another person is the keeper of the pigs then a 

replacement notice must be served on the other person. 

(3) Where there is a change in occupation of premises subject to any controls or restrictions 

under these Regulations— 

(a) the existing occupier must immediately notify the appropriate authority of the details of 

the new occupier before the change in occupation takes place; and 

(b) if the new occupier does not have day-to-day responsibility for restricted pigs under these 

Regulations the new occupier must allow the keeper of the restricted pigs, or any person 

acting on behalf of the keeper, to enter the premises to feed or otherwise attend to the 

welfare of the pigs during the period of control or restriction and for seven days following 

the ending of such restrictions. 

Exemptions 

4.—(1) These Regulations do not apply— 

(a) to anything done under the terms of a licence granted under the Specified Animal 

Pathogens Order 2008(a), the Specified Animal Pathogens (Scotland) Order 2009(b) or 

the Specified Animal Pathogens (Wales) Order 2008(c); or 

(b) at any border inspection post within the meaning of, and for so long as it remains 

approved for the purposes of, regulation 11 of the Trade in Animals and Related Products 

Regulations 2011(d), regulation 9 of the Trade in Animals and Related Products 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2008/944; relevant amending instrument is S.I. 2009/3083. 
(b) S.S.I. 2009/45; relevant amending instrument is S.S.I. 2009/394. 
(c) S.I. 2008/1270 (W.129); relevant amending instrument is S.I. 2009/3234 (W.281). 
(d) S.I. 2011/1197, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 37



 7 

(Scotland) Regulations 2012(a) or regulation 11 of the Trade in Animals and Related 

Products (Wales) Regulations 2011(b). 

(2) Parts 2 and 3 do not apply in relation to swine vesicular disease in any period during which 

action is being taken by the appropriate authority under the Foot-and-Mouth Disease (England) 

Order 2006(c), the Foot-and-Mouth Disease (Scotland) Order 2006(d) or the Foot-and-Mouth 

Disease (Wales) Order 2006(e). 

PART 2 

Notification and investigation of suspicion of disease 

Notification requirements 

5.—(1) Any person who suspects that a domestic or feral pig or carcase is infected with disease 

must immediately notify the appropriate authority. 

(2) Any person who examines a sample taken from a pig or a carcase and who— 

(a) suspects that the pig or carcase is infected with disease, or 

(b) detects evidence of antibodies to, or antigens of, disease, 

must immediately notify the appropriate authority. 

Initial measures following notification 

6.—(1) This regulation applies where the appropriate authority receives a notification under 

regulation 5, and a veterinary inspector considers that further investigation relating to the possible 

presence of disease is necessary. 

(2) A veterinary inspector must examine the pig or carcase, and may examine any other pig or 

carcase on the same premises. 

(3) A veterinary inspector must as soon as reasonably practicable orally inform (followed up by 

service of a notice by a veterinary inspector or by an inspector under the direction of a veterinary 

inspector) the occupier that the further investigation will be undertaken, and except in the case of a 

notification involving a feral pig or feral pig carcase, the occupier so informed must comply with 

the initial measures set down in paragraph (4). 

(4) For the purposes of paragraph (3), the initial measures are— 

(a) not to move, or permit to be moved— 

(i) the pig or carcase which is the subject of the notification from the premises where it 

is located; 

(ii) any other pig or carcase to or from those premises; 

(iii) any other animal from those premises if the veterinary inspector is of the opinion that 

it is likely to spread disease; 

(iv) any thing off those premises unless the veterinary inspector is of the opinion that it is 

not likely to spread disease; 

(b) to ensure that any person who has been in contact with any pig or carcase, or who has 

been on any part of the premises that may be contaminated with disease, takes all 

necessary biosecurity precautions to reduce the risk of spreading disease before leaving 

the premises; and 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.S.I. 2012/177, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 
(b) S.I. 2011/2379 (W.252). 
(c) S.I. 2006/182, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 
(d) S.S.I. 2006/44, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 
(e) S.I. 2006/179 (W.30), to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 8 

(c) where the occupier is an operator of a slaughterhouse— 

(i) not to permit any pig to be slaughtered unless authorised by a veterinary inspector; 

and 

(ii) to identify and isolate any carcase in respect of which the notification requirements 

in regulation 5 apply, any carcase originating from the same premises (and any 

carcase that has been in contact with any such carcase) so that such carcases do not 

come into contact with any other pig or carcase at the slaughterhouse. 

(5) In the case of a notification involving a feral pig or feral pig carcase the occupier must 

comply with any initial measures that are required by the veterinary inspector. 

(6) The initial measures required under this regulation continue to apply until— 

(a) a veterinary inspector informs the occupier that the presence of disease on the premises is 

not suspected; 

(b) the premises are designated by notice as suspect premises by an inspector in accordance 

with regulation 7(2); or 

(c) the occupier is notified that the measures no longer apply. 

Measures on suspicion of disease 

7.—(1) This regulation applies where a veterinary inspector suspects— 

(a) that a pig or carcase is or has been infected with disease; and 

(b) that pig or carcase is or has been on any premises other than in circumstances where Part 

4 (disease at a slaughterhouse) or Part 5 (suspicion and confirmation of disease in feral 

pigs) applies. 

(2) An inspector must serve a notice on the occupier designating premises as suspect premises, 

and Schedule 1 applies upon service of that notice. 

(3) A veterinary inspector must take all reasonable steps to establish whether or not disease is 

present at the suspect premises. 

(4) For the purposes of paragraph (3), a veterinary inspector may, if the Chief Veterinary Officer 

considers it necessary, take and have tested— 

(a) samples from any pig or carcase that is, or has previously been, on the premises; 

(b) environmental samples from the premises. 

(5) In the case of classical swine fever and African swine fever, where required by the 

epidemiological situation, the Chief Veterinary Officer may order and arrange for the killing of 

any pig on the suspect premises and arrange for the taking of a sufficient number of post-mortem 

samples to confirm or negate the presence of disease. 

(6) The notice served under paragraph (2) may only be revoked if a veterinary inspector is 

satisfied that the suspect premises no longer pose a risk of spread of disease. 

(7) Where that notice is revoked, the measures in Schedule 1 cease to apply upon revocation of 

that notice. 

(8) In the case of swine vesicular disease only, where a seropositive pig has been detected on 

premises designated as suspect premises but none of the pigs on the premises show clinical signs 

of that disease, a veterinary inspector must take further samples at least 28 days from the date 

when the disease was first suspected by the veterinary inspector and have those samples tested. 

(9) If such tests reveal no evidence of swine vesicular disease on the premises, the seropositive 

pig must be— 

(a) slaughtered at a designated slaughterhouse— 

(i) with the pig being kept separate from other pigs in transport and at the 

slaughterhouse; and 

(ii) ensuring that the carcase and any animal by-product coming from the seropositive 

pig is kept separate and not exported from the United Kingdom; or 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 9 

(b) killed on the suspect premises and subsequently destroyed under supervision of a 

veterinary inspector. 

Measures at contact premises 

8.—(1) Where premises have been shown to have an epidemiological link with— 

(a) suspect premises, 

(b) infected premises, or 

(c) other premises on which disease has been detected, including where a veterinary 

inspector is of the view that due to its proximity to an infected premises it is likely that 

disease may have been transmitted there, 

an inspector must serve a notice on the occupier designating that premises as contact premises, 

and Schedule 1 applies upon service of that notice. 

(2) Following the designation of premises as contact premises— 

(a) where pigs on the contact premises do not show clinical signs of disease, but where the 

suspicion of disease cannot be ruled out, the Chief Veterinary Officer must assess the 

epidemiological situation at the premises, and on the basis of that assessment may— 

(i) order and arrange for the killing of any pig on the premises if considered necessary 

to prevent the spread of disease; 

(ii) require a person under the direction of a veterinary inspector, to monitor all pigs on 

the contact premises (which may require the taking and testing of samples) until the 

veterinary inspector is satisfied that the disease is not present; 

(b) where any pig on the contact premises shows clinical signs of disease— 

(i) if considered to be necessary to prevent the spread of disease, the Chief Veterinary 

Officer may order and arrange for the killing of any pig on the contact premises, and 

arrange for the taking of a sufficient number of post-mortem samples to confirm or 

negate the presence of disease; and 

(ii) a veterinary inspector must take all reasonable steps to establish whether or not 

disease is present at the contact premises, which may include the taking and testing 

of samples, until satisfied that the disease is not present on the premises. 

(3) Where pigs have been killed and disease cannot be negated, cleansing and disinfection must 

be carried out in accordance with regulations 13 and 14, followed by restocking with sentinel pigs 

unless a veterinary inspector specifies otherwise in writing, in accordance with regulation 18. 

(4) The notice served under paragraph (1) may not be revoked until the Chief Veterinary Officer 

is satisfied following any tests or actions of a veterinary inspector, or the satisfactory completion 

of the steps in paragraph (3), that it is no longer appropriate for the premises to remain designated 

as contact premises. 

(5) Where the notice served under paragraph (1) is revoked, the measures in Schedule 1 cease to 

apply upon revocation of that notice. 

Temporary control zone 

9.—(1) The appropriate authority may declare a temporary control zone around suspect 

premises. 

(2) The temporary control zone must be of such extent as the appropriate authority considers 

necessary to reduce the risk of the spread of disease as far as practicable. 

(3) A person must not move a pig from premises in the temporary control zone, except in 

accordance with a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

(4) The declaration may apply any measure of a type listed in Schedule 1 as the appropriate 

authority considers necessary in all or part of the temporary control zone in order to prevent or 

reduce the risk of the spread of disease. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 10 

(5) Any part of a temporary control zone that is subsequently incorporated into a protection or 

surveillance zone will cease to exist as a temporary control zone. 

(6) Where disease has been negated at suspect premises, the appropriate authority must revoke 

the temporary control zone declaration. 

PART 3 

Infected premises 

Designating premises as infected premises when the presence of disease is confirmed 

10.—(1) Where the Chief Veterinary Officer is satisfied as a result of any— 

(a) tests carried out under these Regulations, 

(b) clinical signs in any pig or carcase, or 

(c) epidemiological connections, 

that disease is or has been present on premises, an inspector must serve a notice on the occupier 

designating them to be infected premises. 

(2) Where such a notice is served on the occupier Schedule 1 applies, together with any 

additional measures that a veterinary inspector considers necessary in order to reduce the risk of 

the spread of disease. 

(3) This regulation does not apply where disease is confirmed in a slaughterhouse or in feral 

pigs. 

Killing pigs on infected premises 

11. When premises are designated as infected premises the appropriate authority must arrange 

for the killing of all pigs on the premises unless regulation 12 applies. 

Conservation and related measures 

12.—(1) After consulting with the European Commission the appropriate authority may decide 

not to kill a pig— 

(a) kept in a zoo or wildlife park; or 

(b) kept for— 

(i) educational purposes; 

(ii) scientific research or breeding for such research; or 

(iii) purposes related to conservation of species or genetic resource. 

(2) Where the appropriate authority decides under paragraph (1) not to kill a pig, a veterinary 

inspector must serve a notice on the occupier of the premises on which it is kept detailing the 

biosecurity arrangements that the occupier must follow to reduce the risk of the spread of disease. 

(3) The appropriate authority may for disease control reasons at any time decide to order the 

killing of a pig that has previously been spared under paragraph (1). 

Disposal of carcases and preliminary cleansing and disinfection 

13.—(1) Where a pig is killed under these Regulations other than in accordance with regulation 

19(4), the appropriate authority must arrange for the disposal of the carcase. 

(2) The appropriate authority may arrange for the disposal of the carcase of any pig that has 

died, or is suspected to have died, from disease. 

(3) The appropriate authority must ensure that any such disposal is carried out in such a way as 

to avoid the risk of the spread of disease. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 11 

(4) Following such disposal the appropriate authority must without delay carry out preliminary 

cleansing and disinfection of— 

(a) all parts of the premises (other than fields, slurry lagoons and other parts of the premises 

where the disinfectant would have no effect) and all equipment or other things to which 

the pig has had access; and 

(b) anything contaminated during the killing of the pig. 

Notice requiring secondary cleansing and disinfection 

14.—(1) Irrespective of whether or not pigs are to be reintroduced on infected or contact 

premises, an inspector may serve a notice on the occupier requiring secondary cleansing and 

disinfection as specified in the notice. 

(2) Secondary cleansing and disinfection must be carried out in such a way as to minimise the 

risk of the spread of disease or survival of any virus. 

(3) If the occupier does not comply with the notice, an inspector may arrange for secondary 

cleansing and disinfection to be carried out by another person at the expense of the occupier. 

(4) Following completion of the secondary cleansing and disinfection, a veterinary inspector 

must certify in writing when satisfied that the requirements of the notice have been completed. 

Use of approved disinfectants 

15. Where disinfection is carried out under these Regulations the disinfectants must be— 

(a) approved by the appropriate authority under the Diseases of Animals (Approved 

Disinfectants) (England) Order 2007(a), the Diseases of Animals (Approved 

Disinfectants) (Scotland) Order 2008(b)or the Diseases of Animals (Approved 

Disinfectants) (Wales) Order 2007(c), and shown on the list of approved disinfectants 

published under the appropriate Order as being approved— 

(i) specifically as being effective against the spread of swine vesicular disease where 

that disease has been identified; or 

(ii) for effectiveness against the spread of disease other than swine vesicular disease; and 

(b) used at the authorised dilution rate and in accordance with the manufacturer’s 

instructions. 

Special measures to prevent the spread of African swine fever virus by vectors 

16.—(1) Where the presence of vectors is suspected on premises where African swine fever has 

been confirmed, any building that has housed pigs (and the surrounding environment) must be 

checked by an inspector for the presence of vectors and, if deemed necessary, a veterinary 

inspector (or any person acting under the direction of a veterinary inspector) may— 

(a) arrange for the obtaining of specimens of the vectors and proportionate further 

monitoring; and 

(b) require the occupier to implement practical vector control measures. 

(2) Where such specimens are obtained the appropriate authority must arrange for appropriate 

laboratory tests to be carried out on them to confirm or negate the presence of the African swine 

fever virus in the vectors. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2007/448, amended by S.I. 2011/1509; there are other amending instruments but none are relevant. 
(b) S.S.I. 2008/219, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 
(c) S.I. 2007/2803 (W.236), to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 12 

Revocation of a regulation 10 notice 

17.—(1) Unless otherwise provided for in this regulation, a notice under regulation 10 

(designation of an infected premises) must not be revoked until a veterinary inspector is satisfied 

that sufficient time has elapsed for the virus of disease to have decayed naturally to the extent that 

the virus will no longer pose a risk of infecting a pig with disease. 

(2) A veterinary inspector, or an inspector acting under the direction of a veterinary inspector, 

may revoke such a notice of designation in relation to the whole or a part of the infected premises 

if— 

(a) any required cleansing and disinfection has been certified as satisfactorily completed in 

accordance with regulation 14(4); and 

(b) the premises have been tested for the existence of disease using sentinel pigs with 

negative results in accordance with regulation 18. 

(3) In the case of African swine fever (where the occurrence of disease has not been linked to 

vectors) or in the case of classical swine fever, as a derogation from the testing in accordance with 

paragraph (2)(b), such a notice may be revoked by a veterinary inspector if— 

(a) more than six months has elapsed from the completion of the cleansing and disinfection; 

and 

(b) the veterinary inspector is of the opinion that there is no further risk of the spread of 

disease. 

(4) In the case of African swine fever, where occurrence of disease has been linked to vectors, 

such a notice must not be revoked until— 

(a) all sentinel restocking in accordance with regulation 18 has been carried out without 

evidence of disease; and 

(b) a further 60 days has elapsed since full restocking. 

(5) Where such a notice is revoked, the measures in Schedule 1 (together with any additional 

measure imposed) cease to apply upon revocation of that notice. 

Restocking and testing with sentinel pigs on infected or contact premises 

18.—(1) On infected premises or contact premises once a veterinary inspector has certified in 

accordance with regulation 14(4) that secondary cleansing and disinfection have been 

satisfactorily completed, sentinel pigs may be introduced (at the expense of the occupier) for 

monitoring for the resurgence of disease in accordance with this regulation as a precursor to full 

restocking of the premises with pigs. 

(2) Other than in the situation in paragraph (7), the number of sentinel pigs introduced by the 

occupier must be such restricted number as is deemed to be sufficient by a veterinary inspector to 

test for the continuing presence of disease on all parts of the premises where disease was formerly 

present. 

(3) The sentinel pigs may only be introduced in accordance with a licence granted by a 

veterinary inspector, and not before the following prescribed number of days, equivalent to the 

incubation period for the virus, after the secondary cleansing and disinfection has been certified as 

being satisfactorily completed in accordance with regulation 14(4)— 

(a) 40 days in the case of African swine fever; 

(b) 30 days in the case of classical swine fever; and 

(c) 28 days in the case of swine vesicular disease. 

(4) The sentinel pigs must have— 

(a) come from premises not subject to any controls or restrictions under these Regulations; or 

(b) been tested at the expense of the occupier before being brought on to the premises and 

found to be negative for the presence of antibodies against disease. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 13 

(5) After the time limits set down in the following table a veterinary inspector must clinically 

examine all sentinel pigs on the premises and take a statistically valid number of samples deemed 

necessary for the serological testing for the presence of antibodies to the disease— 

 

 African swine fever 

(where disease has 

not been linked to 

vectors) 

Classical swine fever Swine vesicular 

disease 

Number of days after 

the arrival of the last 

sentinel pig onto the 

premises 

45 

 

40 28 

 

(6) A person must not allow a sentinel pig to leave premises until negative results of the 

serological tests taken in accordance with paragraph (5) are obtained by the veterinary inspector. 

(7) For premises that only have pigs entirely enclosed in buildings, as an alternative to the 

veterinary inspector restricting the number of sentinel pigs in accordance with paragraph (2), the 

veterinary inspector may license the introduction of an unlimited number of sentinel pigs into 

enclosed buildings on the premises, but in such circumstances— 

(a) paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) apply in relation to the introduction of the unlimited 

number of sentinel pigs; 

(b) the conditions in the following table apply— 

 

 African swine fever 

(where disease has 

not been linked to 

vectors) 

Classical swine fever Swine vesicular 

disease 

All the sentinel pigs 

must arrive on the 

premises within the 

following periods 

from the date of 

arrival of the first 

sentinel pig 

20 days 20 days 8 days 

 

; and 

(c) in the case of swine vesicular disease, a person must not allow a pig to leave the premises 

until at least 60 days after the arrival of the last sentinel pig. 

(8) In the case of African swine fever where the disease has been linked to spread by vectors, 

restocking with sentinel pigs cannot take place for a period of six years. 

(9) The period of six years may be reduced where a veterinary inspector has supervised vector 

eradication measures on infected premises and is satisfied that— 

(a) the vector eradication measures have been successfully carried out under the supervision 

of a veterinary inspector; or 

(b) the persistence of the vector no longer presents a significant risk of transmitting African 

swine fever. 

(10) Where restocking has taken place in accordance with paragraphs (8) or (9), a person must 

not allow a pig to leave the premises after full repopulation until serological examinations with 

negative results for African swine fever have been taken at least 60 days after full repopulation in 

accordance with the Diagnostic Manual. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 14 

PART 4 

Suspicion and confirmation of disease at a slaughterhouse 

Measures on suspicion and confirmation of disease at a slaughterhouse 

19.—(1) Where a veterinary inspector has examined a pig or pig carcase at a slaughterhouse and 

cannot negate the presence of disease an inspector must serve a notice on the operator of the 

slaughterhouse imposing the following measures— 

(a) no pig or carcase may be moved to or from the slaughterhouse; 

(b) no other animal may be moved to or from the slaughterhouse if the veterinary inspector 

suspects there is a risk that it could spread disease; 

(c) all biosecurity measures that the veterinary inspector believes are necessary must be taken 

by the operator; 

(d) no pig can be slaughtered unless authorised by a veterinary inspector; and 

(e) the operator must identify and isolate— 

(i) any carcase of a suspect pig; 

(ii) a pig that has come into contact with a suspect pig; 

(iii) any carcase from the same premises as a suspect pig; and 

(iv) any carcase that has been in contact with a paragraph (iii) carcase. 

(2) A veterinary inspector may take samples from a pig, carcase or any other thing and have 

those samples tested to ascertain whether or not disease is present at the slaughterhouse. 

(3) Following the results of the tests carried out under paragraph (2), where the Chief Veterinary 

Officer is satisfied that that disease is not present at the slaughterhouse— 

(a) a veterinary inspector must as soon as reasonably practicable orally inform the operator 

that disease has not been found to be present, at which point the paragraph (1) measures 

no longer apply; and 

(b) this must be followed up in writing as soon as reasonably practicable. 

(4) Following the results of the tests carried out under paragraph (2), where the Chief Veterinary 

Officer is satisfied that disease is present at the slaughterhouse, the appropriate authority must 

ensure that all pigs in the slaughterhouse are slaughtered without delay under the supervision of a 

veterinary inspector. 

(5) Following such slaughter— 

(a) the operator must destroy— 

(i) the carcases and offal of infected pigs; 

(ii) the carcases and offal of other pigs that a veterinary inspector suspects may be 

infected with disease; 

(iii) the carcases and offal of other pigs contaminated through contact with an infected 

pig or carcase; 

(b) cleansing and disinfection of buildings, equipment and vehicles (including control of 

vectors where African swine fever has been linked to spread by vectors) must be carried 

out by the operator as instructed by a veterinary inspector; 

(c) an epidemiological enquiry by a veterinary inspector must take place; 

(d) other than in the situation in sub-paragraph (e), a veterinary inspector must notify the 

operator of the removal of the paragraph (1) measures at the slaughterhouse on the expiry 

of 24 hours after cleansing and disinfection operations have been completed at the 

slaughterhouse to the satisfaction of the veterinary inspector; and 

(e) in the case of African swine fever, in addition to the veterinary inspector being satisfied 

in accordance with sub-paragraph (d), the veterinary inspector must be satisfied that any 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 15 

vector controls (if required) have been effectively applied before notifying the operator of 

the removal of the paragraph (1) measures. 

PART 5 

Suspicion and confirmation of disease in feral pigs 

Measures on suspicion of disease in feral pigs 

20.—(1) Where it is suspected that a feral pig is infected with disease— 

(a) a veterinary inspector must take all reasonable steps to establish whether or not that 

suspicion is correct; and 

(b) the appropriate authority must make available information regarding the suspicion to 

keepers and to hunters believed to be operating in the area exposed to the risk of spread of 

disease. 

(2) Where it is suspected that a feral pig is infected with disease a veterinary inspector must— 

(a) carry out investigations of any feral pigs shot or found dead in the area believed to be 

exposed to the risk of spread of disease; and 

(b) produce a report that assesses the disease situation in feral pigs. 

(3) Following the suspicion of disease in a feral pig the appropriate authority may declare a feral 

pig investigation zone and apply some or all of the Schedule 2 measures. 

Measures on confirmation of disease in feral pigs 

21.—(1) Where the Chief Veterinary Officer concludes that African swine fever or classical 

swine fever is present in a feral pig, the appropriate authority must declare a feral pig control zone, 

and all the measures in Schedule 2 apply within that zone. 

(2) Where the Chief Veterinary Officer concludes that swine vesicular disease is present in a 

feral pig, the appropriate authority may declare a feral pig control zone, and may apply some or all 

of the Schedule 2 measures. 

(3) Meat from a feral pig hunted in any feral pig control zone must not be placed on the market 

by any person unless the carcase is tested negative for disease in accordance with the relevant 

Diagnostic Manual and a veterinary inspector considers there is no risk of the spread of disease. 

Emergency vaccination of feral pigs against classical swine fever 

22.—(1) Where the Chief Veterinary Officer concludes that classical swine fever is present in a 

feral pig, and the epidemiological data available suggest that the disease threatens to spread, the 

appropriate authority may— 

(a) introduce emergency vaccination of feral pigs in a specified area; and 

(b) impose such conditions and restrictions in the specified area as the appropriate authority 

believes are necessary in order to enhance the effectiveness of the vaccination campaign. 

(2) An occupier must comply with any such conditions and restrictions. 

PART 6 

Area controls following confirmation of disease in domestic pigs 

Protection and surveillance zones 

23.—(1) This regulation applies where the existence of disease has been confirmed on premises. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 16 

(2) Where the premises comprise— 

(a) a slaughterhouse, 

(b) a veterinary surgery where a pig has been brought for examination, or 

(c) any other place to which a pig has been brought temporarily and the appropriate authority 

does not consider that place to be the centre of infection, 

the appropriate authority may declare a protection zone and a surveillance zone around the 

premises. 

(3) In any other case the appropriate authority must declare a protection zone and a surveillance 

zone around the premises. 

(4) The zones must be centred on the part of the premises that the appropriate authority 

considers most appropriate for disease control and— 

(a) a protection zone must have a radius of at least 3 kilometres; 

(b) a surveillance zone around the outside of the protection zone must, subject to paragraph 

(5), have a radius of at least 10 kilometres. 

(5) The appropriate authority may reduce the size of a surveillance zone if approval to do so is 

obtained from the European Commission. 

(6) The appropriate authority must ensure that within those zones, as far as is reasonably 

practicable— 

(a) premises that contain pigs are identified; and 

(b) veterinary inspectors visit such identified premises to— 

(i) inspect, and as necessary examine, the pigs on the premises; and 

(ii) collect and have tested such samples as the Chief Veterinary Officer considers 

necessary. 

(7) The measures in Part 1 of Schedule 3 apply in a protection zone. 

(8) The measures in Part 2 of Schedule 3 apply in a surveillance zone. 

(9) The measures in Schedule 4 apply in a protection and surveillance zone. 

(10) The appropriate authority may in a declaration apply any other measure that it deems to be 

necessary in order to reduce the spread of disease in respect of the whole or any part of any 

protection zone or surveillance zone. 

Declarations of zones 

24.—(1) The declaration of a zone under these Regulations— 

(a) must be in writing; 

(b) must define the extent of the zone being declared; 

(c) must specify the disease to which it relates; and 

(d) may be amended or revoked by further declaration at any time. 

(2) A person who keeps a pig within the zone to which the declaration relates must comply with 

any applicable measure that is specified in the declaration. 

(3) Where a zone crosses a country border, the zone may be jointly declared by more than one 

appropriate authority. 

Removal of protection and surveillance zones 

25.—(1) The appropriate authority must keep in place a surveillance zone for at least the 

following periods— 

(a) in the case of African swine fever, 40 days (but if an intensive testing programme has 

been carried out then 20 days), 

(b) in the case of classical swine fever, 20 days, or 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 17 

(c) in the case of swine vesicular disease, 28 days, 

after pigs from infected premises have been killed and until such cleansing and disinfection as the 

Chief Veterinary Officer considers sufficient has been carried out on those premises. 

(2) The appropriate authority must keep in place a protection zone for at least the following 

periods— 

(a) in the case of African swine fever, 45 days (but if an intensive testing programme has 

been carried out then 30 days), 

(b) in the case of classical swine fever, 30 days, or 

(c) in the case of swine vesicular disease, 28 days, 

after pigs from infected premises have been killed and until such cleansing and disinfection as the 

Chief Veterinary Officer considers sufficient has been carried out on those premises. 

(3) In this regulation “intensive testing programme” means testing for African swine fever in 

accordance with sections F and G of Chapter IV of the Diagnostic Manual(a). 

Premises straddling a protection or a surveillance zone 

26.—(1) Premises which are partly inside a protection zone and partly inside a surveillance zone 

must be deemed to be wholly inside the protection zone. 

(2) Premises which are partly inside and partly outside the outer boundary of a surveillance zone 

must be deemed to be wholly inside that zone. 

Publicity of declared zones 

27.—(1) The appropriate authority must publicise— 

(a) the extent of any zone declared under these Regulations (including any emergency 

vaccination zone or feral pig control zone); 

(b) the date of the commencement of the application of the zone; 

(c) the nature of the measures relating to that zone; 

(d) any amendment to the extent of a zone or measures applicable in the zone; and 

(e) the date from which the zone no longer applies. 

(2) The local authority may where practicable erect signs or posters indicating the existence of 

any zone declared under these Regulations. 

PART 7 

Vaccination 

Prohibition on vaccination except in certain cases 

28.—(1) A person must not vaccinate a domestic pig against disease other than in accordance 

with this Part or under the authority of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

(2) A person must not vaccinate a feral pig against disease other than in accordance with 

regulation 22. 

Declaration of an emergency vaccination zone following confirmation of classical swine fever 

29.—(1) This regulation applies where classical swine fever has been confirmed and the 

appropriate authority is concerned that it threatens to spread to other areas. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Commission Decision 2003/422/EC,  approving an African swine fever Diagnostic Manual (OJ No L 143, 11.6.2003, p.5). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 18 

(2) The appropriate authority may decide to declare an emergency vaccination zone after 

considering relevant criteria and risk factors, including— 

(a) the rate at which outbreaks are confirmed; 

(b) the density of pigs in the area; 

(c) the likelihood of further outbreaks in the area for at least the next two months; 

(d) the availability of resources to control disease. 

(3) Premises which are partly inside and partly outside the outer boundary of an emergency 

vaccination zone must be deemed to be wholly inside that zone. 

(4) Before declaring an emergency vaccination zone, the Secretary of State must submit to the 

European Commission— 

(a) an emergency vaccination plan with the proposed measures for approval in accordance 

with Article 19(3) of Council Directive 2001/89/EC(a); or 

(b) an outline plan in accordance with Article 19(7) of that Directive. 

(5) Where the appropriate authority decides to use a marker vaccine during the vaccination 

period the emergency vaccination plan must contain a request to use such a marker vaccine in 

accordance with Article 19(9) of Council Directive 2001/89/EC. 

(6) The declaration must include details of the responsibilities of the appropriate authority for 

organising the vaccination and subsequent monitoring to assess its effectiveness in preventing the 

spread of disease. 

(7) Other than in the situation in paragraph (8), an emergency vaccination zone must remain in 

place for a period of at least 6 months after the completion of the vaccination operations within the 

zone (“the vaccination period”). 

(8) The appropriate authority may reduce the vaccination period where all the vaccinated pigs 

within the declared zone have been slaughtered and cleansing and disinfection has been carried 

out at all infected premises. 

(9) As far as reasonably practicable the appropriate authority must notify every keeper within 

the zone regarding the emergency vaccination requirements. 

(10) A person must not move a pig from premises in an emergency vaccination zone unless a 

licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to move it direct to a designated slaughterhouse. 

(11) Before sending to a slaughterhouse a pig which is on premises in an emergency vaccination 

zone, the keeper of the pig must notify the operator of the slaughterhouse of the expected time of 

arrival of the pig. 

(12) The operator of a slaughterhouse must ensure— 

(a) that vaccinated pigs are kept and slaughtered separately from unvaccinated pigs; and 

(b) that the carcases of vaccinated pigs are kept separate from the carcases of unvaccinated 

pigs at the slaughterhouse. 

(13) During the vaccination period within an emergency vaccination zone, other than under a 

licence granted by a veterinary inspector, a person must not— 

(a) move any pig from any premises; 

(b) collect semen, embryos or ova from seropositive pigs; or 

(c) use semen, embryos or ova collected from pigs during the 30 days prior to vaccination. 

Pigs vaccinated against classical swine fever 

30.—(1) This regulation applies to pigs vaccinated against classical swine fever. 

(2) A keeper who has had a pig vaccinated in an emergency vaccination zone or under the 

authority of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector must— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) OJ No L 316, 1.12.2001, p.5 as last amended by Council Directive 2008/73/EC (OJ No L 219, 14.8.2008, p. 40). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 19 

(a) ensure that it is identified in accordance with instructions from a veterinary inspector; and 

(b) keep a record that it has been vaccinated. 

(3) The keeper must only have a vaccinated pig slaughtered at a designated slaughterhouse. 

(4) Following slaughter of a vaccinated pig the carcase must— 

(a) be disposed of in accordance with the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) 

Regulations 2013(a), the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 

2013(b) or the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2014(c); or 

(b) have a stamp applied and be treated under the Products of Animal Origin (Disease 

Control) (England) Regulations 2008(d), the Products of Animal Origin (Disease 

Control) (Scotland) Order 2008(e) or the Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) 

(Wales) Regulations 2008(f). 

(5) Where a marker vaccine has been used on a pig, the meat derived from that pig may be 

exempted by the appropriate authority from the requirement to be treated as restricted meat under 

the appropriate legislation listed in paragraph (4)(b). 

Compulsory vaccination and controls for pigs vaccinated against swine vesicular disease 

31.—(1) This regulation applies where swine vesicular disease has been confirmed. 

(2) Following confirmation of swine vesicular disease, the appropriate authority may declare an 

emergency vaccination zone in which every keeper inside the zone must ensure the vaccination of 

their pigs after considering relevant criteria and risk factors, including— 

(a) the rate at which outbreaks are confirmed; 

(b) the density of pigs in the area; 

(c) the likelihood of further outbreaks in the area for at least the next two months; and 

(d) the availability of resources to control disease. 

(3) Premises which are partly inside and partly outside the outer boundary of an emergency 

vaccination zone must be deemed to be wholly inside that zone. 

(4) As far as reasonably practicable the appropriate authority must notify every keeper within 

the zone regarding the emergency vaccination requirements. 

(5) A person in possession or charge of a pig that has been vaccinated under this regulation 

must— 

(a) ensure that the pig is identified in accordance with instructions from a veterinary 

inspector; and 

(b) keep a record of the date when the pig was vaccinated. 

(6) A person must not move a pig from premises in an emergency vaccination zone unless a 

licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to move it direct to a designated slaughterhouse. 

(7) Before sending a vaccinated pig to a slaughterhouse the person responsible for its movement 

must notify the operator of the slaughterhouse of the expected time of arrival of the pig. 

(8) The operator of a slaughterhouse must ensure that— 

(a) vaccinated pigs are kept and slaughtered separately from unvaccinated pigs; and 

(b) carcases of vaccinated pigs are kept separate from carcases of unvaccinated pigs. 

(9) In the case of a pig outside an emergency vaccination zone— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2013/2952. 
(b) S.S.I. 2013/307. 
(c) S.I. 2014/517 (W.60). 
(d) S.I. 2008/465, amended by S.I. 2009/1297. 
(e) S.S.I, 2088/158, amended by S.S.I. 2009/173, 2009/174. 
(f) S.I. 2008/1275 (W.132), amended by S.I. 2009/136 (W.136). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 20 

(a) a veterinary inspector may serve a notice on the keeper to require the vaccination of the 

pig on those premises in accordance with the conditions of that notice; and 

(b) a person must not move the vaccinated pig from the premises on which it was vaccinated 

except to a designated slaughterhouse under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

PART 8 

Inspection, enforcement and miscellaneous provisions 

Notices 

32.—(1) Any notice served under these Regulations must be in writing and may be amended, 

suspended or revoked in writing at any time. 

(2) A notice may be served on or given to a person by— 

(a) personal delivery; 

(b) leaving it at the person’s proper address; or 

(c) sending it by post or by electronic means to the person’s proper address. 

(3) In the case of a body corporate, a notice may be served on or given to an officer of that body. 

(4) In the case of a partnership, a notice may be served on or given to a partner or a person 

having control or management of the partnership business. 

(5) In the case of an unincorporated association, a notice may be served on or given to an officer 

of the association. 

(6) For the purposes of this regulation and section 7 of the Interpretation Act 1978(a) (service of 

documents by post) to the extent that it applies, “proper address” means— 

(a) in the case of a body corporate or an officer of that body— 

(i) the registered or principal office of that body, or 

(ii) the email address of the officer; 

(b) in the case of a partnership or a partner or person having control or management of the 

partnership business— 

(i) the principal office of the partnership, or 

(ii) the email address of the partner or person having that control or management; 

(c) in the case of an unincorporated association or an officer of the association— 

(i) the office of the association, or 

(ii) the email address of the officer; 

(d) in any other case, a person’s last known address, which includes an email address. 

(7) For the purposes of paragraph (6), the principal office of a body corporate registered outside 

the United Kingdom or of a partnership or Scottish partnership established outside the United 

Kingdom is its principal office in the United Kingdom. 

(8) If the name or address of any occupier of premises on whom a notice is to be served or given 

under these Regulations cannot, after reasonable inquiry, be ascertained, the notice may be served 

by leaving it conspicuously affixed to a building or object on the premises. 

(9) A notice may require any action that an inspector reasonably believes is necessary for 

controlling the spread of disease. 

(10) A notice may specify that a person in receipt of it must immediately inform an inspector of 

its safe receipt. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1978 c. 30. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 21 

(11) A person must comply with the terms of any notice served, given or displayed under these 

Regulations. 

(12) In this regulation— 

“body corporate” includes a limited liability partnership; 

“director”, in relation to a body corporate whose affairs are managed by its members, means a 

member of the body corporate; 

“officer”, in relation to a body corporate, means any director, manager, secretary or other 

similar officer of the body corporate; 

“partnership” includes a Scottish partnership, but does not include a limited liability 

partnership. 

Licences 

33.—(1) A licence granted under these Regulations must be in writing and may be— 

(a) general or specific; 

(b) subject to conditions; and 

(c) amended, suspended or revoked in writing at any time. 

(2) A person moving any pig or thing under the authority of a specific licence must— 

(a) carry the licence or a copy of it at all times during the movement; and 

(b) on demand by an inspector or other officer of the appropriate authority, produce the 

licence or a copy and allow a copy or extract to be taken. 

(3) A person moving any pig or thing under the authority of a general licence must— 

(a) at all times during the movement, carry a document containing details of— 

(i) what is being transported, including the quantity; 

(ii) the date of the movement; 

(iii) the names of the persons responsible for the pig or thing being moved at the place of 

departure and the place of destination; 

(iv) the addresses of the place of departure and the place of destination; 

(b) on demand by an inspector or other officer of the appropriate authority, produce the 

document and allow a copy or extract to be taken; and 

(c) keep the document for at least six months. 

(4) If any pig or thing has been moved to premises under a licence, an inspector may serve a 

notice on the occupier of the premises of destination imposing such movement restrictions on 

those premises as the veterinary inspector deems necessary to prevent the risk of spreading 

disease. 

(5) A person who has a licence to do anything under these Regulations must comply with any 

conditions of that licence. 

(6) Where a licence is required or authorised under these Regulations to be granted by a 

veterinary inspector, it may also be granted by an inspector acting under the direction of a 

veterinary inspector. 

(7) A licence granted under these Regulations in England, Scotland or Wales is valid in any 

other part of Great Britain so long as the licensed activity is authorised in that other part of Great 

Britain. 

Powers of inspectors 

34.—(1) An inspector may, on giving reasonable notice, and on producing a duly authenticated 

authorisation if required, enter any premises, vehicle, vessel or trailer (except if used wholly or 

mainly as a private dwelling) at any reasonable hour for the purpose of executing or enforcing 

these Regulations. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 22 

(2) The requirement to give notice does not apply where— 

(a) the requirement has been waived by the occupier; 

(b) reasonable efforts to identify the occupier have failed; 

(c) reasonable efforts to agree an appointment have failed; 

(d) an inspector has reasonable suspicion of a failure to comply with these Regulations; or 

(e) the inspector has reasonable suspicion that disease is likely to spread to other premises if 

an immediate check is not carried out on the pigs at the premises. 

(3) A justice of the peace, or in Scotland a stipendiary magistrate or a sheriff, may by signed 

warrant permit an inspector to enter any premises, vehicle, vessel or trailer, if necessary by 

reasonable force, if satisfied on sworn information in writing— 

(a) that there are reasonable grounds to enter those premises for the purpose of executing or 

enforcing these Regulations; and 

(b) that any of the conditions in paragraph (4) are met. 

(4) The conditions are— 

(a) entry to premises has been, or is likely to be, refused, and notice of the intention to apply 

for a warrant has been given to the occupier; 

(b) asking for admission to premises, or giving such a notice, would defeat the object of the 

entry; 

(c) entry is required urgently; or 

(d) the premises are unoccupied or the occupier is temporarily absent. 

(5) A warrant is valid for three months. 

(6) An inspector entering premises which are unoccupied or from which the occupier is 

temporarily absent must leave them as effectively secured against unauthorised entry as they were 

before entry. 

(7) An inspector entering any premises, vehicle, vessel or trailer may— 

(a) inspect any pig or thing there; 

(b) take samples; 

(c) seize and destroy any equipment or other thing that may spread disease; 

(d) detain or isolate any pig, equipment or other thing that may spread disease; 

(e) mark, tag or micro-chip for identification purposes any pig or thing; 

(f) carry out any inquiries, examinations and tests; 

(g) move any pig or vehicle, vessel or trailer carrying a pig or any other thing that may be 

contaminated with disease to a specified location; 

(h) undertake surveillance for vectors and implement insect control measures; 

(i) undertake surveillance for feral pigs; 

(j) capture and detain a feral pig; 

(k) in the case of classical swine fever, vaccinate a feral pig; 

(l) take samples from a feral pig, or authorise another under supervision to take such 

samples; 

(m) kill a feral pig (or authorise another person under the inspector’s supervision to kill a feral 

pig) if the Chief Veterinary Officer is satisfied that killing is necessary either for the 

control of disease or for surveillance purposes, and in particular if— 

(i) it is not reasonably practicable to take samples from the feral pig without killing it; 

(ii) it is not reasonably practicable to detain it pending the results of any testing or 

sampling; or 

(iii) feral pigs are suspected by the Chief Veterinary Officer of— 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 23 

(aa) spreading disease, 

(bb) being likely to spread disease, or 

(cc) being at risk of contracting disease; 

(n) have access to, inspect and copy any documents or records (in whatever form they are 

held) appertaining to these Regulations, and remove them to enable them to be copied; 

(o) inspect and check the operation of any computer and any associated apparatus or material 

that is or has been in use in connection with any documents or records; 

(p) require by notice served on the occupier— 

(i) any pig to be marked, tagged or micro-chipped for identification purposes; 

(ii) any pig or thing (including a vehicle or trailer) to be moved from premises to other 

specified premises; 

(iii) the undertaking of surveillance for the presence of vectors; 

(iv) the implementation of such insect control measures as the inspector considers 

practical and necessary; 

(v) a pig to be retained for use as a sentinel pig or a sentinel pig to be introduced onto 

those premises. 

(8) Where an inspector has entered any premises, vehicle, vessel or trailer and it is not 

reasonably practicable to determine whether any documents or records found on those premises 

appertain to these Regulations, the inspector may seize them to ascertain whether or not they are 

relevant. 

(9) The inspector may— 

(a) take any necessary equipment or vehicle on to the premises; 

(b) be accompanied by— 

(i) such other persons as the inspector considers necessary; and 

(ii) any representative of the European Commission. 

(10) Any power or obligation to take a sample and test it includes a power to— 

(a) re-test any sample; and 

(b) take further samples from pigs, carcases or from the environment for testing. 

Notices following a contravention of movement controls 

35.—(1) If a pig has been moved to any premises in contravention of any provision of these 

Regulations or any licence or notice served under these Regulations, an inspector may serve a 

notice on the occupier of those premises requiring— 

(a) that pig, or any other pig on the premises, to be detained on the premises; or 

(b) any pig on the premises to be moved to other premises specified in the notice. 

(2) If a pig has been moved to other premises under such a notice, an inspector may serve a 

notice on the occupier of those other premises imposing such movement restrictions relating to 

any pig on those premises as the inspector considers necessary to reduce the risk of spreading 

disease. 

Powers of inspectors in case of default 

36. If any person fails to comply with a requirement in or under these Regulations, an inspector 

may take such steps as that inspector considers necessary, including seizure of things, to ensure 

the requirement is met at the expense of that person. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 54



 24 

Compensation for pigs killed and things seized 

37. —(1) The appropriate authority must pay compensation in accordance with this regulation 

for— 

(a) any pig killed pursuant to regulations 7(5), 8(2) or 11; 

(b) any thing likely to spread disease that is seized under these Regulations and not returned 

other than where such things are seized by an inspector acting under regulation 36. 

(2) The amount of any compensation payable under paragraph (1)(a) is— 

(a) one half of the value of the pig immediately before it became affected where the pig was 

affected with classical swine fever or African swine fever; 

(b) the value of the pig immediately before it became affected where the pig was affected 

with swine vesicular disease (less any price received by the owner at slaughter); 

(c) where the pig is not affected with disease, the value of the pig immediately before it was 

killed. 

(3) The amount of any compensation payable under paragraph (1)(b) is the value of the thing 

seized at the time of its seizure; 

(4) The value of the pig or thing seized (as the case may be) is— 

(a) the amount determined in writing by the appropriate authority (“the appropriate 

authority’s valuation”); or 

(b) where the determination of the value has been referred to an appointed valuer under 

paragraph (5), the amount determined in writing by that valuer. 

(5) If, within 14 days after receiving the appropriate authority’s valuation, the owner of the pig 

killed or the thing seized (as the case may be) gives written notice to the appropriate authority 

disputing that valuation, with reasons, the appropriate authority must refer the determination of the 

value to an appointed valuer. 

(6) The appointed valuer must be a person— 

(a) appointed jointly by the owner and the appropriate authority for the purpose of 

conducting a valuation under this regulation; or 

(b) failing agreement on such appointment within 10 days of receipt of the notice given under 

paragraph (5), appointed by the appropriate authority for that purpose. 

(7) The determination of value by the appointed valuer is final and binding on the appropriate 

authority and the owner. 

(8) Fees charged or expenses incurred by an appointed valuer for work done under this 

regulation must be paid— 

(a) where the valuer’s determination is equal to or less than the appropriate authority’s 

valuation, by the owner; 

(b) otherwise, by the appropriate authority. 

(9) Action under this regulation to determine the value of any pig or other thing must not result 

in any delay in the killing of a pig for the purposes of controlling disease. 

Obstruction 

38. A person must not— 

(a) intentionally obstruct or impede anyone acting in the execution or enforcement of these 

Regulations; 

(b) without reasonable cause, proof of which lies on the person charged, fail to give to any 

person acting in the execution or enforcement of these Regulations any assistance or 

information that is reasonably required; 

(c) provide to anyone acting in the execution or enforcement of these Regulations any 

information knowing it to be false or misleading or not believing it to be true; or 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 55



 25 

(d) fail to produce a record when required to do so by any person acting in the execution or 

enforcement of these Regulations. 

Offences and penalties 

39.—(1) It is an offence to fail to comply with— 

(a) regulation 3(3)(a) or (b) (obligations on change in occupation); 

(b) regulation 5(1) or (2) (requirement to notify the appropriate authority of suspect pig or 

carcase); 

(c) regulation 6(3) or (5) (requirements on occupier to comply with initial measures); 

(d) regulation 9(3) (movement of a pig in a temporary control zone); 

(e) regulation 19(5)(a) or (b) (obligations on operator of slaughterhouse); 

(f) regulation 21(3) (placing feral pig meat on the market without a negative test for disease); 

(g) regulation 22(2) (failure to comply with any measure specified following vaccination of 

feral pigs); 

(h) regulation 24(2) (movement restriction in a declared zone); 

(i) regulation 28(1) or (2) (prohibition on vaccination); 

(j) regulation 29(10), (12) or (13) (requirements arising from emergency vaccination); 

(k) regulation 30(2) or (3) (requirements relating to pigs vaccinated against classical swine 

fever); 

(l) regulation 31(5), (6), (8) or (9)(b) (requirements relating to pigs vaccinated against swine 

vesicular disease); 

(m) regulation 32 (11) (requirement to comply with notice); 

(n) regulation 33(5) (requirement to comply with conditions of a licence); 

(o) regulation 38 (obstruction); 

(p) Schedule 1 (measures on suspect, contact and infected premises); 

(q) Schedule 2 (measures in a feral pig investigation or control zone); 

(r) paragraph 1, 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 3 (measures in a protection zone); 

(s) paragraph 10, 15, 16, 17, 18 or 19 of Part 2 of Schedule 3 (measures in a surveillance 

zone); 

(t) Schedule 4 (cleansing and disinfection of vehicles). 

(2) A person guilty of an offence is liable— 

(a) on summary conviction, to a fine not exceeding the statutory maximum or to 

imprisonment for a term not exceeding three months or both; 

(b) on conviction on indictment, to a fine or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six 

months or both. 

Offences by bodies corporate, partnerships and unincorporated associations 

40.—(1) Where a body corporate is guilty of an offence under these Regulations, and that 

offence is proved to have been committed with the consent or connivance of, or to have been 

attributable to any neglect on the part of— 

(a) a director, manager, secretary or other similar officer of the body corporate, or 

(b) a person who was purporting to act in any such capacity, 

that person, as well as the body corporate, is guilty of the offence. 

(2) In paragraph (1) “director”, in relation to a body corporate whose affairs are managed by its 

members, means a member of the body corporate. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 56



 26 

(3) Where a partnership or Scottish partnership is guilty of an offence under these Regulations, 

and that offence is proved to have been committed with the consent or connivance of, or to have 

been attributable to any neglect on the part of a partner, the partner, as well as the partnership or 

Scottish partnership, is guilty of the offence. 

(4) In paragraph (3) “partner” includes a person purporting to act as a partner. 

(5) Where an unincorporated association is guilty of an offence under these Regulations and that 

offence is proved to have been committed with the consent or connivance of, or to have been 

attributable to any neglect on the part of an officer of the association, that officer, as well as the 

association, is guilty of the offence. 

(6) In paragraph (5) “officer” in relation to an unincorporated association, means— 

(a) an officer of the association or a member of its governing body, or 

(b) a person purporting to act in such a capacity. 

Enforcement 

41.—(1) These Regulations are enforced by the relevant local authority. 

(2) The appropriate authority may direct, in relation to cases of a particular description or in 

relation to particular cases, that the appropriate authority will enforce these Regulations instead. 

(3) Where the Secretary of State makes a direction under paragraph (2), the Secretary of State 

may delegate to the Director of Public Prosecutions functions in relation to the prosecution of an 

offence under these Regulations in England. 

(4) A constable may stop and search any vehicle that the constable reasonably believes to be 

carrying pigs and may check documents carried in the vehicle to ensure that pigs are not 

transported in contravention of these Regulations. 

(5) Any vehicle suspected by the constable of carrying pigs in contravention of these 

Regulations may— 

(a) be detained by the constable until an inspector arrives; or 

(b) be ordered by the constable to be taken back to any place it came from. 

Exceptional circumstances 

42. A veterinary inspector may for the purpose of ensuring the health or welfare of any pig in 

exceptional circumstances— 

(a) license a person to carry out any action that is otherwise prohibited under these 

Regulations; or 

(b) exempt a person, by notice, from any requirement under these Regulations. 

Miscellaneous revocations, disapplication and consequential amendments 

43.—(1) The instruments listed in Schedule 5 are revoked. 

(2) Section 31(d) of, and paragraph 4 of Schedule 3 to, the Animal Health Act 1981(a) do not 

apply to the extent that they refer to hog cholera (otherwise known as classical swine fever). 

(3) The Artificial Insemination of Pigs (England and Wales) Regulations 1964(b) are amended 

as follows— 

(a) for regulation 7(2)(b) substitute— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) c.22. Functions conferred under that Act on “the Ministers” (as defined in section 86) are now exercisable in relation to 

England by the Secretary of State. Functions of “the Ministers” were transferred, so far as exercisable by the Secretaries of 
State for Scotland and Wales, to the Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food by the Transfer of Functions (Agriculture 
and Food) Order 1999 (S.I. 1999/3141). Functions of the Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food were then transferred 
to the Secretary of State by the Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food (Dissolution) Order 2002 (S.I. 2002/794). 

(b) S.I. 1964/1172, amended by S.I. 1992/3161; there are other amending instruments but none is relevant. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 57



 27 

“(b) infected premises under the Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014;”, and 

(b) in regulation 7(2)(c), for “or swine fever” substitute “or under the Diseases of Swine 

Regulations 2014”. 

(4) The Artificial Insemination of Pigs (Scotland) Regulations 1964(a) are amended as 

follows— 

(a) for regulation 8(2)(b) substitute— 

“(b) infected premises under the Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014;”, and 

(b) in regulation 8(2)(c), for “or swine fever” substitute “or under the Diseases of Swine 

Regulations 2014”. 

(5) The Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (England) Regulations 2008(b) are 

amended as follows— 

(a) for regulation 3(8) (definition of restricted meat) substitute— 

“(8) Subject to paragraph (9), “restricted meat” is meat, including meat that has come into 

contact with meat— 

(a) produced on or after the date that a protection zone or a surveillance zone is 

declared, or an earlier date where the Secretary of State specifies such a date for 

the purpose of disease control; 

(b) from a restricted animal or restricted poultry that has come from an infected area, a 

protection zone or a surveillance zone; and 

(c) from pigs that have been vaccinated to protect them from classical swine fever for 

6 months (or any other specified period).”; 

(b) in Schedule 1 (disease legislation) omit references to the Classical Swine Fever (England) 

Order 2003, the African Swine Fever (England) Order 2003 and the Swine Vesicular 

Disease Order 1972, and at paragraph 1 insert “The Diseases of Swine Regulations 

2014”. 

(6) The Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Wales) Regulations 2008(c) are amended 

as follows— 

(a) in the English text, for regulation 3(8) (restricted animal, restricted poultry and restricted 

meat: definitions) substitute— 

“(8) Subject to paragraph (9), “restricted meat” (“cig dan gyfyngiadau”) is meat, 

including meat that has come into contact with meat— 

(a) produced on or after the date that a protection zone or a surveillance zone is 

declared, or an earlier date where the Welsh Ministers specify such a date for the 

purpose of disease control; 

(b) from a restricted animal or restricted poultry that has come from an infected area, a 

protection zone or a surveillance zone; and 

(c) from pigs that have been vaccinated to protect them from classical swine fever for 

6 months (or any other specified period).”; 

(b) in the English text of Schedule 1 (disease legislation) omit references to the Classical 

Swine Fever (Wales) Order 2003, the African Swine Fever (Wales) Order 2003 and the 

Swine Vesicular Disease Order 1972, and at paragraph 1 insert “The Diseases of Swine 

Regulations 2014”; 

(c) in the Welsh text, for regulation 3(8) (Anifail, dofednod a chig dan 

gyfyngiadau:diffiniadau) substitute— 

“(8) Yn ddarostyngedig I baragraff (9), “cig dan gyfyngiadau” (“restricted meat”) yw cig, 

sy’n cynnwys cig a ddaeth i gyffyrddiad â chig— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 1964/1171, amended by S.I. 1992/3161; there are other amending instruments but none is relevant. 
(b) S.I. 2008/465, amended by S.I. 2009/1297.  
(c) S.I. 2008/1275 (W. 132), amended by S.I. 2009/1373 (W. 136), 2009/1910 (W. 173). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 58



 28 

(a) a gynhyrchwyd ar neu ar ôl y dyddiad y datganwyd parth gwarchod neu barth 

goruchwylio, neu ddyddiad cynharach os bydd Gweinidogion Cymru yn pennu’r 

dyddiad hwnnw at ddibenion rheoli clefydau; 

(b) sy’n dod o anifail dan gyfyngiadau neu ddofednod dan gyfyngiadau sy’n dod o 

ardal heintiedig, parth gwarchod neu barth goruchwylio; ac 

(c) sy’n dod o foch sydd wedi eu brechu er mwyn eu hamddiffyn rhag clwy clasurol y 

moch am 6 mis (neu unrhyw gyfnod arall a bennwyd).”; 

(d) in the Welsh text of Schedule 1 (deddfwriaeth clefydau) omit references to Gorchymyn 

Clwy Clasurol y Moch (Cymru) 2003, Gorchymyn Clwy Affricanaidd y Moch (Cymru) 

2003 and Gorchymyn Clefyd Pothellog y Moch 1972, and in paragraph 1 insert 

“Rheoliadau Clefydau’r Moch 2014”. 

(7) The Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Scotland) Order 2008(a) is amended as 

follows— 

(a) for article 4(9) (definition of restricted meat) substitute— 

“(9) Subject to paragraph (10), “restricted meat” is meat, including meat that has come 

into contact with meat— 

(a) produced on or after the date that the protection zone or surveillance zone was 

declared, or an earlier date where the Scottish Ministers specify such a date for the 

purpose of disease control; 

(b) from a restricted animal or restricted poultry that has come from an infected area, a 

protection zone or a surveillance zone; and 

(c) from pigs that have been vaccinated to protect them from classical swine fever for 

6 months (or any other specified period).”; 

(b) in Schedule 1 (disease legislation) omit references to the African Swine Fever (Scotland) 

Order 2003, the Classical Swine Fever (Scotland) Order 2003 and the Swine Vesicular 

Disease (Scotland) Order 2009, and at paragraph 1 insert “The Diseases of Swine 

Regulations 2014”. 

Review of the Regulations in England 

44.—(1) Before the end of each review period, the Secretary of State must— 

(a) carry out a review of these Regulations in England; 

(b) set out the conclusions of the review in a report; and 

(c) publish the report. 

(2) In carrying out the review in England the Secretary of State must, so far as is reasonable, 

have regard to how— 

(a) Council Directive 92/119/EEC, 

(b) Council Directive 2001/89/EC, and 

(c) Council Directive 2002/60/EC, 

are implemented in other member States. 

(3) The report must in particular— 

(a) set out the objectives intended to be achieved by the regulatory system established by 

these Regulations; 

(b) assess the extent to which those objectives are achieved; and 

(c) assess whether those objectives remain appropriate and, if so, the extent to which they 

could be achieved with a system that imposes less regulation. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.S.I. 2008/158 as amended by S.S.I. 2009/173, 2009/174. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 29 

(4) The first review period is the period of five years beginning with the date on which these 

Regulations come into force. 

(5) Each subsequent review period is a period of five years beginning with the date on which the 

report of the preceding review was published. 

 

 

 

 George Eustice 

 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

16th July 2014 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

 

 

 Rebecca Evans 

15th July 2014 Deputy Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries 

 Under authority of the Minister for Economy, Science and Transport, one of the Welsh Ministers 

 SCHEDULE 1 Regulation 7(2) 

Measures on suspect, contact and infected premises 

Records 

1. —(1) The occupier must keep a record of the number of pigs of each category of pig 

production on the premises. 

(2) The occupier must take all reasonable steps to update the record to show the number of pigs 

that— 

(a) are alive; 

(b) have died since restrictions under these Regulations were imposed in relation to the 

premises; 

(c) show clinical signs of illness; and 

(d) have been born since restrictions under these Regulations were imposed in relation to the 

premises. 

(3) The occupier must keep the record for at least six months after— 

(a) the revocation of the notice served under regulation 7(2), 8(1) or 10(2), or 

(b) the premises cease to be within any zone declared under Part 6 (so far as the declaration 

applies to the premises), 

whichever is the later. 

Confinement or isolation of pigs 

2. The occupier must ensure that pigs are confined or isolated as directed by a veterinary 

inspector. 

Restriction on movement of pigs 

3. A person must not move any pig or carcase on or off the premises except under the authority 

of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Restriction on removal of any equipment, animal or thing liable to transmit disease 

4. A person must not remove from the premises any equipment, animal or any other thing 

(including genetic material) that may spread disease except under the authority of a licence 

granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 30 

Restrictions on spreading pig manure and slurry 

5. A person must not spread pig manure or slurry except under the authority of a licence granted 

by a veterinary inspector. 

Cleansing, disinfection and other biosecurity measures 

6. The occupier must— 

(a) provide and maintain means of cleansing and disinfection at the entrances to, and exits 

from, the premises and all buildings on those premises housing pigs; and 

(b) comply with any directions from an inspector concerning such means of cleansing and 

disinfection and the imposition of other biosecurity measures (including rodent and vector 

control). 

Restriction on movement of vehicles and persons 

7.—(1) A person must not— 

(a) enter or leave the premises, or 

(b) move any vehicle to or from the premises, 

except under the authority of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

(2) All persons entering or leaving the premises must observe appropriate biosecurity measures 

that may include cleansing and disinfecting footwear, outer clothing, exposed skin and any 

possessions they have on them. 

(3) Sub-paragraph (1) does not apply to any movement necessary for the provision of 

emergency services. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 61



 31 

 SCHEDULE 2 Regulation 20(3) 

Measures in a feral pig investigation or control zone 

Requirement to report a carcase of a feral pig found on premises 

1. An occupier must— 

(a) report to the appropriate authority as soon as possible the location of any carcase of a 

feral pig (including where it has been shot by hunters) found on the premises; and 

(b) not move such carcase other than under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Requirements on occupier of premises containing domestic pigs 

2. Following confirmation of classical swine fever or African swine fever in a feral pig 

occupiers of premises containing domestic pigs must ensure that— 

(a) all pigs on premises are kept in a place on the premises where they are isolated from feral 

pigs; 

(b) no person moves a pig on or off premises except under a licence granted by a veterinary 

inspector; 

(c) appropriate means of cleansing and disinfection are undertaken; 

(d) all persons entering or leaving the premises must observe appropriate biosecurity 

measures that include cleansing and disinfecting footwear, outer clothing, exposed skin 

and any possessions they have on them; and 

(e) vector control is carried out in accordance with any instructions from a veterinary 

inspector. 

3. Following confirmation of swine vesicular disease in a feral pig, the occupier may be required 

by a veterinary inspector to comply with one or more of the requirements specified in paragraph 2. 

Movement of genetic material 

4. Following confirmation of classical swine fever or African swine fever in a feral pig, a person 

must not move pig semen, ova or embryos off the premises unless licensed to do so by a 

veterinary inspector. 

Killing of feral pigs 

5. A person must not kill a feral pig unless licensed to do so by a veterinary inspector. 

Feeding of feral pigs 

6. A person must not feed any feral pig other than in accordance with a licence granted by a 

veterinary inspector. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 32 

 SCHEDULE 3 Regulation 23(7) and (8) 

PART 1 

Measures in a protection zone 

Movement of pigs in a protection zone 

1. A person must not move a pig in a protection zone unless— 

(a) a licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to allow the pig to move from premises 

outside the protection zone direct to a slaughterhouse situated in the zone for immediate 

slaughter in accordance with paragraph 2; 

(b) a licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to allow the movement of the pig between 

two premises within the zone, divided by a public road provided that the two premises 

would be contiguous except for the public road; 

(c) the movement is allowed under paragraph 3; or 

(d) the pig is transported and remains in a vehicle which must not enter any livestock 

premises within the zone. 

 

2. A veterinary inspector may license the movement of a pig from outside the protection zone to 

a designated slaughterhouse inside the zone for immediate slaughter provided that— 

(a) the appropriate authority obtains prior approval from the European Commission for such 

movements; and 

(b) the vehicle transporting the pig is thoroughly cleansed and disinfected at the 

slaughterhouse after the pig has been unloaded. 

Movement of pigs off premises in a protection zone 

3. A licence may be granted by a veterinary inspector after the expiry of the relevant period 

specified in the table to this paragraph to allow movement of a pig off premises in a protection 

zone if directly transported to— 

(a) a designated slaughterhouse; 

(b) a plant where the pig is immediately killed and the carcase is processed in accordance 

with the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013(a), the Animal 

By-Products (Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2013(b) or the Animal By-Products 

(Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2014(c); or 

(c) other premises located in the protection zone, under exceptional circumstances following 

the appropriate authority obtaining approval by the European Commission for such 

movement. 

 

Period that must elapse before movement of a pig off premises in a protection zone may be 

licensed 

Period African Swine 

Fever 

Classical Swine 

Fever 

Swine Vesicular 

Disease 

At least x days have elapsed 

since completion of 

preliminary cleansing and 

x = 40 x = 30 x = 21 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2013/2952. 
(b) S.S.I. 2013/307. 
(c) S.I. 2014/517 (W.60). 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 63



 33 

disinfection of infected 

premises 

At least y days have elapsed 

since the zone has been in 

place and there are multiple 

infected premises 

y = 40 y = 30 y = 30 

Note: In accordance with the Diagnostic Manual, if the appropriate authority has applied an 

intensive sampling and testing programme making it possible to negate the presence of African 

swine fever on the premises, the ‘x’ and ‘y’ periods for that disease are reduced to 30 days. 

 

4. A licence may only be granted under paragraph 3 where— 

(a) a veterinary inspector has inspected the pigs on the premises and has individually 

examined each pig that is to be moved and found no clinical signs suggestive of disease; 

(b) a sufficient number of samples are taken in accordance with the Diagnostic Manual from 

pigs which are to be slaughtered or killed, in order that the presence of disease in the 

batch of pigs can be determined; and 

(c) the pigs to be moved are transported in a vehicle sealed by an inspector. 

Movement of other animals and persons from premises on which pigs are kept 

5. A person must not move any other animal that may carry disease on or off premises in the 

protection zone on which pigs are kept unless licensed by a veterinary inspector, and all persons 

entering or leaving such premises must observe appropriate biosecurity measures to reduce the 

risk of spread of disease. 

Restriction on removal of any thing liable to transmit disease 

6. A person must not move any thing liable to transmit disease, including a carcase, pig genetic 

material or animal feed, off premises on which pigs are kept within the protection zone except 

under the authority of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Restrictions on the transporting and spreading of pig manure or slurry 

7. A person must not transport manure or slurry, which contains waste material of swine origin, 

off premises in the protection zone other than under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

8. A person must not spread manure or slurry, which contains waste material of swine origin 

other than under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Reporting of dead or diseased pigs 

9. The keeper must report all dead or diseased pigs to the appropriate authority. 

PART 2 

Measures in a surveillance zone 

Movement of pigs in a surveillance zone 

10. A person must not move a pig through a surveillance zone unless— 

(a) the pig is transported and remains in a vehicle which must not enter any livestock 

premises within the zone; 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 64



 34 

(b) a licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to allow the pig to move from premises 

outside the surveillance zone direct to a slaughterhouse within the zone for immediate 

slaughter in accordance with paragraph 11; 

(c) a licence is granted by a veterinary inspector to allow the movement of the pig between 

premises, divided by a public road provided that the premises would be contiguous except 

for the public road; or 

(d) the movement is licensed under paragraph 12 in the case of swine vesicular disease, or 

under paragraph 13 in the case of African swine fever and classical swine fever. 

11. A veterinary inspector may license the movement of a pig from outside the surveillance zone 

to a designated slaughterhouse within the zone for immediate slaughter provided that the vehicle 

transporting the pig is thoroughly cleansed and disinfected at the slaughterhouse after the pig has 

been unloaded. 

Movement of pigs off premises in a surveillance zone for swine vesicular disease 

12. A licence may be granted by a veterinary inspector to allow the movement of pigs off 

premises in a surveillance zone to other premises within the zone declared for the control of swine 

vesicular disease, provided that no pig has moved on to the premises of origin in the previous 21 

days, and where— 

(a) a veterinary inspector has inspected the pigs on the premises of origin and has 

individually examined each pig that is to be moved and found no clinical signs suggestive 

of swine vesicular disease; 

(b) a serological examination— 

(i) of a statistical sample of the pigs to be moved has been carried out at the keeper’s 

expense without the detection of antibodies to the swine vesicular disease virus 

within the 14 days preceding the movement; or 

(ii) in the case of pigs going for slaughter, may be carried out on the basis of blood 

samples taken at the designated slaughterhouse; and 

(c) the pigs to be moved are transported in a vehicle sealed by an inspector. 

Movement of pigs off premises in a surveillance zone for African swine fever and classical 

swine fever 

13. A licence may be granted by a veterinary inspector to allow movement of a pig after the 

expiry of the relevant period specified in the table to this paragraph if the pig is transported 

directly— 

(a) to a designated slaughterhouse; 

(b) to a plant where the pig is immediately killed and the carcase is processed in accordance 

with the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013, the Animal By-

Products (Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 or the Animal By-Products 

(Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2014; or 

(c) in exceptional circumstances, to other premises located in the zone. 

 

Period that must elapse before movement of a pig off premises in a surveillance zone may be 

licensed 

Period African Swine Fever Classical Swine Fever 

At least x days have elapsed 

since completion of 

preliminary cleansing and 

disinfection of infected 

premises 

x = 30 

 

x = 21 

 

At least y days have elapsed 

since the zone has been in 

y = 40 

 

y = 30 

 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 65



 35 

place and there are multiple 

infected premises 

   

Note: In accordance with the Diagnostic Manual, if the appropriate authority has applied an 

intensive sampling and testing programme making it possible to negate the presence of African 

swine fever on the premises, the “x” and “y” periods for that disease are reduced to 21 days and 30 

days respectively. 

14. A licence may only be granted under paragraph 13 where— 

(a) a veterinary inspector has inspected the pigs on the premises of origin and individually 

examined each pig to be moved and found no clinical signs suggestive of African swine 

fever or classical swine fever; 

(b) a sufficient number of samples are taken in accordance with the Diagnostic Manual from 

pigs which are to be slaughtered or killed, in order that the presence of disease in the 

batch of pigs can be determined; and 

(c) the pigs to be moved are transported in a vehicle sealed by an inspector. 

Movement of other animals and persons from premises on which pigs are kept 

15. A person must not move any other animal which might carry disease on to or off premises in 

the surveillance zone on which pigs are kept unless— 

(a) under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector; and 

(b) all persons entering or leaving such premises where pigs are kept observe appropriate 

biosecurity measures to reduce the risk of spread of disease. 

Restriction on removal of any thing liable to transmit disease 

16. A person must not move any thing liable to transmit disease, including a carcase, pig genetic 

material or animal feed, off premises on which pigs are kept within the surveillance zone except 

under the authority of a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Restrictions on the transporting and spreading of pig manure or slurry 

17. A person must not transport manure or slurry, which contains waste material of swine origin, 

off premises in the surveillance zone other than under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

18. A person must not spread manure or slurry, which contains waste material of swine origin, 

other than under a licence granted by a veterinary inspector. 

Reporting of dead or diseased pigs 

19. The keeper must report all dead or diseased pigs to the appropriate authority. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 66



 36 

 SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 23(9) 

Cleansing and disinfection of vehicles 

Cleansing and disinfection of vehicles in a protection zone 

1.—(1) The person in charge of— 

(a) any vehicle used to transport pigs within a protection zone, 

(b) any vehicle used to transport other livestock or material which may be contaminated with 

disease, or 

(c) any other vehicle which may be contaminated with disease, 

may not leave the premises of destination without having thoroughly cleansed and disinfected the 

vehicle and any equipment in it so as to minimise the risk of spread of disease. 

(2) In all cases, the person in charge of the vehicle must at least— 

(a) cleanse and disinfect its wheels, wheel arches, mud flaps and any other part of the vehicle 

that may contain contaminated material; and 

(b) ensure that the vehicle and any associated equipment is not visibly contaminated with 

mud, faeces or other material. 

(3) A person must not allow a vehicle that has been used to transport pigs in the protection zone 

to leave the zone following cleansing and disinfection without being inspected and licensed to 

leave by an inspector. 

Cleansing and disinfection of vehicles in a surveillance zone 

2.—(1) A person in charge of a vehicle used to transport a pig within a surveillance zone, or 

other livestock or material which may be contaminated with disease, or any other vehicle which 

may be contaminated with disease, must not leave the premises of destination without having 

cleansed and disinfected the vehicle and any equipment in it so as to minimise the risk of spread of 

disease. 

(2) In all cases, the person in charge of the vehicle must at least— 

(a) cleanse and disinfect its wheels, wheel arches and mud flaps; and 

(b) ensure that the vehicle and any equipment therein is not visibly contaminated with mud, 

faeces or other material. 

Cleansing of vehicles which have moved a pig to premises outside of a protection or 

surveillance zone 

3. Where a person transports a pig to premises outside of a protection or surveillance zone, that 

person must arrange for cleansing and disinfection to take place at that place of destination after 

delivery of the pig. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 67



 37 

 SCHEDULE 5 Regulation 43(1) 

Revocations 

 

Instruments revoked References 

The African Swine Fever 

Compensation Order 1980 

S.I. 1980/146 

The Classical Swine Fever 

(England) Order 2003 

S.I. 2003/2329 

The Classical Swine Fever 

(Wales) Order 2003 

S.I. 2003/2456 (W.239) 

The Classical Swine Fever 

(Scotland) Order 2003 

S.S.I. 2003/426 

The African Swine Fever 

(England) Order 2003 

S.I. 2003/2913 

The African Swine Fever 

(Wales) Order 2003 

S.I. 2003/ 3273 (W.323) 

The African Swine Fever 

(Scotland) Order 2003 

S.S.I. 2003/586 

The Swine Vesicular Disease 

Regulations 2009 

S.I. 2009/1299 

The Swine Vesicular Disease 

(Wales) Regulations 2009 

S.I. 2009/1372 (W.135) 

The Swine Vesicular Disease 

(Amendment)(Wales) 

Regulations 2009 

S.I. 2009/1580 (W.156) 

The Swine Vesicular Disease 

(Scotland) Order 2009 

S.S.I. 2009/173 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 68



 38 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations implement the provisions for the control of— 

(a) swine vesicular disease contained in Council Directive 92/119/EEC introducing general 

Community measures for the control of certain animal diseases and specific measures 

relating to swine vesicular disease (OJ No L 62, 15.3.1993, p 69); 

(b) classical swine fever contained in Council Directive 2001/89/EC on Community 

measures for the control of classical swine fever (OJ No L 316, 1.12.2001, p 5); 

(c) African swine fever contained in Council Directive 2002/60/EC laying down specific 

control of African swine fever and amending Directive 92/119/EEC as regards Teschen 

disease and African swine fever (OJ No L 192, 20.7.2002, p 27). 

Part 1 is introductory and includes definitions. 

Part 2 deals with requirements for disease notification and the investigation of suspicion of 

disease. 

Part 3 deals with measures to be taken on infected premises where disease is confirmed. 

Part 4 deals with measures to be taken on suspicion and confirmation of disease at a 

slaughterhouse. 

Part 5 deals with measures to be taken on suspicion and confirmation of disease in feral pigs. 

Part 6 makes provision for the establishment of protection zones, surveillance zones and infection 

zones following the confirmation of disease on any premises. 

Part 7 prohibits vaccination against disease except in certain circumstances. For classical swine 

fever provision is made for declaring an emergency vaccination zone. 

Part 8 contains provisions relating to inspection and enforcement. 

These Regulations are enforced by the local authority (as defined in regulation 2(1)) or, if so 

directed, by the appropriate authority (as defined in regulation 2(2)). 

Breach of any of the provisions listed in regulation 39 is an offence punishable on summary 

conviction or on conviction on indictment. On summary conviction, the offence is punishable with 

a fine not exceeding the statutory maximum or imprisonment for a term not exceeding three 

months, or both. On conviction on indictment, the offence is punishable with a fine or 

imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or both. 

Regulation 43 deals with revocations, consequential amendments and a disapplication of 

provisions contained in the Animal Health Act 1981 (c. 22) in so far as they applied to classical 

swine fever. 

Regulation 44 requires the Secretary of State to review the operation and effect of these 

Regulations in England only and publish a report within five years after they come into force and 

within five years after that and each subsequent publication. 

An impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument as no negative impact on the 

costs of the private or voluntary sectors is foreseen. An Explanatory Memorandum is published 

alongside the instrument on www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Certified copy from legislation.gov.uk Publishing

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Explanatory Memorandum to the Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014. 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Office of the Chief 
Veterinary Officer and is laid before the National Assembly for Wales in 
conjunction with the above subordinate legislation and in accordance with 
Standing Order 27.1.  
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of the Diseases of Swine Regulations 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Evans 
 
Deputy Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries 
 
15 July 2014 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



1. Description 

 

This Statutory Instrument sets out the control procedures to be used in an 
outbreak of Classical Swine Fever (CSF), African Swine Fever (ASF) or 
Swine Vesicular Disease (SVD).   
 

2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 
Committee 

 
The Order will be made by the Welsh Ministers and the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs acting separately, but within a single 
composite legal instrument.  The Secretary of State will act in relation to 
England and Scotland.   
 
The Welsh Ministers may exercise powers under section 2(2) of the European 
Communities Act 1972. Section 59(2) of the Government of Wales Act 2006 
empowers the Welsh Ministers to exercise the section 2(2) powers if they 
have been appropriately designated for the purposes of section 2(2). The 
Welsh Ministers have been designated in relation to the common agricultural 
policy.  The relevant Designation Order is SI 2010/2690. 
 
A composite instrument is likely to minimise the differences of approach 
between administrations. Furthermore, the order will be implemented across 
Great Britain by the Animal Health and Veterinary Laboratories Agency and a 
single instrument with wholly common provisions is far more advantageous to 
the Agency.  Defra and the Welsh Government consider the consistent policy 
and implementation dates and enforcement coordination achieved by a 
composite statutory instrument are desirable for all three administrations and 
for those affected by the Order who may otherwise have to consult several 
pieces of legislation.    
 
As this instrument is also subject to a Parliamentary procedure it is not 
considered reasonable or practicable for them to be made bilingually.   
 
It is therefore considered appropriate that the Regulations be made by the 
Assembly’s negative resolution procedure.   
 

3. Legislative background 

 

These Regulations are made under section 2(2) of the European 
Communities Act 1972 and provide for the implementation of the CSF Council 
Directive 2001/89/EC, the ASF Directive 2002/60/EC, and the SVD Directive 
92/119/EC.  The Regulations only apply when ASF, CSF or SVD are 
suspected or confirmed in the GB.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 71



Previously, the SVD Directive has been transposed utilising the enabling 
powers available in the 1972 Act, but CSF and ASF Directives have been 
transposed by two separate Orders made under the Animal Health Act 1981.  
 
These Regulations replace eleven SIs (as set out below) and certain powers 
from the Animal Health Act 1981 are disapplied. 
 

4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 

 

Pig notifiable disease outbreaks can cause significant impacts and costs to 
both industry and the taxpayer.  If an outbreak occurs, government 
intervention is important in order to eradicate disease and regain disease 
freedom as quickly as possible. 
 
These Regulations consolidate legislation for the control of disease during an 
outbreak of ASF, CSF or SVD in GB by replacing 11 Statutory Instruments: 
 

  The African Swine Fever Compensation Order 1980 

  The African Swine Fever (Wales) Order 2003 

  The African Swine Fever (England) Order 2003 

  The African Swine Fever (Scotland) Order 2003  

  The Classical Swine Fever (Wales) Order 2003 

  The Classical Swine Fever (England) Order 2003 

  The Classical Swine Fever (Scotland) Order 2003 

  The Swine Vesicular Disease (Wales) Regulations 2009   

  The Swine Vesicular Disease (Amendment)(Wales) Regulations 2009 

  The Swine Vesicular Disease Regulations 2009  

  The Swine Vesicular Disease (Scotland) Order 2009) 
 
The Regulations implement EU law (namely Directive 2001/89/EC for CSF; 
Directive 2002/60/EC for ASF and Directive 92/119/EC for SVD), which 
requires EU Member States to take strict control measures to eradicate 
disease quickly and effectively if an outbreak occurs in its territory.  Having a 
single GB-wide instrument should lead to improved compliance and more 
effective enforcement of controls during an outbreak. 
 
The Regulations are clear and transparent about the measures to be taken 
during an outbreak of one of these diseases in GB, which in turn should 
reduce the impact of any outbreak by aiding compliance and enforcement of 
controls.  The Welsh Government needs the appropriate legal powers to 
deliver a fast and effective response to any outbreak of CSF, ASF or SVD. 
The overall aim is to reduce the total costs and burdens of the disease 
outbreak to businesses and taxpayers. 
 
As with the previous legislation, the Regulations would only apply when ASF, 
CSF or SVD are suspected or confirmed in GB. The likelihood of a disease 
outbreak in GB is assessed as being very low for CSF and ASF and negligible 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



for SVD. The last outbreak of CSF occurred in the UK in 2000; the last case of 
SVD occurred in the UK in 1982; ASF has never occurred in the UK.  
 
A table identifying the key changes to the current legislation addressed in the 
Diseases of Swine Regulations can be found at Doc 1. 

5. Consultation  

 
A four week public consultation was carried out on these Regulations from the 
28 April.  It was a joint consultation paper agreed by the Welsh Government, 
Scottish Government and Defra.  Defra co-ordinated the process and the 
relevant consultation documents were published on GOV.UK 

(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?departments%5B%5D=department-for-

environment-food-rural-affairs&publication_filter_option=consultations). Formal invitations 
to reply were sent to all major industry stakeholder organisations.   
 
Prior to the formal consultation, a number of stakeholders had been informally 
consulted during the drafting of the SI. Also during 2013, a Tier 2 UK-wide 
CSF emergency exercise, Exercise Walnut, was undertaken to assess 
readiness to respond to an outbreak of CSF. The exercise employed an 
advanced draft of the Regulations and lessons identified were taken account 
of in the version of the Regulations consulted on.  
 
There were 8 responses in total.  A summary of these responses is scheduled 
to be published on 14 July 2014 on the GOV.UK website. 
 
The consultation responses clearly supported the idea of consolidating the 
existing regulations for CSF, ASF and SVD (87.5% agree & 12.5% strongly 
agree).   
 
The consultation also asked for the industry whether SVD should be included 
in the Regulations as a recent decision from the World Organisation for 
Animal Health may mean that the existing controls for this disease may no 
longer be required in the future.  Alternatively, it was proposed that all parties 
continue to rely on the separate SVD orders made in Wales, England and 
Scotland in 2009.  Half of the consultation responses supported the inclusion 
of SVD in the Diseases of Swine Regulations.  50% of the responses were 
clear in their support for retaining SVD requirements in the regulations, 12.5% 
were undecided and three parties (37.5%) were in favour of its removal. 
 
There was unanimous agreement that the Regulations should include a 
limited derogation from culling certain category of pigs.  This derogation was 
not included in the current CSF and ASF regulations as they were made in 
2003, before the derogation was enshrined in EU law. This derogation is in 
the current SVD regulations.  The derogation will allow, in strictly controlled 
circumstances, for some pigs to be exempted from slaughter if they are for 
scientific research, educational purposes or of high value for conservation or 
genetic purposes.  This would be subject to strict biosecurity requirements 
and dependent on approval by a Veterinary Inspector. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 73

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?departments%5B%5D=department-for-environment-food-rural-affairs&publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?departments%5B%5D=department-for-environment-food-rural-affairs&publication_filter_option=consultations


In addition to the above, some technical redrafting has been undertaken to 
address improvements identified by consultation responses. 
 
6. Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA)  
 
An RIA has not been prepared as the Diseases of Swine Regulations 
consolidate existing regulations and transpose European Commission 
Directives. 
 
The Disease of Swine Regulations will have no negative impact on business, 
charities or voluntary bodies compared to existing domestic legislation that is 
being revoked by this instrument. 
 
The legislation does not apply when there are no suspected or confirmed 
cases of the pig notifiable diseases ASF, CSF or SVD in GB.   
 
In the event of an outbreak, there are no new costs to businesses under this 
legislation as the GB control policy remains unchanged.  The likelihood of a 
disease outbreak is currently assessed as being very low for CSF and ASF, 
and negligible for SVD by AHVLA International Disease Monitoring team. 
 
This instrument will have no negative impact on the public sector compared to 
existing domestic legislation that is being revoked by this instrument. 
 
The Regulations do not have any effect relevant to the statutory duties at 
sections 77-79 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, or to the statutory 
partners (sections 72-75). 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 74



Doc 1 
 

Comparison of the proposed Diseases of Swine SI with existing 
domestic legislation 

 

 Disease control 
measure/s 

The proposed Diseases of Swine SI 

1 Killing of pigs on 
an Infected 
Premises 

 The potential derogation from culling for special 
categories of pigs (including breeds at risk, research 
animals and zoo animals) available under the EU law for 
ASF and CSF is included.  This derogation was omitted from 
the ASF and CSF 2003 Orders.  This will make it possible to 
spare rare and genetically valuable pigs (which may also 
have a high monetary value) from culling in exceptional 
circumstances where disease control would not be 
jeopardised and consideration of wider issues and impacts 
allow this.   

 EU law requires all pigs to be killed on a premises 
infected with ASF.  The Joint Committee on Statutory 
Instruments reported that the ASF (England) Order 2003 
failed to clearly implement the EU requirement to kill all pigs 
on infected premises.  The Welsh ASF Order mirrored the 
English one.  The proposed SI clearly transposes the EU 
requirement and therefore reduces the risk of legal 
challenge.     

2 Declaration of 
control zones  

EU law requires Member States to put in place control 
zones (a protection and surveillance zone) around a 
premises where disease has been confirmed.  The process 
for declaring control zones has been simplified and 
improved by removing the existing requirement to use 
declaratory orders to establish control zones for ASF and 
CSF.  Declaratory orders involve a statutory process, which 
may take more time.    

3 Declaration of a 
Temporary Control 
Zone (TCZ) around 
a suspect premises 
for SVD 

If there is a clinical suspect case of SVD, Foot-and-Mouth 
Disease (FMD) would also be suspected (as the clinical 
signs for SVD and FMD in pigs are identical) and therefore a 
FMD TCZ would be put in place, with movement controls on 
all FMD-susceptible animals, including cattle, sheep, pigs 
and goats.  However, in a scenario that SVD alone is 
suspected (i.e. from a non-negative pre-export test), the 
proposed SI includes optional powers for a SVD-specific 
TCZ, which requires movements controls on pigs only and 
optional controls on the movement of other animals that may 
spread disease.  

Tudalen y pecyn 75



4 Measures when 
disease has been 
confirmed in 
domestic pigs 

Whilst the GB disease control strategy remains the same, 
there is greater transparency about the likely control 
measures to be applied during a disease outbreak in the 
proposed regulations.   

For example, the responsibilities of the occupier of the 
premises and the delivery partner (AHVLA) for cleansing 
and disinfection of infected premises are more clearly set 
out.  Also the proposed legislation is transparent about what 
control measures apply in the protection and surveillance 
zones for all the diseases.     

5 Measures when 
suspicion and 
confirmation of 
disease in feral 
pigs 

The proposed legislation more clearly sets out the full set of 
powers and control measures required to effectively control 
disease in feral pigs when there is suspicion or confirmation 
of disease and to demonstrate disease freedom as quickly 
as possible.   

6 Vaccination policy Under EU law there are a number of controls required if 
vaccination against CSF is permitted.  Previous FVO audits 
have criticised the fact that these controls were omitted in 
the current CSF 2003 Orders and would therefore require 
emergency legislation to be drafted if vaccination was 
permitted during a serious outbreak of CSF.   

This is addressed in the proposed Regulations.  

Our published GB policy on vaccination is unchanged – 
vaccination would not be a routine control measure and is 
unlikely to be considered appropriate during a controlled 
outbreak of CSF.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 76



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AC/AM 
 Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

Ffacs * Fax 029 2082 1879 
YP.PrifWeinidog@cymru.gsi.gov.uk • 

ps.firstminister@wales.gsi.gov.uk   

 

 
Ein cyf/Our ref: MB-FM-3278-14 
 
 
 
David Melding AC 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 
 
                       31ain Gorffennaf 2014 
 
 
Annwyl David, 
 
Rwy’n ysgrifennu atoch i roi’r diweddaraf am y cynnydd o ran y Canllawiau i Adrannau 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar gydweithio â Llywodraeth y DU mewn perthynas â deddfwriaeth. Y 
rhain yw ‘canllawiau cyfatebol’ Llywodraeth Cymru sy’n adlewyrchu Nodiadau Cyfarwyddyd 
ar Ddatganoli 9 a 17.  
 
Yn ein hymateb i adolygiad y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol o 
ganlyniadau ei Ymchwiliad i Bwerau a roddwyd i Weinidogion Cymru mewn perthynas â 
deddfau’r DU, adroddais ein bod wedi anfon copi o’n canllawiau drafft i Swyddfa Cymru i’w 
hystyried. 
 
Mae wedi cymryd mwy o amser na’r disgwyl i ddod i gytundeb ar eiriad terfynol y 
‘canllawiau cyfatebol’ ond bellach mae hyn wedi’i setlo a gallaf rannu copi â chi.  
 
 

Yn gywir 

                           
CARWYN JONES  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 77

Eitem 4.1



 1 

LIAISON WITH THE UK GOVERNMENT ON ASSEMBLY BILLS, 
PARLIAMENTARY BILLS, ORDERS MODIFYING THE ASSEMBLY’S 
LEGISLATIVE COMPETENCE AND CHANGES TO THE WELSH 
MINISTERS’ EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 
 
GUIDANCE TO WELSH GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS 
 
Summary 
 
1. This is guidance for Welsh Government officials to follow in the interests of 

efficient and effective handling of Welsh Government and UK Government 
legislation where one government leads but the other has an interest.  The 
guidance deals with four matters: 

 Assembly Bills; 

 Parliamentary Bills; 

 modifying the Assembly’s Legislative Competence; and 

 changes to the Welsh Ministers’ Executive Functions. 
 
2. Early engagement and effective communication between the Welsh Government 

and the UK Government is crucial whenever proposals for Bills are likely to raise 
issues of concern to the other Government: for example, where Assembly Bills 
seek to modify certain functions of Ministers of the Crown, or have cross-border 
implications; or where parliamentary Bills seek to make provision in relation to 
Wales in areas of devolved legislative competence, or modify the Welsh 
Ministers’ functions, or have cross-border implications. 

 
3. The Assembly’s legislative competence, and the Welsh Ministers’ functions, can 

be modified by means of Orders in Council provided for under the Government of 
Wales Act 2006 (‘the 2006 Act’), as well as in parliamentary Bills.  Any proposals 
for such modification, whether through a parliamentary Bill or an Order in Council 
under the 2006 Act, should also be subject to early engagement and consultation 
between the Welsh and UK Governments. 

 
4. It is therefore expected that Welsh Government and UK Government 

Departments will establish and maintain close working relationships when taking 
forward legislation in relation to Wales. 

 
5. Discussions on forthcoming legislation are conducted on a confidential basis and 

there will be tight deadlines.  Lead officials should seek to agree timescales and 
deadlines as early as possible and make clear to colleagues the importance of 
meeting them. 

 
6. This guidance is reciprocal to the UK Government guidance to UK Government 

departments on handling Parliamentary and Assembly Primary Legislation 
Affecting Wales (Devolution Guidance Note 9 [DGN9]) and Modifying the 
Legislative Competence of the National Assembly for Wales (Devolution 
Guidance Note 17 [DGN17]). It should be read in conjunction with the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the UK Government and Devolved 
Administrations. 

Tudalen y pecyn 78

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/devolution-guidance-notes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/devolution-guidance-notes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/devolution-guidance-notes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/devolution-guidance-notes
http://wales.gov.uk/about/organisationexplained/intergovernmental/memoofunderstanding/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/about/organisationexplained/intergovernmental/memoofunderstanding/?lang=en


 2 

ASSEMBLY BILLS 
 
Key points 
 

7. The Welsh Government should: 
 

 identify and liaise with the lead UK Government Department(s) and the Wales 
Office on any issues in Bills which relate to UK Government responsibilities, at 
the earliest possible stage after securing a place in the legislative programme 
and securing Ministerial agreement to engage. 

 

 confirm to Ministers at the point clearance for introduction is sought that - 
 
o potential vires or intervention issues have been explored;  
o the Bill is within the legislative competence of the Assembly; and  
o all issues relating to competence and matters which are the responsibility 

of the UK Government have either been, or are expected to be, resolved 
with the UK Government; or 

o where there is a difference of opinion, the Welsh Government's position 
has been agreed by the First Minister. 

 
Legislative competence 
 

8. The Assembly has primary law-making powers for Wales in relation to a broad 
range of subjects set out in twenty areas in Schedule 7 to the 2006 Act. The 
Assembly is said to have ‘legislative competence’ (i.e. the power to pass primary 
legislation) in relation to these subjects. 

 
9. Assembly Acts are Welsh laws, passed by the Assembly. They can make any 

provision that could be made by Act of Parliament, subject to the constraints set 
out in the 2006 Act.  These include a prohibition on Assembly Bills containing 
provision which is incompatible with Convention Rights, as set out in the Human 
Rights Act 1998, or with EU law. Section 110 of the 2006 Act requires the 
Member in Charge of the Bill and the Presiding Officer, to satisfy themselves that 
any Bill introduced into the Assembly is within the legislative competence of the 
Assembly and make a statement to that effect. 

 
Minister of the Crown functions 
 
10. An Act of the Assembly can do the following only with the consent of the 

Secretary of State: 
 

 confer or impose a new function on a Minister of the Crown1;  

 remove or modify a function which a Minister of the Crown could have 
exercised before the Assembly Act provisions came into force (i.e. before 5 
May 2011) unless the provision removing or modifying the function is 
incidental to, or consequential on, any other provision in the relevant 
Assembly Act (in which case consent is not needed – see paragraph 12). 

                                            
1
 A Minister of the Crown is a Minister in the UK Government, and includes HM Treasury. 

Tudalen y pecyn 79



 3 

11. The consent in writing of the Secretary of State to any provision in an Assembly 
Bill that does either of the above should be obtained before the Bill is introduced 
in the Assembly.  You should seek advice from Legal Services to establish 
whether the consent of the Secretary of State is required. 

 
12. An Act of the Assembly can do the following without the consent of the Secretary 

of State: 
 

 modify or remove a Minister of the Crown function if the function  became 
exercisable by the Minister, after the Assembly Act provisions came into force 
(i.e. from 5 May 2011);  

 make changes to a Minister of the Crown function which are incidental to or 
consequential on any other provision in the relevant Assembly Act; 

 
13. If a Bill modifies or removes a Minister of the Crown function for which consent is 

required, but this has not been obtained, it will mean the Bill or part of the Bill is 
not within the Assembly's legislative competence if the Bill is passed. 

 
Powers of intervention 
 
14. The Counsel General and/or the Attorney General may refer an Assembly Bill to 

the Supreme Court to determine whether the Bill (or specific provision in the Bill) 
is within the Assembly’s legislative competence.  The Supreme Court may in turn 
seek a preliminary ruling from the European Court of Justice if the issue relates to 
compatibility with EU law. 

 
15. In addition, the UK Government has powers to intervene to prevent an Assembly 

Bill from becoming law, even if it would be within the Assembly’s legislative 
competence, if the Secretary of State has reasonable grounds to believe that it 
would have an adverse effect on non-devolved matters; that it might have a 
serious adverse impact on water resources, supply or quality in England; that it 
would have an adverse effect on the operation of the law as it applies in England; 
or that it would be incompatible with any international obligation or the interests of 
defence or national security. 

 
16. Engagement between the Welsh Government and the UK Government is 

necessary on Bills prior to introduction, and in particular on any aspects which 
may require consent in respect of Minister of the Crown functions or could trigger 
questions as to their impact on UK Government responsibilities. 

 
Bills under preparation 
 

Liaison with the UK Government on Welsh Government Bills 
 
17. When considering the case for legislation, Welsh Government Departments 

should consider, in conjunction with Legal Services, whether any aspects of the 
proposals appear to raise questions about legislative competence, or matters 
concerning UK Government responsibilities on which the UK Government will 
need to be consulted. The UK Government will need to be engaged at the 
earliest opportunity in order that any issues are resolved before the Bill is 

Tudalen y pecyn 80



 4 

introduced. The lead Minister will need to consider how best to explore these 
matters with the UK Government. There are a number of concordats in place 
which set out frameworks for cooperation between the Welsh Government and 
individual UK Government Departments:  

 
http://wales.gov.uk/about/organisationexplained/intergovernmental/concordats/?s
kip=1&lang=en 

 
18. Where there is a policy consultation on the content of a Bill, this will be the most 

straightforward vehicle for establishing whether the UK Government has any 
views, although the UK Government will not formally respond as part of that 
consultation.  The Bill Team must be proactive in identifying and drawing 
attention to potential issues, and this must be kept under review during the 
preparation of instructions and drafting process. 
 

19. Where a Draft Bill is published for consultation prior to introduction, this will also 
allow any questions about legislative competence, or impact on matters which 
are the responsibility of the UK Government, to be tested in detail; but these 
matters should have been the subject of discussion with the UK Government 
during the development of the Bill prior to consultation. 

 
20. Where there is a need for Secretary of State consent in respect of Minister of the 

Crown functions, sufficient time should be allowed to engage with the relevant 
Department, and the Wales Office, to enable them to reach a position on whether 
or not to give consent, or to agree alternative courses of action. Following this 
engagement, the formal request for consent should be made in a letter from the 
Minister in charge of the Bill, to the relevant UK Government Minister and the 
Secretary of State for Wales.  Where a Bill will be making changes to functions 
for which consent is not required, the Bill team should inform the relevant UK 
Department and the Wales Office, as there could be a difference of opinion as to 
whether or not consent is required, which needs to be resolved. 

 
21. When clearance for introduction of the Bill is sought, Ministers must be briefed on 

the position with regard to legislative competence and the potential impact on 
matters which are the responsibility of the UK Government.  As far as questions 
of legislative competence are concerned, the Minister must be satisfied that he or 
she can make the statement on legislative competence that he or she is required 
to make, as Member in Charge of the Bill (see paragraph 9 above).  As far as 
issues impacting on non-devolved matters are concerned, Ministers must be 
satisfied that the UK Government has been given sufficient opportunity to 
express any views, and that any concerns voiced by the UK Government about 
the implications of the Bill for its areas of responsibility have either been resolved, 
or are expected to be resolved, before the Bill is passed. Where there is a 
difference of opinion between the Welsh and UK Governments, Ministers must be 
aware of the risk of a reference or formal intervention (see paragraphs 14 and 15 
above) should they decide to proceed. The Welsh Government's position in such 
cases must be agreed by the First Minister. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 81

http://wales.gov.uk/about/organisationexplained/intergovernmental/concordats/?skip=1&lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/about/organisationexplained/intergovernmental/concordats/?skip=1&lang=en


 5 

22. On the day of introduction into the Assembly, the Legislative Programme Unit will 
send a copy of the Bill to the Wales Office, who will send it to other relevant UK 
Government Departments. 

 
Bills before the Assembly 
 

23. The content of an Assembly Bill, including the policy it seeks to deliver, is for the 
National Assembly for Wales to scrutinise and approve. The UK Government will 
scrutinise the Bill to ensure that it does not impact adversely on matters which 
are the responsibility of the UK Government. It may make representations to the 
Welsh Government during the passage of the Bill requesting either clarification 
on effect, or specific amendments, and will come to its own decision on using the 
powers of reference or intervention if the Bill is passed.  

 
Amendments 
 
24. Questions relating to legislative competence and Minister of the Crown functions 

need to be addressed when Government amendments are proposed to a Bill.  As 
with Bill preparation, engagement needs to take place with UK Government as 
soon as possible.  

 
25. These requirements apply also to non-government amendments which are made 

to the Bill at the amending Stages of Assembly consideration. Bill teams may 
need to liaise with UK Government to identify potential issues and, if necessary, 
seek Secretary of State consent in relation to changes to Minister of the Crown 
functions. 

 
Members’, Assembly Commission, and Committee Bills 
 
26. These Bills can also give rise to issues about legislative competence and Minister 

of the Crown functions which need to be discussed with the Wales Office and 
relevant UK Government Departments. The Welsh Government will liaise with the 
UK Government where possible, but its ability to do this will depend on the 
amount of information it has regarding the Bill before it is introduced. The Welsh 
Government may also make approaches on behalf of the Member in Charge. 

 
 

PARLIAMENTARY BILLS 
 
Key points 
 

27. Welsh Government Departments should: 
 

 identify proposals for parliamentary legislation on devolved matters as early 
as possible, and brief Ministers at an early stage; 

 

 be proactive in seeking information from the lead UK Government Department 
and the Wales Office, and advising them of Welsh Government views; 

 

 support UK Bill teams as required in relation to Welsh provisions in UK Bills. 

Tudalen y pecyn 82



 6 

Principles 
 

28. The Welsh Government follows the principle that primary legislation on devolved 
matters should generally be enacted by the National Assembly.  However, there 
may be circumstances where it makes sense for a provision which is within the 
Assembly’s legislative competence to be included in a parliamentary Bill.  If 
provisions which are within the Assembly’s legislative competence are included in 
a parliamentary Bill, Welsh Ministers will need to gain the consent of the 
Assembly by means of a Legislative Consent Motion (LCM).  

 
29. Early and effective engagement is dependent on having good information from 

UK Government Departments about proposals for parliamentary Bills.  Welsh 
Government Departments should build relationships in order to facilitate the 
exchange of information, and explain requirements such as the potential need for 
Assembly consent for relevant provisions. 

 
30. Welsh Government Departments should engage with their UK Government 

counterparts as soon as they become aware of the development of parliamentary 
Bills, and keep in touch throughout the process. UK departments are themselves 
required to identify and substantially resolve devolution issues before a bill is 
introduced into Parliament, see paragraph 35. 

 
31. Welsh Government Departments should identify a lead Welsh Government 

official to co-ordinate communications between the UK Bill Team, the Wales 
Office and Welsh Government interests (see paras 35-36 below). 

 
Nature of provisions relating to Wales in parliamentary Bills 
 

32. The options for provisions relating to Wales in parliamentary Bills are varied.  
Officials will need to consider first of all whether or not the provisions fall within 
areas of policy which are devolved in Wales: 
 
a) Provisions in areas of policy responsibility which are not devolved in 

Wales: while these provisions will often apply in the same way in both 

England and Wales (and possibly Scotland and Northern Ireland too), they 
may include functions for Welsh Ministers in non-devolved areas.  Such 
provisions would not require a legislative consent motion, but Welsh Ministers’ 
consent should be sought for any modification of their functions (see 
paragraph 45 below) 
 

b) Provisions in areas of policy responsibility which are devolved in Wales: 
these provisions may apply in the same way in England and Wales (and 
possibly Scotland and Northern Ireland), or the provisions for Wales may be 
different.  These provisions require a legislative consent motion, and officials 
will need to advise Welsh Ministers on the options, including whether or not 
the provisions should be made in the UK parliamentary bill.  

 
33. If Welsh Ministers agree that provision in a devolved area of policy should be 

made in a UK parliamentary bill, then the options for those Welsh provisions 
include: 

Tudalen y pecyn 83



 7 

 
a) “mirror” provisions making the same provision for Wales as for England but 

conferring powers on the Welsh Ministers rather than the Secretary of State, 
as regards Wales: this can include separate commencement provisions, or 
take the form of a Welsh Ministers’ power to apply the provisions in Wales 

b) different provision for Wales (while remaining within the scope of the Bill) 
c) provision which “saves” existing provisions for Wales – i.e. changes are made 

for England, but not for Wales 
d) provision which modifies the legislative competence of the Assembly 

(normally, we would expect modifications of the Assembly’s legislative 
competence to be taken forward through an Order in Council under section 
109 of the Government of Wales Act 2006, but there are circumstances in 
which such modifications may be made through a parliamentary bill) 

 
34. The choice of options – more than one of which may be used in the same Bill – is 

a matter of Ministerial policy.  Any proposal to request provisions in a 
parliamentary Bill will need to be put to the lead portfolio Minister in the Welsh 
Government, though proposals that affect the Welsh Government’s legislative 
programme might need wider Cabinet clearance.  

 
35. UK Cabinet clearance is needed to include provisions in UK Bills. Welsh 

Government Departments need to liaise closely with Bill Teams in lead UK 
Departments and the Wales Office in order to ensure that such clearance is 
given. 

 
36. Devolution Guidance Note 9 sets out that all devolution issues with a 

parliamentary Bill, including any requirement for legislative consent, should be 
substantively resolved before the Bill is introduced. 

 
 
Welsh Government lead official 
 
37. For all UK Bills, which relate to, or impact upon, devolved matters, there will be a 

Welsh Government lead official whose role will include ensuring that the relevant 
Welsh Government Department(s) have the information they need in order to be 
able to confirm their requirements. 

 
38. The lead official’s role and responsibilities will include all or some of the following, 

depending on the complexity of the Bill and its relevance to Wales in devolved 
areas. 

 
Bills under preparation 

 

 be the main liaison point for the UK Bill team; 

 obtain information from the UK Bill team about the content of the Bill, including 
draft clauses relevant to the Welsh Government and Assembly, where 
available, as far as possible in advance, to allow Welsh Government policy 
officials and lawyers to consider in good time and put advice to Welsh 
Ministers on the policy content and whether provisions fall within Assembly 
legislative competence or modify its competence; 

Tudalen y pecyn 84



 8 

 ensure that Ministerial policy clearance is sought for provisions in the Bill 
which are within the Assembly’s legislative competence and instruct Welsh 
Government Legal Services, who will liaise with instructing solicitors in the 
lead Whitehall Department and Wales Office legal advisers; 

 ensure that the Welsh Government has done everything it can to resolve any 
outstanding issues regarding the content of the Welsh provisions of the Bill 
before it is introduced, provided the Welsh Government has been given 
sufficient notice of the proposed content of the Bill to enable it to come to a 
view in good time; 

 where Welsh provisions in the Bill fall within the Assembly’s legislative 
competence or modify that competence, make plans to ensure that a 
Legislative Consent Memorandum and Motion are laid before the Assembly 
for consideration as required in accordance with the Assembly’s Standing 
Orders. 

 
Bills in Parliament 

 

 if relevant amendments are laid, arrange for tabling of a Legislative Consent 
Motion and Memorandum at the earliest possible point, usually within two 
weeks of introduction of the amendments themselves being agreed to (or, in 
the case of Government amendments, tabled), and inform both the lead UK 
Government department and the Wales Office;  

 ensure briefing and speaking notes on Welsh provisions, and amendments to 
them, are provided to the UK Bill Team as required for various stages of the 
Bill progressing through Parliament. Deadlines and other arrangements for 
providing the briefing and speaking notes should be agreed between the 
Welsh Government lead official and the UK Bill team; 

 brief the Welsh Ministers as required on the progress of the Bill; 

 obtain Welsh Ministers’ clearance of UK Government amendments, and 
Opposition amendments which the UK Government is minded to accept in 
principle, where the amendments fall within or modify the Assembly’s 
legislative competence, or modify Welsh Ministers’ functions. 

 
39. Welsh Government Departments must also consider at the earliest possible 

stage whether they will need to consult on certain proposals, particularly if they 
would be likely to require a regulatory impact assessment. 

 
40. Lead officials should maintain close contact with the Wales Office, and should 

seek early agreement with both the UK Bill Team and the Wales Office on the 
nature of the Welsh provisions to be included in the Bill. Lead officials should 
ensure that the Wales Office is alerted to any outstanding issues in good time. 
The aim should be to resolve issues regarding the Welsh provisions of the Bill by 
the time it is put to the UK Cabinet’s Parliamentary Business and Legislation 
Committee for clearance to introduce it.  Welsh Government officials should seek 
to resolve issues by then, but this can only be achieved if Welsh Government has 
been given sufficient notice of proposals to enable it to assess them in good time. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 85



 9 

Clearance of Bill provisions 
 

41. “Mirror” provisions; different provision for Wales; and even decisions to maintain 
the “status quo” for Wales in areas for which the Welsh Ministers are responsible, 
will need Welsh Government Ministerial clearance.  Financial implications must 
be clearly identified: for example it is possible for a Bill to transfer further 
executive functions to the Welsh Ministers or to confer new functions on them, 
either of which could have significant financial implications.  The regulatory 
impact of such provisions must also be assessed and presented when seeking 
clearance. 

 
42. Departments should note that the UK Government will only agree to include 

provisions in a parliamentary Bill if they meet the conditions set out in paragraph 
16 of DGN9.  These conditions are that the provisions fit within the scope of the 
Bill, will not adversely affect the handling or timing of the Bill and that there is no 
suitable Assembly Bill in which they could be included. 

 
43. UK Government Departments should also notify the Welsh Government and the 

Wales Office of proposed consequential amendments to legislation which is 
within the Assembly’s legislative competence normally this should be done 
through direct liaison between UK Government and Welsh Government Legal 
Advisers.  Such amendments do not require Ministerial consent but should be 
checked to ensure that the Welsh Government and UK Government have a 
common understanding of their effect. 

 
44. DGN9 sets out in more detail the various cases where the UK Government would 

not normally seek to legislate without the agreement of Welsh Ministers or the 
Assembly  

 
Consent for provisions which modify the Welsh Ministers’ functions 

 
45. The UK Government has agreed that it will seek Welsh Ministers’ consent for any 

provisions which modify Welsh Ministers’  executive functions where these fall 
outside the Assembly’s legislative competence (unless the provisions are 
incidental to or consequential on non-devolved matters, in which case the UK 
Government will consult the Welsh Ministers). 

 
46. It is expected that consent will be sought via inter-Ministerial correspondence.  In 

accordance with the Assembly’s Standing Orders, the Welsh Ministers should 
notify the Assembly by means of a Written Statement about provisions in 
parliamentary Bills which modify the Welsh Ministers’ functions, unless the 
provisions are incidental to or consequential on non-devolved matters. 

 
Legislative consent motions 

 
47. If the relevant provisions are within or modify the Assembly’s legislative 

competence, and the Welsh Ministers are content with them, the Welsh 
Government will lay and promote a Legislative Consent Motion in the Assembly. 
The Assembly’s Standing Orders set out that, if the proposed provisions are 
within the Bill at introduction, then a Legislative Consent Memorandum must 

Tudalen y pecyn 86



 10 

normally be laid within two weeks, and a Legislative Consent Motion may also be 
tabled. 

 
48. In the event that the motion is not approved by the Assembly, the Welsh 

Government should immediately inform the relevant UK Government department 
and the Wales Office and then proceed to discuss next steps. The Welsh 
Government would normally ask the UK Government to amend the relevant 
provisions of the Bill so that either the Welsh Government is able to support them 
via a further LCM (subject to the parliamentary timetable) or so that a LCM is not 
required, i.e. for example, to amend the provisions so that they do not relate to a 
devolved area. 

 
49. The lead official should inform the UK Bill Manager of the outcome of the debate. 
 
Statutory Instrument Consent Motions 
 
50. Where secondary legislation made by the UK Government amends primary 

legislation in a way which is within the competence of the National Assembly for 
Wales, a Statutory Instrument Consent Motion will be required, unless the 
amendments are incidental to or consequential on non-devolved matters. 

 
51. While parliamentary Bills can be amended during their passage through 

Parliament if a LCM is not passed by the Assembly, statutory instruments cannot.  
It is therefore expected that UK Government Departments will contact the Welsh 
Government in good time in advance of laying a statutory instrument before 
Parliament for which Assembly consent may be needed.  The Statutory 
Instrument Consent Motion will need to be passed by the Assembly before the 
UK Parliament considers the instrument in the case of those subject to affirmative 
parliamentary procedure and this will need to be factored into the UK 
Government timetable.  

 
Private Members’ Bills 

 
52. Where the UK Government has decided to give its backing to a Private Member’s 

Bill, similar considerations will apply as for ordinary Government Bills. 
 
 

MODIFYING THE ASSEMBLY’S LEGISLATIVE COMPETENCE 
 

53. As set out above, the subjects in relation to which the Assembly may pass laws 
are set out in Schedule 7 to the 2006 Act.  These “subjects” appear under twenty 
headings which are broadly the areas over which the Welsh Ministers have 
responsibilities (although the Welsh Ministers have some functions in  non-
devolved areas). 

 
54. Part 1 of Schedule 7 lists both subjects which are within the Assembly’s 

legislative competence and exceptions to those subjects which are not. There are 
also ‘carve-outs’ from some exceptions to enable the Assembly to legislate in a 
specific area which would otherwise be covered by an exception. Each exception 
applies to all of the subjects in Part 1 of the Schedule, regardless of the headings 

Tudalen y pecyn 87



 11 

under which they are listed. Therefore any new or amended subjects inserted into 
Schedule 7 will be affected by all of the existing exceptions; and any new or 
amended exceptions will apply to all of the existing subjects (unless they are 
defining exceptions which are fixed only to the specific subject(s) in question). 

 
55. Some areas which are outside the Assembly’s competence (such as immigration 

and defence) are not included as exceptions in Part 1 of Schedule 7 on the basis 
that they could not be regarded as falling within any of the existing subjects. 

 
56. The Welsh Government, or the UK Government, might identify a need to amend 

the Assembly’s legislative competence and modify Schedule 7.  This may be 
done through an Order in Council under section 109 of the 2006 Act or through 
provisions in a parliamentary Act.  

 
57. The amendments could increase the Assembly’s competence by inserting 

additional subjects into the Schedule on which the Assembly can legislate, or 
restrict the Assembly’s competence by inserting further exceptions or restrictions 
into the Schedule. They could also increase or restrict the Assembly’s 
competence by modifying existing subjects or exceptions, though amendments to 
subjects or exceptions could sometimes be made to clarify the Assembly’s 
competence.  

 
58. If the Assembly’s legislative competence is to be modified there is a presumption 

that a section 109 Order should be used whenever feasible (see paragraph 12 of 
DGN 17). Amending the Assembly’s legislative competence via a parliamentary 
Act does not provide for a formal role for the Assembly to approve the changes 
being made to its legislative competence (but see paragraph 65 below).  For this 
reason a section 109 Order is normally used. 

 
Orders under Section 109 of Government of Wales Act 2006 (Section 109 
Orders) 
 
59. The Welsh Government or the UK Government can suggest that an Order is 

required, but need to liaise with each other to agree the principle and drafting 
before the Order is pursued.  The collective agreement (both within the UK 
Government and the Welsh Government) is required if the Order is to progress 
successfully through both the Assembly and Parliament. 

 
60. A Section 109 Order must be approved in draft by both the UK Parliament and 

the Assembly.  If there is a need to modify the Assembly’s competence by a 
particular deadline, time for inter-governmental negotiation, consultation with 
interested parties and parliamentary and Assembly procedure needs to be 
factored in. 

 
Procedure for Making Section 109 Orders 
 

61. Subject to first reaching agreement at official level on the need for a Section 109 
Order, the First Minister (or the Welsh Minister with policy responsibility in the 
relevant area) would normally write to the Secretary of State for Wales to seek 
agreement to the changes required, and the consequent modifications needed to 

Tudalen y pecyn 88



 12 

Schedule 7. The letter should be copied to the Secretary of State in the relevant 
UK Government Department, and to any other Government Departments with a 
policy interest in the Order. 

 
62. Collective agreement by the Welsh Ministers and UK Ministers is needed for an 

order to be taken forward. The consent of UK Ministers is obtained via the 
Secretary of State for Wales and the Secretary of State in the relevant UK 
Government Department writing to the relevant Cabinet Committee (currently 
Home Affairs (HA) Committee) to seek clearance.  

 
63. Instructions should be agreed by all parties before the Order is drafted, and 

should be as clear and straightforward as possible. It is crucial that all parties 
agree a process for agreeing instructions and drafting the Order, and are clear 
about roles and deadlines. 

 
64. Draft Orders must be approved by both Houses of Parliament and the Assembly 

before they are made at a meeting of the Privy Council. 
 
Provisions in parliamentary Bills 
 
65. In exceptional circumstances, the Welsh Government and UK Government may 

agree to modify the legislative competence of the Assembly by including 
provisions in parliamentary Bills - for example, if the scope of a Bill covered the 
subject area in which the UK Government and Welsh Government had agreed 
legislative competence should be conferred on the Assembly. It would not 
however be appropriate for the scope of a UK Bill to be widened simply to 
accommodate a provision modifying the Assembly’s legislative competence. 

 
66. The UK Government and the Welsh Government have agreed that the Welsh 

Ministers should seek the consent of the Assembly when such provisions are 
included in Bills. Further advice on the principles and processes to follow where 
parliamentary Bills make provision modifying the Assembly’s legislative 
competence can be found in DGN 17. 

 
 

CHANGES TO THE WELSH MINISTERS’ EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 
 
67. Section 109 Orders are used only to modify the legislative competence of the 

Assembly. Changes to the Welsh Ministers’ executive functions are made in a 
number of other ways, including: 

 

 Transfer of Functions Orders (TFOs), which are Orders in Council made 
under Section 58 of the 2006 Act. TFOs are generally used to transfer 
functions from Ministers of the Crown to the Welsh Ministers, and must be 
approved by both the Welsh Ministers and the Houses of Parliament before 
they are made. 

 

 Acts of the Assembly may confer functions on the Welsh Ministers, or modify 
their existing functions. As set out in Part 4 of the 2006 Act, they may also 
remove or modify Minister of the Crown functions if the Secretary of State 

Tudalen y pecyn 89



 13 

consents, if the removal or modification is incidental to or consequential on 
other provisions of the Assembly Act, or if the function became exercisable by 
the Minister of the Crown on or after the date when the Assembly Act 
provisions in the 2006 Act came into force (5 May 2011). In such cases the 
Act of the Assembly could, for example, remove a function from a Minister of 
the Crown and confer a similar function on the Welsh Ministers, or require the 
Minister of the Crown to exercise the function only with the agreement of, or 
following consultation with, the Welsh Ministers. Acts of the Assembly may 
also confer or impose a function on a Minister of the Crown with the consent 
of the Secretary of State.  

 

 Acts of Parliament may confer or impose functions on the Welsh Ministers, or 
modify or remove their existing functions. The UK Government would normally 
include provisions having these effects in a parliamentary Bill only with the 
consent of the Assembly, in areas in which the Assembly has legislative 
competence, or the Welsh Ministers, in non-devolved areas (unless the 
changes to the functions of the Welsh Ministers are incidental to, 
consequential on etc. non-devolved matters, in which case the UK 
Government would normally only consult with the Welsh Ministers). 

 

 In certain cases, the executive functions of the Welsh Ministers may be 
changed by making subordinate legislation, such as a Designation Order 
under section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972 and section 59 of 
the 2006 Act, or an Order (other than a TFO) which amends a parliamentary 
Act or UK subordinate legislation (such as a Henry VIII Order). 
 

 
 
 
 
Welsh Government 
July 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 90



MARIA DAMANAKI B - 1 0 4 9  B R U S S E L S  

M E M B E R  O F  T H E  E U R O P E A N  C O M M I S S I O N  

Brussels, 22.07.2014 
МК/pb Ares 2690007 

Dear Chair Melding, 

Thank you for your letter of 16 July 2014 arguing against the total ban on driftnet fishing in 
EU waters. 

I would like to clarify that the proposal is not to implement a "one size fits all" approach 
neglecting the local specificities. It is rather an answer to a genuine widespread concern on 
the environmental sustainability and controllability of driftnets across the EU regions. The 
reason why the Commission decided to propose a full driftnet ban is that it was considered the 
most appropriate way forward to minimise the impact of driftnets, irrespective of their size, 
on the marine ecosystem and to reduce as much as possible unwanted catches. 

This concern has been underlined by the results of an on-line public consultation, which lasted 
for about six months from 27 March to 15 September 2013 and, where more than 52% of the 
respondents, including fishermen's cooperatives, were in favor of a total ban. The consultation 
had been widely publicized through different means including formal communications to the 
different Regional Advisory Councils and to all Member States. 

Two studies were launched with a view to provide updated information from the field and 
consultation with stakeholders through case studies including UK fisheries. 

Furthermore I have asked my services to arrange a meeting with representatives from the 
small scale industry that are using driftnet in the UK in order to listen to their arguments about 
this proposal and to hear about the situation of driftnet vessels in the UK. This meeting should 
take place in September and fishermen from all parts of the UK are being invited to the 
meeting, including fishermen from Wales. 

Let me finally mention that your input and the experience from Wales are very valuable for us 
in this legislative process. We are only at the start of the legislative process and the proposal 
will now be discussed in the Council of Ministers and in the European Parliament. I would 
like to underline that we are listening carefully to your concerns and individual situations to 
take them into account in this legislative process. 

Yours sincerely, 

Mr David Melding AM 
Chair 
National Assembly for Wales 
CLA.Committee@wales.gov.uk 

Tudalen y pecyn 91

Eitem 4.2



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AC/AM 
 Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

Ffacs * Fax 029 2082 1879 
YP.PrifWeinidog@cymru.gsi.gov.uk • 

ps.firstminister@wales.gsi.gov.uk   

 

 

Ein cyf/Our ref: FM/00841/14 
 
 
David Melding AM 
Chair - Constitutional & Legislative Affairs Committee 
Ty Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
 

 8 August 2014 
 
 
Dear David, 
 
I am writing in response to your letter of 17 July regarding the draft driftnets regulation. 
 
None of the UK Fisheries Administrations were aware of the proposed regulation ahead of 
its publication and, while there was a consultation last year, the Commission did not inform 
the UK Administrations, though it would typically be expected to do so in order to ensure 
responses from the relevant bodies. Moreover, it appears that several other Member States, 
also with a great interest in the driftnet fisheries, were similarly unaware of the proposal and, 
given that they did not respond to the consultation, it is likely that they too were not informed 
of it.  
 
However, on having sight of the proposal, Welsh Government fisheries officials immediately 
raised the serious implications it would have on the Welsh fishing industry with Defra, as the 
lead UK authority, and subsequently contributed in depth to the Explanatory Memorandum 
that was sent to Parliament on 1 June. On 18 July the Deputy Minister for Agriculture and 
Fisheries also wrote to George Eustice MP, the Defra Minister for Farming, Food and the 
Marine Environment, to make our opposition to much of the Commission’s proposal quite 
clear.  
 
The proposal is at the early stage of the legislative process and the Welsh Government is 
working closely with Defra in the interests of the Welsh fishing industry to make the case for 
a modification of the proposal to be a more proportionate response to the issues raised by 
the use of driftnets. 
 
As you will be aware, we broadly welcomed your Committee’s report on Wales’ role in the 
EU decision-making process, which was generally positive about the way in which we 
pursue Wales’ interests in the EU. As stated in the Government’s response to 
recommendation 8, we carefully considered its implications and were unable to accept the 
recommendation as there would be significant time and, therefore, resource implications in 
doing so; this would not be able to be met within existing budgets. The impact would be 
considerable on those departments with work that is closely aligned to the EU. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 92



 

 

 
The rationale underpinning the response to recommendation 8 remains valid, though we do, 
of course, review the monitoring of EU policy and legislative proposals. 
 
However, as we stated in the response to the recommendation, your Committee, or 
individual Assembly Members, could request information about any specific Explanatory 
Memorandum from the appropriate Minister. 
 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

                               
 

    CARWYN JONES 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 93



 

Bae Caerdydd 

Caerdydd 

CF99 1NA 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8008        

E-bost / Email: Gareth.williams@wales.gov.uk 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh     

 

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
  
 

16 July 2014  

 

Dear Commissioner 

 

 

Draft driftnets regulation COM(2014)265 

 

  

As Chair of the Constitutional Affairs Committee at the National 

Assembly for Wales, I am writing to draw to your attention concerns that 

we have with the proportionality of the proposed ban on use of driftnets 

set out in the draft regulation COM(2014)265 published on 14 May 2014. 

 

The Committee discussed these draft proposals at its meeting on 30 

June 2014 taking into account information provided by the Welsh 

Government, the UK Government, and reactions to the proposals from 

Welsh fishing organisations and other stakeholders. 

 

Whilst we understand the concerns that the European Commission has 

with regard to the existing legislation on driftnets, and whilst we 

support the overarching aims of the Common Fisheries Policy reform to 

achieve sustainable fishing practices in EU waters, we do not consider 

the draft regulation represents a proportionate response to the 

problems identified. Indeed, there is evidence that the introduction of a 

blanket-ban on use of all driftnets in EU waters could result in small-

scale artisanal fishers, who operate in sustainably certified fisheries in 

Welsh waters, being forced out of business. We note that UK 

environment organisations whilst supporting the tighter regulation of 

driftnets in some fisheries have concluded that a blanket-ban will 

disproportionately penalise responsible small-scale fishers in the UK 

who have negligible adverse environmental impact.  

Maria Damanaki 

European Commissioner for Maritime Affairs and Fisheries 

European Commission 

B - 1049 Brussels 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 94



 

There are approximately 70 vessels operating in in–shore fisheries 

around the Welsh coast which use driftnets, and these bear no 

resemblance to the large scale driftnet fisheries in operation in the 

Mediterranean that is the primary focus of the revised legislation. 

Furthermore, driftnet operations often represent a high proportion of the 

income of the Welsh fisheries affected, meaning that some fishing 

operations in Wales could be forced to go out of business as a result of 

the introduction of a blanket ban.  

 

The UK Government in its Explanatory memorandum (EM) on the 

proposals notes that the driftnets used by UK fisheries are short nets of 

around 200 metres in length and are used to target schooling fish for a 

short period of time. It also notes that by-catch in driftnets in UK 

fisheries has not been a problem relative to that associated with other 

types of gears (e.g. bottom set gill and entanglement nets) and, 

consequently, questions whether a shift to alternative gears would result 

in better by-catch rates. 

 

Both the UK and Welsh Governments have described the proposals as a 

'blunt instrument', and both reject a complete ban on the use of driftnets 

in EU waters, which is a view we concur with. We agree with the UK 

Government that the European Commission should look at how the 

regionalisation provisions of the Common Fisheries Policy could be used 

to address the problem, and that mitigation measures should be 

targeted at non-compliant fisheries.  

 

We look forward to receiving your response to the concerns outlined. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

David Melding AM 

Chair 

Tudalen y pecyn 95



 

Bae Caerdydd 

Caerdydd 

CF99 1NA 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8008        

E-bost / Email: Gareth.williams@wales.gov.uk 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh     

 

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  

 

 

17 July 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft driftnets regulation COM(2014)265 

 

 

I attach for your information a copy of a letter that I sent yesterday to 

the European Commission regarding the draft driftnets regulation 

COM(2014)265.    

 

We are surprised that the Welsh Government seemed unaware of this 

proposal, particularly in view of the impact it will have on  

Welsh fishing communities.  

 

As you will be aware in our March report Wales’ role in the EU decision-

making process we made the following recommendation:  

 

Recommendation 8: We recommend that the Welsh Government,  

for all relevant UK Government Explanatory Memoranda on EU 

policy proposals, issues a statement (or other document) setting 

out  

its observations on the policy matters covered. 

 

 

 

Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AM 

First Minister 

Welsh Government 

5th Floor 

Tŷ Hywel 

Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA  

 

 

 

17 July 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 96



 

 

 

In your response, you rejected this recommendation. In our view, the 

issues raised by this proposal highlight why we believe there is a need 

for systematic and proactive statements by the Welsh Government on 

key EU legislation relevant to Wales.   

 

In the circumstances, we would be grateful if you could confirm what 

action you are taking to review the arrangements you have in place to 

monitor EU proposals as they emerge from the Commission and as part 

of this, if you will reconsider your response to recommendation 8 of our 

report.   

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

David Melding AM 

Chair 

Tudalen y pecyn 97



Tudalen y pecyn 98

Eitem 4.3



 

 

 

 1 

 

 

DATGANIAD YSGRIFENEDIG 

GAN 

LYWODRAETH CYMRU 
 

 

TEITL  

 

Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru): Dull o 
weithredu’r is-ddeddfwriaeth i’w gwneud dan y Ddeddf 

DYDDIAD  16 Gorffennaf 2014 

GAN  

Gwenda Thomas AC, Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol  

 

 

Mae’r Ddeddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru), a gafodd Gydsyniad 
Brenhinol ar 1 Mai eleni, yn creu system gyfreithiol newydd ar gyfer gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol. Fel y dywedais yn fy natganiad ysgrifenedig i’r Cynulliad ar 29 Ionawr eleni, 
mae’r Ddeddf yn creu fframwaith sy’n dwyn ynghyd ac yn moderneiddio’r gyfraith ar gyfer 
gwasanaethau cymdeithasol yng Nghymru. Mae’n rhoi mwy o bwyslais ar gamau ataliol, 
gan ddod â phobl yn nes at y penderfyniadau ar y gwasanaethau sy’n effeithio arnynt, ac yn 
rhoi sylw i’r heriau sy’n ymwneud â newid economaidd a demograffig.     
 
Bydd tair rhan i’r fframwaith statudol newydd ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau cymdeithasol. 
Mae’r rhan gyntaf, sef y Ddeddf ei hunan, eisoes yn ei lle. Bydd y ddwy ran arall yn cynnwys 
rheoliadau a chodau ymarfer neu ganllawiau statudol, a fydd yn helpu i gyflenwi’r manylion 
ac yn helpu’r rhai a gafodd swyddogaethau dan y Ddeddf i ddeall sut maent am gyflawni’r 
swyddogaethau hynny. 
 
Bydd Aelodau wedi gweld o’m datganiad ysgrifenedig, dyddiedig 30 Ionawr, y manylion am 
fwriad y polisi mewn perthynas â’r prif grwpiau o bwerau gwneud rheoliadau dan y Ddeddf. 
Mae fy natganiad heddiw yn adeiladu ar fy natganiadau blaenorol ar weithredu, ac yn rhoi’r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i Aelodau’r Cynulliad am sut y byddaf yn gweithredu’r ddwy ran 
hanfodol hon o’r fframwaith newydd y mae’r Ddeddf yn eu galluogi. 
 
Fy mwriad yw sicrhau bod y Ddeddf yn dod i rym ym mis Ebrill 2016. Er mwyn cyflawni hyn, 
mae’r pecyn o is-ddeddfwriaeth sy’n deillio o’r Ddeddf yn cael ei ddatblygu fel rhaglen waith 
a ddarparwyd yn gydgysylltiedig. Mae fy swyddogion wedi bod yn gweithio’n agos gyda 
rhanddeiliaid drwy gyfres o grwpiau technegol i ddatblygu a mireinio manylion ein polisi ar 
gyfer rheoliadau a chodau ymarfer, a byddant yn parhau i wneud hynny.  Bydd y rhain ar 
gael ar gyfer ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ac yn cael eu gosod gerbron y Cynulliad mewn dwy Tudalen y pecyn 99

Eitem 4.4



 2 

ran ar wahân, neu ‘tranches’, yn ystod 2014-15. 
 
Bydd y tranche cyntaf o is-ddeddfwriaeth ar gael i ymgynghori arno ym mis Tachwedd 
eleni. Ymgymerwyd â gwaith manwl ar ffurf grwpiau technegol ac ymgynghorol, sydd wedi 
darparu ymgysylltiad gwerthfawr ar weithredu’r cynigion hyn yn ymarferol, i lywio’r 
rheoliadau a’u codau ymarfer cysylltiedig. Drwy ymgynghori ar y rheoliadau hyn a’u gosod 
gyda’i gilydd byddwn yn gallu cyflwyno system gydlynol o asesu, penderfynu ar 
gymhwysedd a chynllunio gofal, yn ogystal â sicrhau bod taliadau uniongyrchol ar gael fel 
un ffordd o ddiwallu anghenion, a chreu fframwaith newydd pwerau ar gyfer diogelu. 
 
Bydd y tranche cyntaf yn cynnwys rheoliadau mewn perthynas â’r meysydd polisi canlynol:  
 

 Asesiadau o’r boblogaeth dan ran 2 o’r Ddeddf a gweithio mewn partneriaeth dan ran 

6 

 Mentrau cymdeithasol 

 Asesiadau a chymhwysedd 

 Taliadau Uniongyrchol 

 Gorchmynion Amddiffyn a Chynorthwyo Oedolion 

 Byrddau Diogelu Annibynnol Cenedlaethol 

 Byrddau Diogelu Lleol 

 Preswylfa arferol ac anghydfodau am breswylfa arferol 

Hoffwn dynnu sylw’r Aelodau’n benodol at fy mwriad i ddeddfu mewn perthynas â’r 
asesiadau o’r boblogaeth a gweithio mewn partneriaeth law yn llaw, gan ddefnyddio’r 
pwerau hyn i sicrhau bod asesiadau o’r fath yn cael eu cynnal ar sail ranbarthol, yn unol ag 
ôl-troed y Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol. Hoffwn i’r Aelodau gymryd hyn fel arwydd cynnar o 
ymrwymiad parhaus Llywodraeth Cymru i integreiddio iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol yn well 
yng Nghymru.  
 
Yn dilyn ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus eang, rwy’n bwriadu i’r rheoliadau hyn a’r codau ymarfer 
cysylltiedig gael eu gosod gerbron y Cynulliad ym mis Mai 2015.  
 
Bydd yr ail dranche o is-ddeddfwriaeth ar gael ar gyfer ymgynghoriad o fis Mai 2015, 
unwaith eto gyda chefnogaeth ymgysylltiad rhanddeiliaid a gwaith grwpiau technolegol ac 
ymgynghorol. Bydd y tranche hwn yn creu system sy’n sicrhau canlyniadau ar gyfer plant 
sy’n derbyn gofal a phlant sy’n cael eu lletya. Bydd hefyd yn sbarduno cydweithredu 
rhanbarthol, yn rhoi system o godi ffioedd, asesiadau ariannol a thalu am ofal ar waith, yn 
cefnogi cyflwyno sylwadau a chymorth eiriolwr, ac yn ymdrin â materion sy’n codi gan 
fethiant darparwr.    
 
Bydd yr ail dranche yn cynnwys y meysydd polisi canlynol: 
 

 Llety a ffefrir 

 Talu am ofal, gan gynnwys: 

o Codi ffi Tudalen y pecyn 100



 3 

o Asesiad ariannol 
o Y gallu i dalu 
o Taliadau gohiriedig 
o Codi ffi am wasanaethau ataliol a chynhorthwy 
o Adennill costau, llog etc 
o Arwystl dros fuddiant mewn tir 
o Trosglwyddo asedau i osgoi talu ffioedd 

 Sut caiff plant sy’n derbyn gofal eu lletya a’u cynnal, gan gynnwys: 
o Cynlluniau gofal a chymorth 
o Plant sy’n derbyn gofal 
o Rhieni maeth Awdurdod Lleol 
o Trefniadau asiantaeth 
o Ymwelwyr annibynnol i blant sy’n derbyn gofal 
o Swyddogion adolygu annibynnol 
o Achosion a atgyfeirir ac adolygu achosion 
o Pobl ifanc, cynghorwyr personol, asesiadau llwybrau, codi ffi 
o Cynlluniau llwybrau ac asesiadau llwybrau 
o Llety i gyfyngu ar ryddid 
o Ymwelwyr â phlant 

 Trefniadau partneriaeth a byrddau Partneriaeth 

 Cwynion a chymorth i achwynwyr 

 Sylwadau sy’n ymwneud â phlant sy’n derbyn gofal a phlant eraill a all fod angen 
gofal a chymorth, a chynhorthwy mewn perthynas â’r rhain 

 Darparu gwasanaethau eiriolwr 

 Methiant gan ddarparwr 
 

Hoffwn dynnu sylw’r Aelodau yn benodol ar fy mwriad mewn perthynas â phlant sy’n derbyn 
gofal. Yma rwyf wedi gofyn i’m swyddogion weithio gyda rhanddeiliaid allweddol, gan 
gynnwys y plant eu hunain, i edrych ar effaith y fframwaith statudol cyfredol ar ganlyniadau 
pobl ifanc, a datblygu fframwaith newydd a fydd yn defnyddio ac yn ymestyn y 
darpariaethau cyfredol a wnaed o dan Ddeddf 1989 i blant sy’n derbyn gofal a phlant sy’n 
cael eu lletya, gan sicrhau bod hawliau a hawlogaethau’r grŵp hwn o blant a phobl ifanc 
sy’n agored i niwed yn parhau i gael eu cynnal, tra bydd gwell canlyniadau’n cael eu 
diogelu. 
 
Yn dilyn ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus llawn rwy’n bwriadu gosod y rheoliadau hyn a’u codau 
ymarfer cysylltiedig gerbron y Cynulliad yn ystod gaeaf 2015.  

 
Bydd fy swyddogion yn datblygu asesiadau effaith rheoleiddiol a memoranda esboniadol 
llawn ar gyfer pob un o’r rheoliadau hyn, i’w gosod gerbron y Cynulliad yn eu ‘tranches’ 
priodol, a bydd y pecyn gwaith hwn yn cael ei graffu gan bwyllgorau’r Cynulliad hwn.  
 
Yn amlwg, rwy’n cydnabod bod rhoi’r Ddeddf ar waith, a thrwy hynny y system newydd ar 
gyfer gofal cymdeithasol sy’n ofynnol gan Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol Cynaliadwy, yn 
golygu llawer mwy na gwneud is-ddeddfwriaeth, er bod hynny’n bwysig. I’r perwyl hwn mae 
gennyf dair haen o waith yn eu lle, sy’n cwmpasu parodrwydd y gweithlu, codi 

Tudalen y pecyn 101



 4 

ymwybyddiaeth ymysg y boblogaeth ehangach, a gweithgaredd allweddol o weithredu 
rhanbarthol.  
 
O ran yr haen gyntaf, mae Llywodraeth Cymru, drwy ei Rhaglen Datblygu’r Gweithle Gofal 
Cymdeithasol, sy’n werth £8.2m (a ategir gan fuddsoddiad gan bartneriaid lleol), yn 
cefnogi’r gwaith o ddatblygu a defnyddio strategaeth hyfforddi i gefnogi gweithredu, a fydd 
ar waith cyn cychwyn y Ddeddf. Rwyf am bwysleisio fy mod yn disgwyl y bydd y strategaeth 
hon yn cwmpasu pawb sy’n gysylltiedig â darparu gofal cymdeithasol, ynghyd â’u 
partneriaid allweddol, ac y bydd yn cael ei darparu ar y cyd ac mewn cydweithrediad â’r 
partneriaid hynny. Bydd y strategaeth hon yn cynnwys codi ymwybyddiaeth, addasu 
hyfforddiant presennol, a datblygu hyfforddiant penodol ychwanegol i ymateb i ofynion 
newydd, gan felly gefnogi’r sector a sicrhau ei fod yn barod am y newidiadau a ddaw i rym 
yn sgil y Ddeddf a’i rheoliadau. 
 
 
Yn ogystal â hyn, drwy gydnabod bod angen cyfathrebu’n ofalus ac yn glir â’r cyhoedd ar 
weithredu’r Ddeddf, mae cynllun cyfathrebu’n cael ei ddatblygu i gefnogi’r gwaith hwn. 
Rydym yn ystyried rôl darparwyr gwasanaethau cyfathrebu i gefnogi’r gweithredu a byddwn 
yn parhau i ymgysylltu’n llawn â’r cyhoedd a’n rhanddeiliaid i sicrhau bod y negeseuon hyn 
yn cael eu mynegi’n glir ac yn ddealladwy. 
 
Yn olaf, mae gennyf ymrwymiad o hyd i gefnogi llywodraeth leol a’n partneriaid gyda’r 
gweithredu, drwy barhau yn 2014-15 i ymestyn y grant Trawsnewid, sy’n werth £1.5 miliwn, 
a oedd ar gael i awdurdodau lleol am y tro cyntaf yn 2013-14. Mae’r cyllid trosiannol hwn 
wedi’i anelu’n benodol at alluogi llywodraeth leol a’i phartneriaid i roi gofynion y Ddeddf 
newydd ar waith. Mae arweiniad rhanbarthol cyson a chryf ar gyfer gweithredu’r Ddeddf 
hon, wedi’i rannu ar draws yr holl bartneriaid, yn hanfodol ar gyfer sicrhau’r trawsnewid sy’n 
ofynnol gan y Ddeddf, ac mae’r cyllid hwn wedi’i gyfeirio tuag at helpu llywodraeth leol a’i 
phartneriaid i weithio gyda’i gilydd i gyflawni hyn. Yn ddiweddar mae fy swyddogion wedi 
ysgrifennu at lywodraeth leol a phartneriaid allweddol yn gwahodd  ceisiadau am y cyllid 
hwn ac edrychaf ymlaen at ei weld yn cael ei ddefnyddio i roi mwy o gymorth i’n 
blaenoriaeth o weld gwasanaethau gwell i bobl Cymru. 
 
Bydd y gwaith hwn rwy’n ei ddisgrifio’n adeiladu ar y consensws cenedlaethol  sydd gennym 
ar gyfer y newidiadau sydd angen inni eu gwneud. Bydd yr holl agweddau allweddol ar 
ddatblygu Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol Cynaliadwy ymhellach yn cael eu cyflawni drwy 
gysylltiad agos â dinasyddion ac arweiniad cryf ar y cyd gan lywodraeth leol, y GIG a 
darparwyr preifat a thrydydd sector. Byddaf yn parhau i weithio gyda fy Fforwm Partneriaeth 
cenedlaethol, y Grŵp Arweinyddiaeth a’r Panel Dinasyddion i gefnogi hyn, a sicrhau bod 
pobl sy’n defnyddio gwasanaethau’n parhau i fod yn ganolog i’n rhaglen ar gyfer newid. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 102



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AC/AM 
 Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

Ffacs * Fax 029 2082 1879 
YP.PrifWeinidog@cymru.gsi.gov.uk • 

ps.firstminister@wales.gsi.gov.uk   

 

 
 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref: MB/FM/3517/14 

 
 

David Melding AM  
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
National Assembly for Wales  
Cardiff Bay  
CF99 1NA    

 
 3rd September 2014 

 
 

Dear David 
 
Inquiry into the Disqualification of Membership from the National Assembly for Wales 
 

May I begin by thanking you and your Committee, both for agreeing to my request that you 
undertake this Inquiry, and for producing such a full and helpful Report.  The Welsh 
Government will obviously want to give this very careful consideration. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to set out some thoughts, and invite your views, on how we 
should take this matter forward now.  In so doing, I am bearing in mind your 
Recommendation 15: “…that the disqualification order for the 2016 Assembly general 
election is drafted, consulted on and made no later than 12 months before the date of that 
election”.  
 

The next stage in the process will presumably be a debate in the Assembly on the Report, 
prior to which the Welsh Government would be expected to lay a paper setting out our 
response to the recommendations.  The precise timing of that debate should however be for 
further consideration.  As you will know, the Wales Bill is proceeding through Parliament, 
and received a Second Reading in the House of Lords in July.  In the course of the Second 
Reading debate, Lord Thomas of Gresford said, “A successful candidate in an election 
ought to have a period in which to resign from any body that would disqualify him from being 
an Assembly Member—maybe eight days.  I shall accordingly seek to amend Section 16 of 
the Government of Wales Act 2006 to make that position absolutely clear”.  As matters 
stand, any amendment to achieve that result would be considered by the House of Lords at 
Committee stage on 13 (or possibly 15) October.  I think it would be sensible if the debate in 
the Assembly on your Committee’s Report took place after that, informed as it would be by 
the debate on Lord Thomas’ amendment.  My suggestion, therefore, is that our debate 
should take place early in November, soon after we return from the Autumn half-term 
Recess.  

Tudalen y pecyn 103

Eitem 4.5



 

 

Following that, my intention would be to prepare and publish, early in the new year, a draft 
Order in Council.  This would of course need to be the subject of consultation, which would 
normally be for a period of 12 weeks; that would effectively take us to Easter.  We would 
then bring forward the draft Order in final form for the Assembly’s consideration and 
approval, following which it would be submitted to Her Majesty in Council to be made.  If we 
assume that the Assembly could consider and approve the draft Order either just before or 
soon after the Whitsun recess, it should be possible to put the Order before the Privy 
Council in either June or July. 

That timetable would not of course quite meet your Committee’s recommendation that the 
Order be made no later than twelve months before the date of the next Assembly general 
election; this would require the Order being approved by Her Majesty in Council in either 
April or early May.  However, we need to bear in mind that the timings and predictability of 
meetings of the Privy Council in April and May next year may be problematic, for reasons 
you will well understand, whereas it is reasonable to assume that matters will have returned 
to normal by June.  It seems to me, therefore, that we should aim to get the draft Order to 
the Privy Council to be made at its June or July meeting; that would, I think, give parties and 
potential candidates entirely adequate time to ensure that the sorts of difficulties 
experienced in 2011 will not be repeated. 

I would welcome your comments on this proposed way forward.  I am copying this letter to 
the Minister for Local Government and Government Business. 

 
 

Yours sincerely 

      
CARWYN JONES   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 104



Huw Lewis AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay
Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

Correspondence.Huw.Lewis@Wales.gsi.gov.uk                

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Eich cyf/Your ref 
Ein cyf/Our ref LF/HL/0847/14

David Melding AC
Cadeirydd
Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Bae Caerdydd
Caerdydd 

Annwyl David,

Adroddiad ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: y Bil Dadreoleiddio: 
Gwelliannau mewn perthynas â Phedolwyr a Chytundebau Cartref/Ysgol

Hoffwn ddiolch i’r Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol am graffu ar y 
Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar welliannau i Fil Dadreoleiddio’r Deyrnas Unedig 
mewn perthynas â Phedolwyr a Chytundebau Cartref/Ysgol a’i adroddiad ym mis Gorffennaf 
2014.

O ddarllen yr adroddiad, rwy’n gweld bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried bod y ddarpariaeth o ran y 
Cyngor Cofrestru Pedolwyr yn rhesymol. Er hynny, nodwyd  bod digon o gyfle i gael gwared 
ar gytundebau cartref/ysgol mewn Bil y Cynulliad yn hytrach na mewn deddfwriaeth sy’n 
cael ei thrafod yn Senedd y Deyrnas Unedig. 

Fel arfer, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn gweithredu ar yr egwyddor gyffredinol mai 
Gweinidogion Cymru ddylai ddeddfu ar ddeddfwriaeth sylfaenol sy’n ymwneud â’r meysydd 
datganoledig. Er hynny, mae rhai amgylchiadau lle mae’n synhwyrol ac yn fanteisiol i 
ddarpariaeth a fyddai fel arall o fewn cymhwysedd y Cynulliad gael ei gwneud mewn Biliau 
Seneddol, gyda chydsyniad y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol  (a geir ar ffurf Cynnig Cydsyniad 
Deddfwriaethol sydd wedi’i gymeradwyo). Yn ei lythyr i chi ar 15 Tachwedd 2011, ategodd y 
Prif Weinidog mai dyma oedd cred Llywodraeth Cymru. Hefyd rhoddwyd enghreifftiau i chi o 
sefyllfaoedd lle y byddai’n briodol i’r Llywodraeth ofyn am  ddarpariaeth, neu gytuno i
darpariaeth sy’n ymwneud â Chymru gael ei chynnwys mewn Bil y DU .

Mewn perthynas â chynnig deddfwriaethol Llywodraeth y DU i ddiddymu’r gofyniad am 
gytundebau cartref/ysgol, roedd dau beth i mi ystyried. A fyddai’n iawn i ddiddymu’r 

03 Medi 2014

Tudalen y pecyn 105

Eitem 4.6



gofyniad yng Nghymru, ac a fyddai’n briodol gwneud hynny drwy Fil Llywodraeth y Deyrnas 
Unedig.

Ar y pwynt cyntaf, rwy’n fodlon bod y cynnig i ddiddymu’r gofyniad am gytundebau 
cartref/ysgol yn briodol ar gyfer Cymru.

Ar hyn o bryd, mae’n ddyletswydd ar bob ysgol a gynhelir i lunio cytundeb cartref/ysgol a 
datganiad rhieni. Hefyd, rhaid i’r corff llywodraethu gymryd camau rhesymol i sicrhau bod y 
datganiad yn cael ei lofnodi gan y rhieni ac, o dro i dro, dylai adolygu’r cytundeb. Cyn 
llunio’r cytundeb cartref/ysgol a’r datganiad rhieni, neu adolygu’r cytundeb hwnnw, rhaid i’r 
corff llywodraethu drafod â’r rhieni.  

Yn ymarferol, mae hi wedi bod yn anodd gorfodi’r cytundeb cartref/ysgol. Mae’r broses o 
ymgynghori â’r rhieni, llunio cytundeb cartref/ysgol a’i fonitro, a chael llofnodion y rhieni yn 
fwrn ar ysgolion. Nid oes modd eu gorfodi, nid oes gofyniad cyfreithiol yn dweud bod rhaid i 
rieni eu llofnodi, ac nid oes cosb am fethu â chydymffurfio â nhw. Felly nid yw’r 
ddeddfwriaeth yn cyflawni diben ymarferol.

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod bod trafod â’r rhieni yn gwneud byd o les i 
gyrhaeddiad plentyn mewn addysg, a dyna pam bod trafod â’r teulu a’r gymuned yn un o 
brif themâu ein strategaeth i fynd i’r afael â’r berthynas rhwng tlodi a thangyflawni mewn 
addysg. I fod yn effeithiol, rhaid i ysgolion ddod o hyd i ffyrdd arloesol a chreadigol o 
gynnwys y  rhieni a’r gofalwyr yn addysg y plentyn gan eu hysgogi i helpu’r plentyn i ddysgu 
gartref ac i gefnogi’r ysgol. I’r perwyl hwn, byddwn yn cyhoeddi canllawiau ac adnoddau i 
gefnogi’r ysgolion wrth ddatblygu eu strategaethau eu hunain.  Bydd cael gwared â’r 
gofyniad am gytundeb cartref/ysgol yn caniatáu i ysgolion gydweithio â’r rhieni mewn ffordd 
sy’n gweddu i amgylchiadau’r ysgol, y disgyblion a’r rhieni, yn hytrach na gwneud hyn drwy 
fecanwaith penodol

Ar yr ail bwynt, sef a fyddai’n briodol diddymu’r gofyniad drwy Fil Llywodraeth y Deyrnas 
Unedig, eto penderfynais bod hyn yn briodol. Mae’n anodd bod yn glir ar y math o 
sefyllfaoedd lle mae’n briodol defnyddio Bil y Deyrnas Unedig i wneud darpariaeth mewn 
mater datganoledig. Roedd llythyr y Prif Weinidog ym mis Tachwedd 2011 yn rhoi rhai 
enghreifftiau o sefyllfaoedd or fath. Sefyllfa, er enghraifft, lle mae’r ddarpariaeth 
ddatganoledig yn fychan, yn dechnegol ac yn un nad yw’n gynhennus; neu pan fo’r 
ddarpariaeth yn briodol i Gymru ond nad oes amser i drafod darpariaeth debyg gerbron y 
Cynulliad.

Yn fy marn i, nid yw’r darpariaethau dan sylw’n rhai cynhennus o gofio mai’r hyn sy’n cael ei 
wneud yma yw diddymu  ddeddfwriaeth nad yw’n cyflawni diben ymarferol bellach. Nid oes 
darpariaeth wreiddiol a newydd yn cael ei gwneud ar fater cytundeb cartref/ysgol. Tynnu’r 
gofyniad am gytundeb yw’r cyfan a wneir yma.  Bydd hyn yn cael gwared ar y baich diangen 
ar ysgolion, sy’n cael ei ystyried yn ddim mwy na gwaith papur ategol i gamau eraill i hybu 
trafodaeth â rhieni. Er hynny, petai ysgol yn ystyried bod cytundeb cartref/ysgol yn 
ddefnyddiol, nid oes dim yn ei gwahardd rhag dal i’w ddefnyddio. Ni fyddai tynnu’r gofyniad 
yn rhoi neb o dan anfantais beth bynnag gan nad oedd modd gorfodi’r gofyniad hwnnw beth 
bynnag.

O gofio hyn, mae cael y ddarpariaeth ym Mil Dadreoleiddio’r Deyrnas Unedig yn ateb 
pragmatig ac amserol ar y naill law, gan barchu cymhwysedd y Cynulliad ar y llall drwy 
broses Cynigion Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol. Felly, rwy’n ystyried bod cynnwys y 
ddarpariaeth hon yn y Bil hwn gan y Deyrnas Unedig yn enghraifft o  lywodraethu da ac 
ymarferol.

Tudalen y pecyn 106



Yn benodol, rwyf wedi ystyried barn y pwyllgor, sef bod digon o gyfle i wneud y ddarpariaeth 
hon mewn deddfwriaeth y Cynulliad. Ym mis Gorffennaf 2013, pan oedd Llywodraeth y 
Deyrnas Unedig yn tynnu at y terfyn o ran cynnwys y Bil Dadreoleiddio, roedd Bil Addysg 
(Cymru) newydd gael ei gyflwyno gerbron y Cynulliad. Gan nad oedd y mater hwn wedi’i 
gynnwys yn y Bil Addysg pan y’i cyflwynwyd, roeddem o’r farn na fyddai’n briodol gwneud 
gwelliannau i’r Bil hwnnw yng Nghamau 2 na 3 i gynnwys darpariaeth ynghylch cytundebau 
cartref/ysgol  Hyd yn oed os oedd gwella’r Bil fel hyn yn dderbyniol, ac mae’n weddus 
cwestiynu hynny, byddai hynny’n wedi golygu na fyddai’r pwyllgor cyfrifol wedi gallu ystyried 
hyn yn ystod yr ystyriaeth o Gam 1.

Ar ôl mis Gorffennaf 2013, cyflwynwyd Bil Addysg Uwch (Cymru)y a chyhoeddodd y Prif 
Weinidog y byddai Bil yn ymwneud a Chymwysterau Cymru yn cael ei symud ymlaen. Nid 
oedd un o’r ddau yma’n gweddu i gynnwys darpariaethau am gytundebau cartref/ysgol, o 
gofio cynnwys (arfaethedig) y Billiau hynny.

Rydym yn awyddus i sicrhau bod deddfwriaeth ar faterion sy’n ymwneud â Chymru, sydd o 
fewn cymhwysedd y Cynulliad, yn cael ei wneud yma yng Nghymru gan ddefnyddio Bil y 
Cynulliad. Er hynny mae’n bwysig cydbwyso hyn gyda’r cyfleoedd a ddaw i’n rhan i sicrhau 
bod deddfwriaeth sy’n effeithio ar Gymru yn cael ei wneud mewn modd amserol. Felly, 
ystyriwyd ei bod yn briodol, y tro hwn, i ddefnyddio’r Bil Dadreoleiddio..  

Gobeithio bod yr esboniad hwn yn help i’r pwyllgor ac rwy’n edrych ymlaen at gael y cyfle i 
drafod y Cynnig Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn y Cyfarfod Llawn  ar 16 Medi.  

Yn gywir

Huw Lewis AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Tudalen y pecyn 107



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

Gorffennaf 2014 

 

 

 

 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol - Adroddiad:  

Y Bil Dadreoleiddio: Diwygiadau mewn perthynas â Phedolwyr a 

Chytundebau Cartref-Ysgol 

 

 

Cefndir 

1. Ar 10 Mehefin 2014, cyflwynodd y cyn-Weinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a 

Bwyd Femorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol (Memorandwm) atodol 

ynghylch gwelliannau a gyflwynwyd i'r Bil Dadreoleiddio ("y Bil"), yn unol â 

Rheol Sefydlog 29.2.   

2. Ar 17 Mehefin 2014, cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor Busnes y Memorandwm at y 

Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol i graffu arno, gan bennu 

11 Medi 2014 fel y dyddiad olaf ar gyfer adrodd yn ôl.   

Y Bil Dadreoleiddio  

3  Cyflwynwyd y Bil yn Nhŷ'r Cyffredin ar 23 Ionawr 2014 ac mae bellach 

wedi cwblhau ei daith drwy Dŷ'r Cyffredin. Cafodd ei ail ddarlleniad yn Nhŷ'r 

Arglwyddi ar 7 Gorffennaf 2014, ar ôl cael ei gario drosodd i sesiwn 2014-

15.   

4. Mae'r Bil yn cynnig amrywiaeth o fesurau yn unol â nod Llywodraeth y 

DU o leihau baich ar fusnesau ac awdurdodau cyhoeddus. Mae ei gwmpas yn 

cynnwys iechyd a diogelwch, cyfraith gyflogaeth, cyfraith cwmnïau ac 

ansolfedd, defnyddio tir, tai, trafnidiaeth, cyfathrebu, yr amgylchedd, 

Cronfeydd Ymddiriedolaeth Plant, adloniant, cyfiawnder troseddol a thwf 

economaidd.  

5. Ym mis Gorffennaf 2013, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth y DU Fil 

Dadreoleiddio drafft, a oedd yn destun gwaith craffu cyn deddfu, gan 

Gydbwyllgor dau Dŷ'r Senedd.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 108



6. Gwnaethom drafod Memorandwm i'r Bil Dadreoleiddio ar 31 Mawrth 

2014 gan nodi yn ein hadroddiad, a osodwyd gerbron y Cynulliad ar 1 Mai 

2014, ein bod yn fodlon arno.  

7. Ystyriwyd Memorandwm atodol ar 19 Mai 2014 a gosodwyd ein 

hadroddiad gerbron y Cynulliad ar 19 Mehefin 2014. 

Y darpariaethau y mae angen cydsyniad y Cynulliad iddynt 

8. Rhoddir manylion am ddarpariaethau newydd y Bil y byddai angen 

cydsyniad y Cynulliad arnynt ym mharagraffau 5-13 o'r Memorandwm atodol 

mewn perthynas â Chyngor Cofrestru Pedolwyr a pharagraffau 14-21 mewn 

perthynas â Threfniadau Cartref-Ysgol.    

Trafodaeth          

9.  Trafodwyd y Memorandwm yn ein cyfarfod ar 30 Mehefin 2014.   

10.  Er bod rhywfaint o wybodaeth wedi cael ei darparu ar y gwelliannau 

hynny sydd wedi peri llunio'r Memorandwm hwn, byddai wedi bod yn well 

gennym weld gwybodaeth a fyddai wedi galluogi i ddilyn eu cynnydd yn haws 

yn nhrafodion Tŷ'r Cyffredin.   

11. Mewn perthynas â darpariaethau ynghylch y Cyngor Cofrestru 

Pedolwyr, nodir eu bod yn ymwneud â chyfansoddiad y corff hwnnw sy'n 

gyfrifol ar draws Prydain Fawr ac ar y sail honno, mae'r dull yn rhesymol.   

12. O ran y darpariaethau sy'n ymwneud â'r trefniadau cartref-ysgol, yr 

ydym yn ystyried y bu digon o gyfle i ddileu'r trefniadau cartref-ysgol i'w 

darparu drwy gyfrwng Bil Cymru i graffu arno gan y Cynulliad, yn hytrach 

nag ymdrin â hyn â deddfwriaeth sy'n codi yn San Steffan.  

13.  Nodwn bod y Memorandwm yn cynnwys y darn canlynol sy'n ceisio 

esbonio'r manteision o ddefnyddio Bil y DU yn hytrach na deddfwriaeth y 

Cynulliad:  

"Ym marn Llywodraeth Cymru, mae'n briodol ymdrin â'r darpariaethau 

hyn yn y Bil hwn i'r DU gan mai hwn yw'r cyfrwng deddfwriaethol 

mwyaf ymarferol a chymesur er mwyn galluogi i'r darpariaethau hyn 

fod yn gymwys mewn perthynas â Chymru. Mae'r diwygiadau 

arfaethedig yn rhai technegol ac anghynnenus. At hynny, mae natur 

gydgysylltiedig systemau gweinyddol perthnasol Cymru a Lloegr yn 

golygu mai'r peth mwyaf effeithiol a phriodol yw bod darpariaethau'r 

Tudalen y pecyn 109



Bil ar gyfer y ddwy wlad yn cael eu datblygu ar yr un pryd yn yr un 

offeryn deddfwriaethol."
1

 

14. Rydym ni wedi ein hargyhoeddi gan y farn hon mewn perthynas â'r 

darpariaethau yn ymwneud â threfniadau cartref-ysgol ac rydym yn siomedig 

â'r dull y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'i gymryd.  

15. Rydym yn credu y dylai'r newid hwn mewn polisi fod wedi'i gynnwys o 

fewn Bil Llywodraeth Cymru a bod yn destun craffu gan y Cynulliad 

Cenedlaethol.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
1
 Paragraff 22  

Tudalen y pecyn 110



STATEMENT  

BY 

THE WELSH GOVERNMENT 

  

  

TITLE  The Legislative Programme 

DATE  15 July 2014 

BY  The Rt. Hon Carwyn Jones AM, First Minister of Wales 

  

I am pleased to announce the final ten bills of this Welsh Government’s Legislative 
Programme.  
  
When I introduced the Legislative Programme at the start of this Assembly I said we 
would bring forward Bills that would create opportunities for everyone, and deliver 
our vision of an efficient, effective and accessible Welsh public sector.   
  
I believe that our legislative programme has already significantly contributed towards 
delivering on that commitment and will continue to do so through the ten bills I am 
announcing today.    

  

We want our local communities to have the opportunities to influence the way places 
grow and change and we want to remove the unduly regulatory obstacles that 
frustrate business growth.   To do this we will need a positive enabling planning 
system that facilitates, rather than frustrates development; a planning system that 
will help us to deliver the homes, jobs and infrastructure that Wales requires.   
  
To this end, after the summer recess, we will be brining forward a Planning Bill to 
reform and simplify our current planning system.  The Bill will provide the legislation 
necessary to ensure that planning becomes an enabling tool which is supported by 
appropriate subordinate legislation, policy and guidance.  It will provide for a 
modernised service delivery framework that will complement our proposed public 
service reforms.  
  

Education reform has featured prominently in this Government’s Legislative 
programme and we will be introducing the fifth education bill - The Qualifications 
(Wales) Bill at the end of this year.  It will establish an independent body 
(Qualifications Wales) that will be responsible for the regulation and quality 
assurance of non-degree level qualifications available in Wales.   
  

In addition we will bring forward before next summer the recess the Additional 
Learning Needs Bill which will be the sixth and final education bill of this 
Government’s Legislative Programme.   

  

And in order to pave the way for our planned reform of local authorities in Wales we 
will be bringing forward a Local Government Bill at the beginning of next year.  The 

Tudalen y pecyn 111

Eitem 4.7



Bill will prepare the ground for reforming local authorities in Wales through a series 
of mergers.  
  
Whilst the merger proposals themselves and other reforms will be provided for in a 
second Bill to be introduced after the 2016 Assembly elections, the Local 
Government Bill will enable mergers to take place in a coherent and planned way.  It 
will enable the Welsh Ministers to merge local authorities who wish to do so 
voluntarily ahead of the main merger and reform programme.   
  
The Bill will enable the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales and 
the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales to start work in respect of proposed 
new authorities.  It will provide a power to ensure authorities co-operate for the 
purpose of jointly planning and preparing for merger and it will include provision to 
prevent activities by current or shadow authorities which might bring financial or 
reputational harm to any new authority. 
  
And to further advance this Government’s three strategic priorities for housing: more 
homes, better homes, and better services we will bring forward in the early part of 
next year the Renting Homes Bill.  The Bill will provide a fairer, simpler and more 
efficient legal foundation for the relationship between landlords and tenants. It will for 
the first time, provide a legal framework tailored to the needs of supported housing. 
  
The Bill will draw on extensive recommendations produced by the Law Commission 
who have helped develop our proposals.   It will, amongst other things, assist 
landlords to tackle housing-related anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse; give 
equal rights to local authority and housing association tenants and ensure every 
private tenant has a clear written contract.  
  
The Renting Homes Bill will be followed by the introduction of the Social Services 
Regulation and Inspection Bill - the sister bill of the Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act.  Responses to the White Paper consultation – The Future of 
Regulation and Inspection of Care and Support in Wales, provided a rich basis for 
developing the policy of the regulation and inspection of care and support in Wales. 
The two clear underpinning aims of the Bill will be to secure well-being for citizens 
and improve the quality of care and support they receive. 
  
We recognise that in order to secure Wales’ future prosperity, we must value our 
natural resources and the services they provide.  To manage them sustainably to 
support the opportunities to deliver jobs, and sustainable growth within our transition 
to a low carbon economy, as well as in tackling key challenges, such as the decline 
in our biodiversity. 
  
We therefore plan to bring forward next spring an Environment Bill to establish a 
modern and innovative legislative framework for the sustainable management of 
natural resources.  The Bill will establish a framework to prioritise natural resource 
opportunities and help to reduce complexity and enable improvements in resource 
efficiency while streamlining and clarifying processes for a number of existing 
regulatory regimes. 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 112



This Government also recognises the value of the historic environment of Wales.  A 
rich resource that can inspire our citizens and visitors, stimulate regeneration and 
economic growth.  But if it is going to continue to provide these many benefits to 
present and future generations, it must be protected and sustainably managed.   We 
therefore intend to introduce the Heritage Bill which will also come forward next 
spring.    
  
The Heritage Bill will introduce greater transparency and accountability into decisions 
taken on the historic environment.  It will include provisions that seek to give more 
effective protection to Wales’ listed buildings and scheduled ancient monuments by 
giving the Welsh Government and local planning authorities enhanced powers.   The 
Bill will provide the legislation necessary to ensure the sustainable management of 
the Welsh historic environment supported by non-legislative policy, advice and 
guidance.   
  
Members will be aware that over the past year the Welsh Government has continued 
to pursue legislation as a means for improving and protecting health. In April the 
Minister for Health and Social Services outlined a series of proposals for addressing 
specific health concerns in a Public Health White Paper. We were pleased that this 
exercise attracted a great deal of interest and stimulated lively debate on a number 
of important issues. The consultation period closed on 24 June and we will be 
considering the responses over the coming months, with a view to bringing forward a 
Public Health Bill before summer recess next year.  
  
The Wales Bill, which as we all know will confer significant new responsibilities on 
the Assembly in respect of taxation and borrowing, has now cleared the House of 
Commons and is under consideration in the House of Lords.  
  
Whilst Parliamentary consideration has not completed, I think it reasonable for the 
Welsh Government to make preparatory plans. I can inform the Assembly that if the 
Bill becomes law broadly in its current form, it would be our intention to bring forward 
legislation in this Assembly term, a Tax Collection and Management Bill that will 
confer the powers of tax collection and management in Wales.   
  
This Bill would establish a corporate body, operationally separate from Welsh 
Ministers, and vest it with the legal powers of tax collection and management.  The 
legislation would also establish a legal process to ensure and protect taxpayer rights 
in the full and proper payment of taxes.  
  
This is an historic time for Wales: this will be the first piece of tax legislation that the 
Assembly has had to consider, and will pave the way for the replacement of UK 
Stamp Duty Land Tax and Landfill Tax with new, devolved Welsh taxes from 2018.     
  
Llywydd, this government’s legislative ambitions do not end here.  
  
I should also like to inform Members that we will be working with the Law 
Commission on projects which we hope will be included in its 12th Programme of Law 
Reform, details of which will be announced shortly. I am hopeful that there will be a 
major piece of work on Planning Law reform, to simplify and codify the law relating to 
development control, which should lead to legislation in the next Assembly, as well 

Tudalen y pecyn 113



as work to address the issues around accessibility to Welsh law and the Welsh 
statute book; again this should be relevant to legislation in the next Assembly.     
  
I commend this legislative statement. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 114



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 115

Eitem 5.1Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 152

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 182

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 190

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 199

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 210

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 217

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 224

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 226

Eitem 5.2 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 228

Eitem 5.3 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 na 21.3
	3.1 CLA440 - Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Adeg eu Lladd (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) (Cymru) 2014
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 3
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 4 (Saesneg yn Unig)

	3.2 CLA433 - Rheoliadau Cynnwys Sylffwr Tanwyddau Hylifol (Cymru a Lloegr) (Diwygio) 2014
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 6 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 7 (Saesneg yn Unig)

	3.3 CLA431 - Rheoliadau Clefydau Moch 2014
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 9 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 10 (Saesneg yn Unig)

	4.1 Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru ynghylch canllawiau dwyochrog
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 11 - Atodiad (Saesneg yn Unig)

	4.2 Gohebiaeth ynghylch cynnig gan y Comisiwn Ewropeaidd ar atal rhwydi drifft COM(2014)265
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 13 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 14 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 15 9Saesneg yn Unig)

	4.3 Gohebiaeth gan y Llywydd
	4.4 Datganiad ysgrifenedig ynghylch Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014
	4.5 Llythyr gan Brif Weinidog Cymru ynghylch yr ymchwiliad i anghymhwyso person rhag bod yn Aelod o Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
	4.6 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Dadreoleiddio: Diwygiadau mewn perthynas â Phedolwyr a Chytundebau Cartref-Ysgol
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 20

	4.7 Datganiad gan Brif Weinidog Cymru: Y Rhaglen Ddeddfwriaethol, Gorffennaf 2014
	5.1 Adroddiad drafft ar y Bil Addysg Uwch (Cymru)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 23
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 24
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 25 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 26 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 27 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)21-14 - Papur 28 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-21-14 - Papur 29 (Saesneg yn Unig)

	5.2 Ymchwiliad i ddeddfu - y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf
	5.3 Blaenraglen waith

